
NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
 

 

REGULAR MEETING 

AGENDA 
 
 

 

MAY 9, 2016 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Submitted By 

The City Manager 

 

 

 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov




 

 
 
 
 
The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
City of Troy 
500 West Big Beaver  
Troy, MI 48084 
 
 
Dear Mayor and City Council Members: 
 
In this packet, you will find the agenda for the City Council meeting. To help facilitate an 
informed discussion, the packet provides you with agenda items and additional details. The 
packet also contains recommended courses of action for your consideration and seeks to aid 
you in adopting sound policy decisions for the City of Troy. 
 
This comprehensive agenda has been put together through the collaborative efforts of 
management and staff members. We have made all attempts to obtain accurate supporting 
information. It is the result of many meetings and much deliberation, and I would like to thank 
the staff for their efforts. 
 
If you need any further information, staff is always available to provide more information and 
answer questions that may arise. You can contact me at bkischnick@troymi.gov or 
989.233.7335 with questions. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
 
 
Brian Kischnick,  
City Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 



 

 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA 

May 9, 2016 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers 

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

  

INVOCATION:  Pastor Joe Crabb from Woodside Bible Church 1 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Cub Scout Pack 1718 from Costello Elementary School 1 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 1 

B. ROLL CALL: 1 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: 1 

C-1 Special Recognition to Cub Scout Pack 1718 From Costello Elementary School 
for Cleaning Up Jaycee Park (Presented by:  Mayor Dane Slater) 1 

C-2 Special Recognition to Members of the Troy Public Library Teen Poetry Team, 
Elements, (Raagini Chandra, Raul Dutta, Zamashenge Buthelezi, Sonia Kore, 
Rashika Rao, Vedika Aigalikar and Jenny Boudon) for Winning First Place at 
Louder Than a Bomb 2016, a Statewide Youth Poetry Competition Held at Wayne 
State University.  There were Teams from Ann Arbor, Detroit, Madison Heights, 
Fraser and More, and it was Elements’ Very First Time Participating (Presented 
by:  Mayor Dane Slater) 1 

C-3 Presentation of Certified Municipal Clerk Designation from the International 
Institute of Municipal Clerks Presented to Cheryl Stewart, Administrative Aide in 
the City Clerk’s Office (Presented by:  Mayor Dane Slater) 1 

C-4 REV-Up Troy (Presented by:  Saim Raza, Management Assistant, and Aileen 
Dickson, City Clerk) 2 



 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 2 

D-1 No Carryover Items 2 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 2 

E-1 Public Hearing to Establish a Special Assessment District for Asphalt Paving of 
the Westerly 220 Feet of Cherry in Section 27 – Standard Resolution #4 
(Introduced by:  Nino Licari, City Assessor) 2 

E-2 Adoption of the 2016-2017 Annual Budget and Three-Year Budget (2017-2018 
and 2018-2019)  (Introduced by: Brian Kischnick, City Manager) 2 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY RESIDENTS 

AND BUSINESSES: 7 

G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 

COMMENT: 8 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 8 

H-1 Agreement With North Woodward Community Foundation for Use of Public 
Property for “Troy Family Daze” Festival 8 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 9 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City 
Council Appointments – Building Code Board of Appeals, Employees’ Retirement 
System Board of Trustees / Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan and Trust 9 

I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – Global Troy 
Advisory Committee, Volunteer Firefighter Incentive Board; b) City Council 
Nominations – Animal Control Appeal Board, Charter Revision Committee, Liquor 
Advisory Committee, Traffic Committee, Volunteer Firefighter Incentive Plan 
Board, Zoning Board of Appeals 10 

I-3 No Closed Session Requested 15 

I-4 Contract Ratification – Troy Communication Supervisors Association (TCSA) 
2016-2021 (Introduced by:  Jeanette Menig, Human Resources Director) 16 



 

I-5 Approval of the Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority (BRA) Proposed Fiscal 
Year 2016-17 and Three Year Budget (Introduced by:  Mark Miller, Director of 
Economic and Community Development) 16 

I-6 Approval of the Troy Joint Local Development Finance Authority Troy 
Subcommittee Proposed Fiscal Year 2016-17 and Three Year Budget (Introduced 
by:  Mark Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development) 16 

I-7 Approval of the Troy Downtown Development Authority Proposed Fiscal Year 
2016-17 and Three Year Budget (Introduced by:  Mark Miller, Director of 
Economic and Community Development) 17 

I-8 Amendment to Chapter 20, Water and Sewer Rates, of the Troy City Code 
(Introduced by:  Tom Darling, Financial Services Director, and Paul Trosper, 
Superintendent of Water and Sewer) 17 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 17 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 17 

J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council 18 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 18 

a) Special Joint City Council and Planning Commission Minutes-Draft – April 18, 
2016 ................................................................................................................... 18 

b) City Council Minutes-Draft – April 18, 2016 ........................................................ 18 
c) Special City Council Budget Study Minutes-Draft – April 21, 2016 .................... 18 
d) Special City Council Budget Study Minutes-Draft – April 25, 2016 .................... 18 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: 18 

a) Cub Scout Pack 1718 Cleaning Up Jaycee Park ............................................... 18 
b) Troy Public Library’s Teen Poetry Team, Elements ........................................... 18 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: 18 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low bidder Meeting Specifications – 
Printing Services for the Troy Today Quarterly Newsletter ................................. 18 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Award to Low Bidders - Home Chore 
Lawn and Yard Services ..................................................................................... 19 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Sole Bidder Meeting Specifications – 
Redwood Park Pickleball Courts ........................................................................ 19 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Award to Low Bidder Meeting 
Specifications – Sidewalk Replacement and Installation Program, and 
Manhole Rehabilitation ....................................................................................... 19 



 

J-5 Private Agreement – Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements – 
Stonecrest Planned Unit Development – Project No. 15.925.3 20 

J-6 Agreement for Traffic Control Device – Fire Station #4 Sign and Flasher Removals 
(Co. #1018) 20 

J-7 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Highway Purposes from 
A.S. Investment Properties LLC – Sidwell #88-20-03-226-042 21 

J-8 Suggested Resolution to Reschedule the City Manager Evaluation to June 13, 
2016 21 

J-9 Suggested Resolution to Reschedule the City Attorney Evaluation to June 27, 
2016 21 

J-10 Suggested Resolution to Schedule a Joint Study Session on Tuesday, June 14, 
2016, Between the Troy City Council, the Troy Planning Commission and the Troy 
Downtown Development Authority at 6:00 PM 21 

J-11 Student Representatives to the Global Troy Advisory Committee 21 

J-12 Cost Participation Agreement for Road Work on Dequindre Road, Burningbush to 
Utica Road – Project No. 02.202.5 22 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 22 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 22 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  
some future point in time):  None Submitted 22 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 

RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 22 

M. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 

COMMENT: 22 

N. COUNCIL REFERRALS: 22 

N-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 23 



 

O. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 23 

O-1  No Council Comments Advanced 23 

P. REPORTS: 23 

P-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 23 

a) Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority-Final – October 20, 2015 ................. 23 

b) Joint Local Development Finance Authority-Final – October 26, 2015 ............... 23 
c) Downtown Development Authority-Final – January 20, 2016 ............................. 23 
d) Zoning Board of Appeals-Final – March 15, 2016 .............................................. 23 
e) Traffic Committee-Final – March 16, 2016 ......................................................... 23 
f) Planning Commission-Final – March 22, 2016 ................................................... 23 

g) Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority-Draft – April 19, 2016 ...................... 23 

h) Zoning Board of Appeals-Draft – April 19, 2016 ................................................. 23 
i) Downtown Development Authority-Draft – April 20, 2016 .................................. 23 
j) Joint Local Development Finance Authority-Draft – April 25, 2016 .................... 23 

P-2 Department Reports: 23 

a) Fire Station 4 Project Update ............................................................................. 23 

b) 2016 First Quarter Litigation Report ................................................................... 23 
c) 2015-2016 Fiscal year Interim Financial Statements Nine Months Ended 

March 31, 2016 .................................................................................................. 23 

d) Building Department Activity Report – April 2016 ............................................... 23 
e) Nationwide Increase in Opioid Overdose ........................................................... 23 

P-3 Letters of Appreciation: 23 

a) To Chief Roberts from Ryan Huffmaster Regarding Fire Department 
Response to a Fire in Their Offices .................................................................... 23 

b) To Mayor Slater from State Representative Martin Howrylak in Recognition of 
the City of Troy Being Named a Tree City USA by the Michigan Department 
of Natural Resources .......................................................................................... 23 

P-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 23 

Q. COMMENTS ON ITEMS ON OR NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM MEMBERS OF 

THE PUBLIC OUTSIDE OF TROY (NOT RESIDENTS OF TROY AND NOT FROM 

TROY BUSINESSES): 23 

R. CLOSED SESSION: 23 

R-1 No Closed Session Requested 23 



 

S. ADJOURNMENT: 23 

2016 SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 25 

August 8, 2016 Joint Meeting–Troy City Council/Troy School Board .................... 25 
September 19, 2016 Joint Meeting–Troy City Council/Troy Chamber................... 25 
October 24, 2016 Joint Meeting–Troy City Council/Troy Planning Commission ... 25 

2016 SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 25 

May 23, 2016 Regular Meeting.............................................................................. 25 
June 13, 2016 Regular Meeting ............................................................................ 25 
June 27, 2016 Regular Meeting ............................................................................ 25 

July 11, 2016 Regular Meeting .............................................................................. 25 
July 25, 2016 Regular Meeting .............................................................................. 25 

August 8, 2016 Regular Meeting ........................................................................... 25 
August 22, 2016 Regular Meeting ......................................................................... 25 
September 19, 2016 Regular Meeting ................................................................... 25 
September 26, 2016 Regular Meeting ................................................................... 25 

October 10, 2016 Regular Meeting ....................................................................... 25 
October 24, 2016 Regular Meeting ....................................................................... 25 

November 14, 2016 Regular Meeting .................................................................... 25 
November 21, 2016 Regular Meeting .................................................................... 25 
December 5, 2016 Regular Meeting ...................................................................... 25 

December 19, 2016 Regular Meeting .................................................................... 25 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2016 
 

- 1 - 

INVOCATION:  Pastor Joe Crabb from Woodside Bible Church 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Cub Scout Pack 1718 from Costello Elementary 

School 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 
 

B. ROLL CALL: 
 

a) Mayor Dane Slater 
Edna Abrahim 
Ethan Baker 
Jim Campbell 
Dave Henderson 
Ellen Hodorek  
Mayor Pro Tem Ed Pennington  

 
b) Excuse Absent Council Members: 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-05-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of ______________ at the 
Special Study Meeting and Regular City Council Meeting of May 9, 2016, due to ___________. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  

C-1 Special Recognition to Cub Scout Pack 1718 From Costello Elementary School for 

Cleaning Up Jaycee Park (Presented by:  Mayor Dane Slater) 
 

C-2 Special Recognition to Members of the Troy Public Library Teen Poetry Team, 

Elements, (Raagini Chandra, Raul Dutta, Zamashenge Buthelezi, Sonia Kore, 

Rashika Rao, Vedika Aigalikar and Jenny Boudon) for Winning First Place at 

Louder Than a Bomb 2016, a Statewide Youth Poetry Competition Held at Wayne 

State University.  There were Teams from Ann Arbor, Detroit, Madison Heights, 

Fraser and More, and it was Elements’ Very First Time Participating (Presented by:  
Mayor Dane Slater) 

 

C-3 Presentation of Certified Municipal Clerk Designation from the International 

Institute of Municipal Clerks Presented to Cheryl Stewart, Administrative Aide in 

the City Clerk’s Office (Presented by:  Mayor Dane Slater) 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2016 
 

- 2 - 

C-4 REV-Up Troy (Presented by:  Saim Raza, Management Assistant, and Aileen 
Dickson, City Clerk) 

 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 

D-1 No Carryover Items 
 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

E-1 Public Hearing to Establish a Special Assessment District for Asphalt Paving of 

the Westerly 220 Feet of Cherry in Section 27 – Standard Resolution #4 
(Introduced by:  Nino Licari, City Assessor) 

 

Standard Resolution No. 4 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-05-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 

WHEREAS, Troy City Council HAS CAUSED Special Assessment Roll No. 14.907.1 to be 
prepared for the purpose of defraying the Special Assessment District’s portion of the following 
described public improvement in the City of Troy; 
 

Bituminous Paving of the easterly 220’ of Cherry Street; and, 
 

WHEREAS, Troy City Council and the City Assessor HAVE MET after due legal notice and 

HAVE REVIEWED said Special Assessment Roll and HAVE HEARD all persons interested in 
said Special Assessment Roll appearing at said hearing; and,  
 

WHEREAS, Troy City Council IS SATISFIED with said Special Assessment Roll as prepared 
by the City Assessor; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Special Assessment Roll No. 14.907.1 in the amount 

of $91,013.00 is hereby CONFIRMED as prepared by the City Assessor, a copy of which shall 

be ATTACHED to, and become a part of the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 

E-2 Adoption of the 2016-2017 Annual Budget and Three-Year Budget (2017-2018 and 

2018-2019)  (Introduced by: Brian Kischnick, City Manager) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-05-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2016 
 

- 3 - 

WHEREAS, Section 8.3 of the City Charter directs the City Council to adopt a budget for the 
ensuing year, beginning July 1, 2016; and, 
 
WHEREAS, City Council directed City Management to also produce a three-year budget;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the following listed operating revenues including 
tax revenues and operating transfers “to” the General Operating Fund are anticipated and that 
the General Operating Fund has sufficient Fund Balance to appropriate as follows: 
 

Taxes ................................................................................... $30,913,240 
Licenses and Permits .............................................................. 2,613,750 
Federal Grants................................................................................ 3,000 
State Grants ................................................................................. 38,500 
State Shared Revenues .......................................................... 7,100,080 
Contributions – Local .................................................................... 72,500 
Charges for Services ............................................................... 8,150,000 
Fines and Forfeitures.................................................................. 992,250 
Interest and Rents ................................................................... 1,188,100 
Other Revenue ........................................................................ 1,069,500 
Operating Transfers – In.......................................................... 4,830,240 

  Total Revenues and Transfers ......................................... 56,971,160 
Appropriation of Fund Balance ................................................ 2,257,270 
  

Total Revenues, Transfers and Appropriations         $59,228,430. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the General Operating Fund shall be six 
and fifty one-hundredths (6.50) mills on the 2016 taxable valuation. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, In order to meet anticipated service delivery levels, 
expenditures amounts from the following listed budgetary functions shall be appropriated from 
the General Operating Fund: 
 

General Government ........................................................ $     8,553,360 
Public Safety  ........................................................................ 31,928,860 
Public Works ........................................................................... 6,774,810 
Community Development ........................................................ 3,308,820 
Recreation and Culture ............................................................ 7,437,580 
Operating Transfers Out .......................................................... 1,225,000 

 

Total Expenditures and Transfers  $59,228,430. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the following listed operating revenues of the Capital 
Projects Fund including tax revenues and transfers “to” the Capital Projects Fund are 
anticipated and that the Capital Projects Fund has sufficient Fund Balance to appropriate as 
follows: 
 

Taxes ..................................................................................... $6,831,080 
Grants ...................................................................................... 1,717,250 
Contributions – Local .................................................................. 686,400 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2016 
 

- 4 - 

Charges for Services .................................................................. 345,000 
Interest and Rents ...................................................................... 105,000 
Other Revenues .......................................................................... 200,000 
Operating Transfer – In ............................................................ 5,443,800 

Total Revenues and Transfers ............................................ 15,328,530 
Appropriation of Fund Balance ................................................ 3,550,690 
 

Total Revenues, Transfers and Appropriations    ..        $18,879,220. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the Capital Fund shall be one and fifty-
three hundredths (1.53) mills on the 2016 taxable valuation. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, In order to meet anticipated expenses, amounts from the 
following listed budgetary centers shall be appropriated from the Capital Projects Fund: 
 

Finance ....................................................................................... $17,000 
City Clerk .................................................................................... 174,000 
City Buildings .............................................................................. 830,000 
Police .......................................................................................... 597,500 
Fire ........................................................................................... 3,125,000 
Streets ................................................................................... 10,554,000 
Public Works ............................................................................... 394,000 
Parks ........................................................................................ 2,000,000 
Library ......................................................................................... 780,300 
Historic Village  ........................................................................... 132,000 
Debt and Other Financing Uses.................................................. 275,420 
 

Total Expenditures ............................................................ $18,879,220. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the Refuse Fund shall be one and seven 
one-hundredths (1.07) mills on the 2016 taxable valuation. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Refuse Fund shall be appropriated $4,979,650. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the Library Fund shall be seventy one-
hundredths (0.70) mills on the 2016 taxable valuation. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Library Fund shall be appropriated $3,718,910. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That there shall be a tax levy of sixty one-hundredths (0.60) 
mills on the 2016 taxable valuation for the General Debt Service Fund. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the General Debt Service Fund shall be appropriated 
$3,044,350. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following 
budgets as shown in the 2016/17 budget document: 

  

Major Road Fund ................................................................... $5,357,240  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2016 
 

- 5 - 

Local Road Fund ....................................................................  2,781,840 
Transit Center Fund...................................................................... 82,480 
Drug Forfeiture Fund .................................................................. 304,500 
Community Development Block Grant Fund .............................. 247,500 
Cemetery Fund ............................................................................... 2,100 
Proposal A Debt Fund ................................................................ 903,150 
Proposal B Debt Fund ............................................................. 1,355,600 
Proposal C Debt Fund ................................................................ 717,100 
Series 2013 DDA Debt Fund ...................................................... 941,900 
Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Fund .......................................... 2,235,210 
Sylvan Glen Golf Course Fund ................................................ 1,134,780 
Aquatic Center Fund ................................................................... 700,590 
Sanitary Sewer Fund ............................................................. 14,538,350 
Water Fund............................................................................ 18,975,420 
Building Operations ................................................................. 1,115,100 
Fleet Maintenance Fund .......................................................... 4,331,470 
Information Technology ........................................................... 1,950,750 
Unemployment Insurance Fund ..................................................... 3,600 
Worker’s Compensation Fund .................................................... 337,130 
Compensated Absences Fund ................................................ 4,046,660. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the three-year budget (2017/18 – 2018/19) for the General 
Fund, Refuse Fund, General Debt Service Fund and Capital Projects Fund be approved based 
on the following revenues, expenditures and available, if needed, fund balance: 
 
General Fund Operating                          2016/17            2017/18 

Taxes ....................................................................... $31,313,030 ..... $31,588,380 
Licenses and Permits .................................................. 2,663,240 ......... 2,708,820 
Federal Grants.................................................................... 3,000 ................ 3,000 
State Grants ..................................................................... 38,500 .............. 38,500 
State Shared Revenues .............................................. 7,113,480 ......... 7,125,880 
Contributions – Local ........................................................ 72,500 .............. 72,500 
Charges for Services ................................................... 8,139,100 ......... 8,240,200 
Fines and Forfeitures...................................................... 994,250 ............ 994,250 
Interest and Rents ....................................................... 1,193,100 ......... 1,198,100 
Other Revenue ............................................................ 1,080,900 ......... 1,095,300 
Operating Transfers – In.............................................. 4,831,930 ......... 4,872,370 

Total Revenues & Transfers ................................... 57,443,030 ....... 57,937,300 
Appropriation of Fund Balance ....................................... 894,820 ......... 1,170,320 
 

Total Revenue, Transfers and Appropriations .... $58,337,850 ..... $59,107,620. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the General Operating fund shall be six and 
fifty one-hundredths (6.50) mills on the 2017 and 2018 taxable valuation; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That in order to meet anticipated service delivery levels 
expenditures amounts from the following listed budgetary centers shall be appropriated from 
the General Operating Fund: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2016 
 

- 6 - 

            2017/18            2018/19 

General Government .............................................. $   8,374,970 .... $   8,507,010 
Public Safety .............................................................. 32,425,190 ....... 32,901,660 
Public Works ................................................................ 6,661,450 ......... 6,692,460 
Community Development ............................................ 3,354,290 ......... 3,400,140 
Recreation and Culture ................................................ 7,521,950 ......... 7,606,350 
Operating Transfers Out ............................................................ 0 ....................... 0 

Total Expenditures ................................................ $58,337,850 ..... $59,107,620. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the following listed revenues and appropriation fund 
balance of the Capital Projects Fund are anticipated: 
 

                                               2017/18             2018/19 

Taxes ........................................................................ $ 6,923,890 ...... $ 6,986,350 
Grants .......................................................................... 2,100,000 ......... 2,100,000 
Contributions - Local ....................................................... 400,000 ............ 400,000 
Charges for Services ...................................................... 345,000 ............ 345,000 
Interest and Rents .......................................................... 105,000 ............ 105,000 
Other Revenues ................................................................ 25,000 .............. 25,000 
Operating Transfer-In .................................................. 4,285,500 ......... 4,543,000 

Total Revenues and Transfers ................................ 14,184,390 ....... 14,504,350 
Appropriation (Surplus) of Fund Balance ........................ 668,600 ....... (2,798,320) 
 

Total Revenues, Transfers and Appropriations .. $14,852,990 ..... $11,706,030. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the Capital Projects Fund shall be one and 
fifty-three one-hundredths (1.53) mills on the 2017 and 2018 taxable valuation. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That in order to meet anticipated expenditures, amounts from 
the following listed budgetary centers shall be appropriated from the Capital Projects Fund: 
 

                                              2017/18             2018/19 

Finance ........................................................................... $17,000 ............ $17,000 
City Buildings .................................................................. 490,000 .............. 80,000 
Police .............................................................................. 269,500 ............ 310,000 
Fire .................................................................................. 750,000 ............ 830,000 
Streets ....................................................................... 11,453,000 ......... 8,703,000 
Public Works ................................................................... 353,590 ............ 270,000 
Parks ............................................................................... 450,000 ............ 300,000 
Recreation ...................................................................... 190,000 ............ 135,000 
Library ............................................................................. 580,000 ............ 761,600 
Historic Village .................................................................. 25,000 .............. 25,000 
Debt and Other Financing Uses...................................... 274,900 ............ 274,430 
 

Total Expenditures ................................................ $14,852,990 ..... $11,706,030.  
 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2016 
 

- 7 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the Refuse Fund shall be one and seven 
one-hundredths (1.07) mills on the 2017 taxable valuation and the 2018 taxable valuation. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Refuse Fund shall be appropriated $5,056,290 in 
2017/18 and $5,131,920 in 2018/19. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the tax rate for the Library Fund shall be seventy one-
hundredths (0.70) mills on the 2017 taxable valuation and the 2018 taxable valuation. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Library Fund shall be appropriated $3,547,420 in 
2017/18 and $3,582,020 in 2018/19. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That there shall be a tax levy of sixty one-hundredths (0.60) 
mills on the 2017 and sixty one-hundredths (0.60) mills on the 2018 taxable valuation for the 
General Debt Service Fund.  
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the General Debt Service Fund shall be appropriated 
$2,872,750 in 2017/18 and $2,946,480 in 2018/19. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 

RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 
 

In accordance with the Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Article 17 – Members of 

the Public and Visitors: 

Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the 
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council requests that if 
you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you are 
encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to 
the Mayor and Council. 

 Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended with 
the majority consent of City Council. 

 Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to 
three (3) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 

 Any Troy resident or Troy business representative, not a petitioner of an item, shall be 
allowed to speak for up to three (3) minutes total to address Postponed, Regular Business, 
Consent Agenda or Study items or any other item on the Agenda as permitted under the 
Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment for Items On the Agenda from Troy 
Residents and Businesses portion of the Agenda. 

 Any Troy resident or Troy business representative, not a petitioner of an item, shall be 
allowed to speak for up to three (3) minutes to address any topic not on the Agenda as 
permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment for Items Not on the 
Agenda from Troy Residents and Businesses portion of the Agenda. 

 Any member of the public who is not a Troy resident or Troy business representative shall be 
allowed to speak for up to three (3) minutes to address any topic on or not on the Agenda as 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2016 
 

- 8 - 

permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Comments for Items On or Not On the 
Agenda from Members of the Public Outside of Troy (Not Residents of Troy and Not From 
Troy Businesses) portion of the Agenda. 

 All members of the public who wish to address the Council at a meeting shall be allowed to 
speak only if they have signed up to speak within thirty minutes before or within fifteen 
minutes after the meeting’s start time. Signing up to speak requires each speaker provide his 
or her name and residency status (Troy resident, non-resident, or Troy business owner). If 
the speaker is addressing an Item (or Items) that appear on the pre-printed agenda, then the 
speaker shall also identify each such agenda item number(s) to be addressed. 

 City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority vote of the City Council 
members. 

 Agenda items that are related to topics where there is significant public input anticipated 
should initiate the scheduling of a Special meeting for that specific purpose. 

The following has been approved by Troy City Council as a statement of the rules of decorum for 
City Council meetings. The Mayor will also provide a verbal notification of these rules prior to 
Public Comment: 
 
The audience should be aware that all comments are to be directed to the Council rather than 
to City Administration or the audience. Anyone who wishes to address the Council is required 
to sign up to speak within thirty minutes before or within fifteen minutes of the start of the 
meeting. There are three Public Comment portions of the Agenda. For Items On the Agenda, 
Troy Residents and Business Owners can sign up to address Postponed, Regular Business, 
Consent Agenda, or Study items or any other item on the Agenda. Troy Residents and 
Business Owners can sign up to address all other topics under Items Not on the Agenda.  All 
Speakers who do not live in Troy or own a Troy business may sign up to speak during the 
Comments on Items On and Not On the Agenda from Members of the Public Outside of Troy. 
Also, there is a timer on the City Council table in front of the Mayor that turns yellow when there 
is one minute of speaker time remaining, and turns red when the speaker's time is up.    
In order to make the meeting more orderly and out of respect, please do not clap during the 
meeting, and please do not use expletives or make derogatory or disparaging comments about 
any one person or group.  If you do so, then there may be immediate consequences, including 
having the microphone turned off, being asked to leave the meeting, and/or the deletion of 
speaker comments for any re-broadcast of the meeting.  Speakers should also be careful to 
avoid saying anything that would subject them to civil liability, such as slander and defamation.  
 
Please avoid these consequences and voluntarily assist us in maintaining the decorum befitting 
this great City. 
 

G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 

COMMENT: 
 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 

H-1 Agreement With North Woodward Community Foundation for Use of Public 

Property for “Troy Family Daze” Festival  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2016 
 

- 9 - 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City 

Council Appointments – Building Code Board of Appeals, Employees’ Retirement 

System Board of Trustees / Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan and Trust 
 

a) Mayoral Appointments:  None 
 

b) City Council Appointments:   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-05-      
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONFIRMS the appointment of the following 
person to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Building Code Board of Appeals 
Appointed by Council 
5 Regular Members:   

Three (3) Residents with background, training or experience in construction or similar trades; 
at least one shall be a professional structural or civil engineer of architectural engineering 

experience;  Two (2) by Ordinance - City Manager and Oakland County Health Department 
Representative 

5 Year Term 
 

Required by:  Chapter 79 Amanda Anderson 

Oakland County  

Health Department Rep. 

 Term currently held by: Mike Morris 
 

Yes:       
No:       
 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-05-      
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees / Retiree Health Care Benefits 

Plan and Trust 
Appointed by Council 

7 Regular Members and 2 Ordinance Member 
3 Year Term 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2016 
 

- 10 - 

Nominations to the Employees Retirement System Board of Trustees / Retiree Health 

Care Benefits Plan and Trust: 
 

Unexpired Term Expires:  12/31/2016 Mark Owczarzak 

 Term currently held by: Vacancy–Ex-Officio Retiree 
Wm. Need resigned 

 
Yes:       
No:       
 

I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – Global Troy 

Advisory Committee, Volunteer Firefighter Incentive Board; b) City Council 

Nominations – Animal Control Appeal Board, Charter Revision Committee, Liquor 

Advisory Committee, Traffic Committee, Volunteer Firefighter Incentive Plan 

Board, Zoning Board of Appeals 
 

a) Mayoral Nominations:   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-05-      
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby FORWARDS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action: 
 

Global Troy Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Mayor 
11 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

Nominations to the Global Troy Advisory Committee: 
 

Term Expires: Council Term  City Council Member 

 

Term Expires: 4/30/2017  

 

Term Expires: 4/30/2017  

 

Term Expires: 4/30/2017  

 

Term Expires: 4/30/2018  

 

Term Expires: 4/30/2018  

 

Term Expires: 4/30/2018  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2016 
 

- 11 - 

 

Term Expires: 4/30/2019  

 

Term Expires: 4/30/2019  

 

Term Expires: 4/30/2019  

 

Term Expires: 4/30/2019  

 

Term Expires: 7/31/2017  STUDENT 

 

Term Expires: 7/31/2017  STUDENT 

 
 

Interested Applicants: 

Last Name First Name App Resume Expire Notes 1 

Angamuthu Rahul 4/21/2018 STUDENT 

Buchanan Cynthia 4/20/2018  

Chan Tai 4/18/2018  

Coon Richard 4/22/2018  

Fakhoury Awni 4/28/2018  

Mohideen Syeda 4/22/2018  

Samman Rouba 4/8/2018  

Schneeweis Adina 5/7/2018  

Young Ricky 4/22/2018 STUDENT 
 

 
 
 

Volunteer Firefighter Incentive Plan Board 
Appointed by Mayor 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

Nominations to the Volunteer Firefighter Incentive Plan Board: 
 

Term Expires:  4/30/2019  Citizen (Mayor Appt’d) 

 

Last Name First Name App Resume Expire Notes 1 

Mohideen Syeda 4/22/2018  
 

 
Yes:  
No:  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2016 
 

- 12 - 

b) City Council Nominations:  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-05-      
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council Meeting for 
action: 
 

Animal Control Appeal Board 
Appointed by Council 
5 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

Current Members: 

Last Name First Name App Res Expire Appointment Expire Notes 2 

Carolan Patrick 6/17/2015 9/30/2016  

Floch Patrick 11/18/2016 9/30/2018  

Petrulis Al 6/16/2017 9/30/2018 Traffic Comm exp 1/31/2017 

Saeger Jayne 10/15/2016 9/30/2017  

Vacancy   9/30/2017 P. Terry Knight's unexpired term 
 

 

Nominations to the Animal Control Appeal Board: 
 

Unexpired Term Expires: 9/30/2017  

 Term currently held by: Vacancy-P. Terry Knight term  
 

Interested Applicants: 

Last Name First Name App Resume Expire Notes 1 

Murray William 4/8/2018  

Waters Gretchen 1/4/2018  
 

 
 

Charter Revision Committee 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

Current Members: 

Last Name First Name App Res Expire Appointment Expire Notes 3 

Bartnik Mark  04/30/2018  

Berk Robert 2/27/2015 4/30/2019  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2016 
 

- 13 - 

Bliss Daniel 11/16/2013 4/30/2015 NO Reappointment 

Howrylak Frank 2/1/2014 4/30/2017  

Kanoza Shirley 2/21/2015 4/30/2019  

Weisgerber William 5/7/2017 4/30/2015 NO Reappointment 

Wilsher Cynthia 2/27/2016 4/30/2017  
 

 

Nominations to the Charter Revision Committee: 
 

Term Expires:  4/30/2018  

 Term currently held by: Daniel Bliss 
 

Term Expires:  4/30/2018  

 Term currently held by: William Weisgerber 
 

Interested Applicants: 
No applications or resumes on file. 

 
 

Liquor Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

Current Members: 

Last Name First Name App Res Expire Appointment Expire Notes 3 

Comiskey Ann 3/18/2016 1/31/2018  

Ehlert Max 11/5/2016 1/31/2018  

Godlewski W. Stan 12/14/2012 1/31/2017  

Gorcyca David 12/6/2015 1/31/2017  

Hall Patrick 11/24/2017 1/31/2016 NO Reappointment 

Kaltsounis Andrew 11/24/2017 1/31/2019  

Oberski Jeff    

Payne Timothy 2/8/2014 1/31/2018  
 

 

Nominations to the Liquor Advisory Committee: 
 

Term Expires:  1/31/2019  

 Term currently held by: Patrick Hall 
 

Interested Applicants: 
No applications or resumes on file. 

 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2016 
 

- 14 - 

Traffic Committee 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

Current Members: 

Last Name First Name 
App Res 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire 

Notes 1 Notes 3 

Brandstetter Tim 10/17/2016 1/31/2018   

Easterbrook David 11/24/2017 1/31/2016  NO Reappointment 

Huber R. Mitch 6/10/2017 1/31/2016   

Huotari William   Ex-Officio Member  

Kilmer Richard 12/12/2015 1/31/2017   

Mayer Gary   Ex-Officio Member  

Nelson William   Ex-Officio Member  

Petrulis Al 1/8/2016 1/31/2017 ACAB exp 9/30/2018  

Regan Kathleen 3/26/2017 7/31/2016 STUDENT  

Wilsher Cynthia 10/9/2016 1/31/2018   

Ziegenfelder Peter 12/9/2015 1/31/2017   
 

 

Nominations to the Traffic Committee: 
 

Term Expires:  1/31/2019  

 Term currently held by: David Easterbrook 
 

Term Expires:  1/31/2019  

 Term currently held by: R. Mitch Huber 
 

Interested Applicants: 
No applications or resumes on file. 

 
 

Volunteer Firefighter Incentive Plan Board 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

Nominations to the Volunteer Firefighter Incentive Plan Board: 
 

Term Expires:  No expiration Brian Kischnick City Manager 

 

Term Expires:  No expiration Tom Darling Dir. of Financial Services 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2016 
 

- 15 - 

Term Expires: Council Term  City Council Member 

 
 
 

Zoning Board of Appeals 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

Current Members: 

Last Name First Name 
App Res 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire 

Notes 1 Notes 2 Notes 3 

Clark Glenn 4/27/2017 4/30/2018    

Courtney Kenneth 2/25/2015 4/30/2016   NO 
Reappointment 

Desmond Thomas 5/7/2017 4/30/2018    

Eisenbacher David 3/16/2018 4/30/2019   Requests 
Reappointment 

Kaltsounis Orestis Rusty 10/8/2017 1/31/2018 Alternate P&R BD 
exp 
9/30/2018 

Requests 
Reappointment 

Kneale A. Allen 3/9/2013 4/30/2017    

Lambert Dave 3/10/2016 4/30/2017    

McCown Paul D. 7/10/2015 1/31/2018 Alternate   

Sanzica Philip 9/24/2014 12/31/2016 PC Rep on 
ZBA 

  

 

 

Nominations to the Zoning Board of Appeals: 
 

Term Expires:  4/30/2019  

 Term currently held by: Kenneth Courtney 
 

Interested Applicants: 

Last Name First Name App Resume Expire Notes 2 

Frisen Sande 11/2/2017  

Sharp John 3/28/2018 EDC exp 4/30/2015; LDFA exp 6/30/2016 
 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

I-3 No Closed Session Requested 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2016 
 

- 16 - 

I-4 Contract Ratification – Troy Communication Supervisors Association (TCSA) 

2016-2021 (Introduced by:  Jeanette Menig, Human Resources Director) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-05-      
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the ratification of a collective 
bargaining agreement between the City of Troy and Troy Communication Supervisors 
Association (TCSA) for the period July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2021, and the Mayor and City 

Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the final agreement. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

I-5 Approval of the Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority (BRA) Proposed Fiscal 

Year 2016-17 and Three Year Budget (Introduced by:  Mark Miller, Director of 
Economic and Community Development) 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-05-      
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority has adopted and recommends that 
City Council approve its proposed fiscal year 2016/17 Budget and 3-Year Budget; 
 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Troy 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority’s annual budget for fiscal year July 1, 2016 through June 
30, 2017 and 3-Year Budget. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

I-6 Approval of the Troy Joint Local Development Finance Authority Troy 

Subcommittee Proposed Fiscal Year 2016-17 and Three Year Budget (Introduced 
by:  Mark Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development) 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-05-      
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The Joint Local Development Finance Authority Troy Subcommittee has adopted 
and recommends that City Council approve its proposed fiscal year 2016/17 Budget and 3-
Year Budget; 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2016 
 

- 17 - 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Joint Local 
Development Finance Authority Troy Subcommittee annual budget for fiscal year July 1, 2016 
through June 30, 2017 and 3-Year Budget. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

I-7 Approval of the Troy Downtown Development Authority Proposed Fiscal Year 

2016-17 and Three Year Budget (Introduced by:  Mark Miller, Director of Economic 
and Community Development) 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-05-      
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Downtown Development Authority has adopted and recommends that 
City Council approve its proposed fiscal year 2016/17 Budget and 3-Year Budget; 
 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Troy 
Downtown Development Authority’s annual budget for fiscal year July 1, 2016 through June 30, 
2017 and 3-Year Budget. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

I-8 Amendment to Chapter 20, Water and Sewer Rates, of the Troy City Code 
(Introduced by:  Tom Darling, Financial Services Director, and Paul Trosper, 
Superintendent of Water and Sewer) 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-05-      
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an amendment to Chapter 20 of the 
Troy City Code (Water and Sewer Rates) and the water connection fee schedule, a copy of 

which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-05-      



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2016 
 

- 18 - 

Moved by       
Seconded by       
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 

presented with the exception of Item(s)           , which shall be CONSIDERED after 
Consent Agenda (J) items, as printed. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 

J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-05-      
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 
 
a) Special Joint City Council and Planning Commission Minutes-Draft – April 18, 2016 
b) City Council Minutes-Draft – April 18, 2016 
c) Special City Council Budget Study Minutes-Draft – April 21, 2016 
d) Special City Council Budget Study Minutes-Draft – April 25, 2016  
 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-05-      
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following City of Troy 
Proclamations: 
 
a) Cub Scout Pack 1718 Cleaning Up Jaycee Park 
b) Troy Public Library’s Teen Poetry Team, Elements 
 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:   
 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low bidder Meeting Specifications – Printing 

Services for the Troy Today Quarterly Newsletter 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-05-      
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a one (1) year contract to provide 
printing and delivery services of the Troy Today Quarterly Newsletter and the Troy Recreation 
Quarterly Newsletter with an option to renew for two (2) additional years to the low bidder 
meeting specifications; Grand Blanc Co Inc., of Grand Blanc, MI, at an estimated total cost of 
$34,140.00, for the Troy Today Quarterly Newsletter, and $46,100.00 for the Troy Recreation 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2016 
 

- 19 - 

Quarterly Newsletter, plus the actual cost of bulk rate postage and $30.00 per issue to post the 
Flip page newsletter on the City’s website, and additional charges if needed not to exceed 
$3,900.00, at prices contained in the bid tabulation opened April 14, 2016, a copy of which 

shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; contract expiring April 30, 2019. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the contractor’s 
submission of properly executed bid documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements. 
 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Award to Low Bidders - Home Chore Lawn 

and Yard Services 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-05-      
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contracts for seasonal requirements of 
lawn and yard services for Troy residents using the Home Chore Program with an option to 
renew for one (1) additional season to the low total bidders, Cooper Lawnscape, Inc. of 
Warren, MI, as the primary contractor, and Gratiot Landscaping of Roseville, MI, as secondary 
contractor at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened April 14 2016; a copy of which 

shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; contract to expire December 31, 
2017. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the contractor’s 
submission of properly executed bid and proposal documents, including insurance 
certificates and all other specified requirements. 
 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Sole Bidder Meeting Specifications – 

Redwood Park Pickleball Courts 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-05-      
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract for the installation of four (4) 
Pickleball Courts, which includes resurfacing, fencing, and other related tasks to the sole bidder 
meeting specifications; WCI Contractors, Inc., of Detroit, MI, at unit prices contained in the bid 

tabulation, opened April 28, 2016, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes 
of this meeting, for an estimated total annual cost of $138,759.00; not to exceed budgetary 
limitations. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the contract is CONTINGENT upon contractor’s 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements. 
 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Award to Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – 

Sidewalk Replacement and Installation Program, and Manhole Rehabilitation 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-05-      



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2016 
 

- 20 - 

 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a one (1) year contract with the option to 
renew for two (2) additional years for sidewalk replacement and installation, and manhole 
rehabilitation to the low bidder meeting specifications; Italia Construction of Washington, MI, for 
an estimated total amount of $500,000.00 at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened 

April 21, 2016; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, 
contract to expire June 30, 2019. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor’s submission of 
properly executed contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements. 
 

J-5 Private Agreement – Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements – 

Stonecrest Planned Unit Development – Project No. 15.925.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-05-      
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Contract for the Installation of 
Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) between the City of Troy and NP Troy, LLC, for 
the installation of water main, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, detention, paving, sidewalks, 

landscaping and soil erosion and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE 

the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES reimbursement to 
NP Troy, LLC for the installation of approximately 1,300 feet of 12” water main and related 
work as part of the Stonecrest PUD development in the amount of $62,431.64 to loop the water 
mains on Colebrook and Livernois, with payment due upon completion of the construction and 
final approval by the Engineering Department. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, If additional work is required, such additional work is 

AUTHORIZED in an amount not to exceed 10% of the total project cost. 
 

J-6 Agreement for Traffic Control Device – Fire Station #4 Sign and Flasher Removals 

(Co. #1018) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-05-      
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES an agreement with the Road 
Commission for Oakland County (RCOC) for Traffic Control Work for Fire Station #4 Signal and 
Flasher Removals (Co. 1018) to remove the existing emergency signals and signs at an 
estimated cost to the City of Troy of $4,500. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO 

EXECUTE the agreement. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2016 
 

- 21 - 

J-7 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Highway Purposes from 

A.S. Investment Properties LLC – Sidwell #88-20-03-226-042 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-05-      

 

RESOLVED, That City Council hereby ACCEPTS a permanent easement for highway 
purposes from A.S. Investment Properties, LLC, owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-
03-226-042. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD the 
permanent easement with Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

J-8 Suggested Resolution to Reschedule the City Manager Evaluation to June 13, 

2016 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-05-      
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council RESCHEDULES the Closed Session on Monday, May 9, 
2016 to Monday, June 13, 2016 in the Council Board Room, pursuant to MCL 15. 268 (a) and 
(h) (MCL 15.243 (g)) for the evaluation of the City Manager.   
 

J-9 Suggested Resolution to Reschedule the City Attorney Evaluation to June 27, 2016 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-05-      
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council RESCHEDULES the Closed Session on Monday, May 23, 
2016 to Monday, June 27, 2016 in the Council Board Room, pursuant to MCL 15. 268 (a) and 
(h) (MCL 15.243 (g)) for the evaluation of the City Attorney.   
 

J-10 Suggested Resolution to Schedule a Joint Study Session on Tuesday, June 14, 

2016, Between the Troy City Council, the Troy Planning Commission and the Troy 

Downtown Development Authority at 6:00 PM 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-05-      
 

RESOLVED, That a Joint Study Meeting is SCHEDULED for the Troy City Council, the Troy 
Planning Commission and the Troy Downtown Development Authority for the purpose of 
discussing the Troy Civic Center Study on Tuesday, June 14, 2016, at 6:00 PM at the Troy 
Community Center, 3179 Livernois, Room 304, Troy, MI  48084. 
 

J-11 Student Representatives to the Global Troy Advisory Committee 
 
Suggested Resolution 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2016 
 

- 22 - 

Resolution #2016-05-      
 
WHEREAS, The City Council adopted celebrating diversity as one of the top ten strategies for 
the City government on March 9, 2015, and reaffirmed this commitment by incorporating the 
launch of the Global Troy Advisory Committee as a top ten strategy for 2016; and,  
 
WHEREAS, On April 4, 2016 the Troy City Council authorized the creation of the Global Troy 
Advisory Committee (Resolution #2016-04-060); and,  
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council is desirous of allowing up to two student representatives to 
serve on the Global Troy Advisory Committee in a non-voting and advisory capacity;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Mayor is AUTHORIZED TO APPOINT up to 
two non-voting student representatives to the Global Troy Committee, and that these 

appointments ARE SUBJECT to City Council approval. The student representatives SHALL be 

appointed for one year terms, and SHALL be eligible for re-appointment.  
 

J-12 Cost Participation Agreement for Road Work on Dequindre Road, Burningbush to 

Utica Road – Project No. 02.202.5 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-05-      
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Cost Participation Agreement 
between the City of Troy and the Board of County Road Commissioners for Oakland County for 
the widening and reconstruction of Dequindre Road, from Burningbush Road to Utica Road, at 
an estimated cost to the City of Troy of $282,252.00, and the Mayor and City Clerk are 

AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the agreement; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting.    
 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 
 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 

 some future point in time):  None Submitted 
 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 

RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 

M. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 

COMMENT: 

N. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  

Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 

Placement on the Agenda 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2016 
 

- 23 - 

N-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 
 

O. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

O-1  No Council Comments Advanced 
 

P. REPORTS: 

P-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority-Final – October 20, 2015 
b) Joint Local Development Finance Authority-Final – October 26, 2015 
c) Downtown Development Authority-Final – January 20, 2016 
d) Zoning Board of Appeals-Final – March 15, 2016 
e) Traffic Committee-Final – March 16, 2016 
f) Planning Commission-Final – March 22, 2016 
g) Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority-Draft – April 19, 2016 
h) Zoning Board of Appeals-Draft – April 19, 2016 
i) Downtown Development Authority-Draft – April 20, 2016 
j) Joint Local Development Finance Authority-Draft – April 25, 2016 
 

P-2 Department Reports:   
a) Fire Station 4 Project Update 
b) 2016 First Quarter Litigation Report 
c) 2015-2016 Fiscal year Interim Financial Statements Nine Months Ended March 31, 2016 
d) Building Department Activity Report – April 2016 
e) Nationwide Increase in Opioid Overdose  
 

P-3 Letters of Appreciation:   
a) To Chief Roberts from Ryan Huffmaster Regarding Fire Department Response to a Fire 

in Their Offices 
b) To Mayor Slater from State Representative Martin Howrylak in Recognition of the City of 

Troy Being Named a Tree City USA by the Michigan Department of Natural Resources 
 

P-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 

Q. COMMENTS ON ITEMS ON OR NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM 

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC OUTSIDE OF TROY (NOT RESIDENTS OF 

TROY AND NOT FROM TROY BUSINESSES): 

 

R. CLOSED SESSION:  

R-1 No Closed Session Requested 
 

S. ADJOURNMENT: 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2016 
 

- 24 - 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Brian Kischnick, City Manager 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 9, 2016 
 

- 25 - 

 

 

2016 SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
August 8, 2016 .......................................... Joint Meeting–Troy City Council/Troy School Board 

September 19, 2016 ........................................ Joint Meeting–Troy City Council/Troy Chamber 

October 24, 2016 ......................... Joint Meeting–Troy City Council/Troy Planning Commission 
 
 
 

2016 SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
May 23, 2016 ................................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

June 13, 2016 .................................................................................................. Regular Meeting 

June 27, 2016 .................................................................................................. Regular Meeting 

July 11, 2016 .................................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

July 25, 2016 .................................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

August 8, 2016 ................................................................................................. Regular Meeting 

August 22, 2016 ............................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

September 19, 2016 ........................................................................................ Regular Meeting 

September 26, 2016 ........................................................................................ Regular Meeting 

October 10, 2016 ............................................................................................. Regular Meeting 

October 24, 2016 ............................................................................................. Regular Meeting 

November 14, 2016 ......................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

November 21, 2016 ......................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

December 5, 2016 ........................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

December 19, 2016 ......................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

 



 
PROCLAMATION IN RECOGNITION OF 

CUB SCOUT PACK 1718 

CLEANING UP JAYCEE PARK 

 
WHEREAS, Cub Scout Pack 1718 operates out of Costello Elementary School and runs a year-round 
program with a group of 29 boys.  Community service is an important part of being a Cub Scout; and 
 
WHEREAS, New this year, the Cub Scout Pack introduced a Community Service patch for boys who 
participate in at least 3 of their community service activities, including cleaning up a City park and the 
grounds at Costello Elementary, distributing flyers and collecting for Scouting for Food, making cards and 
singing carols for the residents of American House, creating and donating 12 cat houses for the Michigan 
Humane Society, and shoveling snow in their neighborhoods; and 
 
WHEREAS, On March 26, 2016, as part of the Community Service patch, the Cub Scouts, their Den 
Leaders and Cub Master volunteered to help clean up Jaycee Park.  The clean-up included raking, and 
clearing Jaycee Park of leaves, sticks, and litter; and 
 

WHEREAS, This year's community service events culminate on June 11 with the annual, much-
anticipated, washing of the Pack's adopted AH-1F Cobra Helicopter on display at the Selfridge Air 
National Guard Base's Air Park;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council extends special recognition to Cub 
Scout Pack 1718, Marlon Abbott Jr., Gabriel Alami, Noah Alami, Nathan Appledorn, Troy Barrett, 
Alexander Bartel, Elijah Burt, Brody Butler, Andrew Cermak, Macklin Ciurla, William Delaney, Enir Fjolla, 
Ethan Goodhew, Jackson Guthrie,  Cainan Hanbury,  Ryan Harper, Jalen Jones, Alejandra Lara, 
Anthony Leonard, Christopher Matichuk, Michael Matichuk, Anan Mukherjee, Alden Resh, Joey Riegling, 
Matthew Schriber, Jackson Springer, Benjamin Swales, Seran Varatharajah, Samuel Zoller; and Den 
Leaders: Chris Delaney, Tom Matichuk, Erika Resh, Mark Schriber; Committee Chair Mike Cermak; and 
Cub Master Ian Burt for your dedication and commitment to our community; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council and all of Troy’s residents extend heartfelt 
appreciation to Cub Scout Pack 1718 for increasing awareness about the importance of volunteering in 
one’s community.  You are al l  an inspiration to the Troy community and a credit to yourself, your 
family, the Troy School District, Costello Elementary School and the City of Troy. 
  
Presented this 9th day of May 2016. 

 

  

stewartc
Text Box
C-01 / J-03a



 
 

PROCLAMATION IN RECOGNITION OF 
TROY PUBLIC LIBRARY’S  

TEEN POETRY TEAM, ELEMENTS 
 

WHEREAS, The Troy Public Library has a newly formed Teen Poetry Team, called Elements, 
consisting of high school students Vedika Aigalikar, Jenny Boudon, Zamashenge Buthelezi, Raagini 
Chandra, Raul Dutta, Sonia Kore, and Rashika Rao; and 
 
WHEREAS, On Saturday, March 19, Elements won first prize at Louder than a Bomb 2016, a statewide 
youth poetry competition held at Wayne State University.  There were teams from the area including Ann 
Arbor, Detroit, Madison Heights, and Fraser.  This was the Troy Team’s very first time participating; and 
 

WHEREAS, Vedika Aigalikar, Jenny Boudon, Zamashenge Buthelezi, Raagini Chandra, Raul 
Dutta, Sonia Kore, and Rashika Rao, each individually performed an original poem, then four of the 
students read a group poem that they all wrote together. Their team score led them to victory; and 
 

WHEREAS, Louder than a Bomb brings hundreds of high school poets together in ways that are 
unthinkable in most other settings. A shared love of writing and performing creates bonds where typically 
there are boundaries. Students surmount cultural and socio-economic differences to take part in an 
experience where young writers learn about themselves while listening to the words of others; and  

WHEREAS, This is possible because the InsideOut Literary Arts Project has combined friendly 
competition with a grounded, contemporary and populist approach to poetry. This approach creates a 
culture where the telling of honest, authentic stories with the voices of young witnesses is not only 
valued, but is essential to building bridges between isolated populations;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council extends special recognition to the 
Troy Public Library’s Teen Poetry Team, Elements, for their creativity and dedication to poetry, 
collaboration and friendly competition with other teens throughout this region; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council and all of Troy’s residents congratulate Vedika 

Aigalikar, Jenny Boudon, Zamashenge Buthelezi, Raagini Chandra, Raul Dutta, Sonia Kore, and 

Rashika Rao for being shining examples of teens making a difference and wish all of the high school 

students continued success in all future endeavors.  
 

Presented this 9th day of May 2016. 

 

  
 

 

stewartc
Text Box
C-02 / J-03b



 

 

1 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

 

Date:          May 9, 2016                   
 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager     
  
From:  Tom Darling, Director of Finance/Administration 

Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
Subject: Public Hearing to establish a Special Assessment District for Asphalt Paving of the 

westerly 220’ of Cherry in Section 27 – Standard Resolution #4 
 
 
Background: 
 
On April 18, 2016 Troy City Council approved Standard Resolutions 1, 2 and 3 to prepare and 
approve plans and estimates for a Special Assessment District (SAD) for asphalt paving of the 
westerly 220’ of Cherry, in Section 27, and to set a Public Hearing to consider the approval of 
same on May 9, 2016. 
 
The affected property owners have been notified, and will have an opportunity to speak 
concerning this Special Assessment.  The project was requested by 4 of the 5 affected 
owners. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
The total cost of the project is $91,013.00.  The entire cost of this project is to be Special 
Assessed to the residents, as there is no existing gravel roadway.  This portion of Cherry is 
platted, but unimproved.   
 
The breakdown of their individual costs and the amortization of the 10 year payment plan 
are attached to this memorandum.   
 
Also attached is the Roll Certification, which becomes effective with approval of Standard 
Resolution #4, by the City Council. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

stewartc
Text Box
E-01



 

 

2 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

 
Recommendation: 
 
Staff is not recommending approval of this project.  A developer of record in the City 
controls, or has an interest in 55.02% of the affected frontage.   This request is a way to use 
the public’s funds for improvements that will then allow development of up to 7 residential 
sites.   
 
Attached to this memorandum are aerial views of situations similar to this that a developer 
improved themselves for construction, along with aerials of areas of the City developed by 
this particular developer where the improvements to the roadway were a cost of the 
development. 
 
Due to these factors, staff is recommending a ‘no’ vote on Standard Resolution #4. 
 
 
Nl/nl H:SpecialAsses\Cherry\Memo StandRes 4 05.09.16.docx 



Parcel ID # Street Owner Front Feet % FF Yes/No 
(1/0) % Yes Cost $/FrFt

88-20-27-156-016 Vac Cherry N. N. Moshier (unrecorded QC) 50.00 11.96 1 11.96 10,886.72 217.73
88-20-27-156-019 Vac Cherry N. O. A. & G. Birth 50.00 11.96 0 0.00 10,886.72 217.73
88-20-27-156-026 Vac Cherry N. Orion Homes (Mike Lamb) 100.00 23.92 1 23.92 21,773.44 217.73
88-20-27-301-001 2212 Livernois E. King (138' on Cherry S.) 138.00 33.01 1 33.01 30,047.35 217.73
88-20-27-301-021 Vac Cherry S. Orion Homes (Mike Lamb) 80.00 19.14 1 19.14 17,418.76 217.73

5 418.00 100.00 4 88.04 91,013.00 217.73

91,013.00Total Cost  

City of Troy Assessing Department
SAD Paving for Wly 391 feet of Cherry (218 lf Assessable Properties)

Petition Analysis
 



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax
maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this

data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

115

1:

Feet1150 57

licarila
Typewritten Text
138.00

licarila
Typewritten Text
80.00

licarila
Typewritten Text
50.00

licarila
Typewritten Text
100.00

licarila
Typewritten Text
50.00

licarila
Typewritten Text
| 18.00 |

licarila
Text Box
Orion

licarila
Text Box
Orion

licarila
Text Box
Orion

licarila
Text Box
O.A. & G Birth

licarila
Text Box
E. King

licarila
Text Box
Cherry Street SAD - Paving

licarila
Text Box
03/16/16









Project Name

Project # 14.907.1  

   
Assessment

int. @.06 10,886.72
  

Year Principal Interest Payment Balance
1 1,088.67$     1,088.67$      9,798.05$     
2 1,088.67$     587.88$       1,676.55$      8,709.38$     
3 1,088.67$     522.56$       1,611.23$      7,620.70$     
4 1,088.67$     457.24$       1,545.91$      6,532.03$     
5 1,088.67$     391.92$       1,480.59$      5,443.36$     
6 1,088.67$     326.60$       1,415.27$      4,354.69$     
7 1,088.67$     261.28$       1,349.95$      3,266.02$     
8 1,088.67$     195.96$       1,284.63$      2,177.34$     
9 1,088.67$     130.64$       1,219.31$      1,088.67$     
10 1,088.67$     1,088.67$      (0.00)$           

TOTAL 10,886.72$   2,874.09$    13,760.81$    

Vacant Cherry

City of Troy
Assessing Department

Cherry Bituminous Paving

Amortization Table
10 Year

88-20-27-156-016

Moshier (Orion)
 



Project Name

Project # 14.907.1  

   
Assessment

int. @.06 10,886.72
  

Year Principal Interest Payment Balance
1 1,088.67$     1,088.67$      9,798.05$     
2 1,088.67$     587.88$       1,676.55$      8,709.38$     
3 1,088.67$     522.56$       1,611.23$      7,620.70$     
4 1,088.67$     457.24$       1,545.91$      6,532.03$     
5 1,088.67$     391.92$       1,480.59$      5,443.36$     
6 1,088.67$     326.60$       1,415.27$      4,354.69$     
7 1,088.67$     261.28$       1,349.95$      3,266.02$     
8 1,088.67$     195.96$       1,284.63$      2,177.34$     
9 1,088.67$     130.64$       1,219.31$      1,088.67$     
10 1,088.67$     1,088.67$      (0.00)$           

TOTAL 10,886.72$   2,874.09$    13,760.81$    

Vacant Cherry

10 Year

88-20-27-156-019

Amortization Table

City of Troy
Assessing Department

Cherry Bituminous Paving
Birth



Project Name

Project # 14.907.1  

   
Assessment

int. @.06 21,773.44
  

Year Principal Interest Payment Balance
1 2,177.34$     2,177.34$      19,596.10$   
2 2,177.34$     1,175.77$    3,353.11$      17,418.75$   
3 2,177.34$     1,045.13$    3,222.47$      15,241.41$   
4 2,177.34$     914.48$       3,091.83$      13,064.06$   
5 2,177.34$     783.84$       2,961.19$      10,886.72$   
6 2,177.34$     653.20$       2,830.55$      8,709.38$     
7 2,177.34$     522.56$       2,699.91$      6,532.03$     
8 2,177.34$     391.92$       2,569.27$      4,354.69$     
9 2,177.34$     261.28$       2,438.63$      2,177.34$     
10 2,177.34$     2,177.34$      (0.00)$           

TOTAL 21,773.44$   5,748.19$    27,521.63$    

Vacant Cherry

Amortization Table
10 Year

88-20-27-156-026

City of Troy
Assessing Department

Cherry Bituminous Paving
Orion Homes



Project Name

Project # 14.907.1  Ely 138.00 lf

   
Assessment

int. @.06 30,047.35
  

Year Principal Interest Payment Balance
1 3,004.74$     3,004.74$      27,042.62$   
2 3,004.74$     1,622.56$    4,627.29$      24,037.88$   
3 3,004.74$     1,442.27$    4,447.01$      21,033.15$   
4 3,004.74$     1,261.99$    4,266.72$      18,028.41$   
5 3,004.74$     1,081.70$    4,086.44$      15,023.68$   
6 3,004.74$     901.42$       3,906.16$      12,018.94$   
7 3,004.74$     721.14$       3,725.87$      9,014.20$     
8 3,004.74$     540.85$       3,545.59$      6,009.47$     
9 3,004.74$     360.57$       3,365.30$      3,004.73$     
10 3,004.74$     3,004.74$      (0.00)$           

TOTAL 30,047.35$   7,932.50$    37,979.85$    

2212 Livernois

10 Year

88-20-27-301-001

City of Troy
Assessing Department

Cherry Bituminous Paving

Amortization Table

King



Project Name

Project # 14.907.1  

   
Assessment

int. @.06 17,418.76
  

Year Principal Interest Payment Balance
1 1,741.88$     1,741.88$      15,676.88$   
2 1,741.88$     940.61$       2,682.49$      13,935.01$   
3 1,741.88$     836.10$       2,577.98$      12,193.13$   
4 1,741.88$     731.59$       2,473.46$      10,451.26$   
5 1,741.88$     627.08$       2,368.95$      8,709.38$     
6 1,741.88$     522.56$       2,264.44$      6,967.50$     
7 1,741.88$     418.05$       2,159.93$      5,225.63$     
8 1,741.88$     313.54$       2,055.41$      3,483.75$     
9 1,741.88$     209.03$       1,950.90$      1,741.88$     
10 1,741.88$     1,741.88$      (0.00)$           

TOTAL 17,418.76$   4,598.55$    22,017.31$    

Vacant Cherry

10 Year

88-20-27-301-021

City of Troy
Assessing Department

Cherry Bituminous Paving
Orion Homes

Amortization Table



 
88-20-27-156-016 
NANCY F MOSHIER 
450 N NORTHSHORE 
LAKE ORION  MI  48362 
 

  
88-20-27-156-019 
OLAF & GLADYS BIRTH 
237 E BAKER 
CLAWSON  MI  48017-1668   

 
88-20-27-156-026 
ORION HOMES 
327 EVALINE 
TROY MI  48085 

 
 
88-20-27-301-001 
EDWARD KING 
2212 LIVERNOIS 
TROY  MI  48083 
 

 
88-20-27-301-021 
ORION HOMES 
327 EVALINE 
TROY  MI  48085 

 
 

   
 

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
Formatted for Avery 5160 & 5960 
 

  



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, May 9, 2016, at 7:30 P.M. to 

consider the approval of a Special Assessment District (SAD) for the paving of the 

easterly 220’ of Cherry  in Section 27, including the following properties: 

 

88-20-27-156-016   Vacant Cherry, Troy, MI.  (Cost $10,886.72) 
88-20-27-156-019   Vacant Cherry, Troy, MI.  (Cost $10,886.72) 
88-20-27-156-026   Vacant Cherry, Troy, MI.  (Cost $21,773.44) 
88-20-27-301-001   2212 Livernois, Troy, MI.  (Cost $30,047.35), and 
88-20-27-301-021   Vacant Cherry, Troy, MI.  (Cost $17,418.76) 
 
 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       M. Aileen Dickson, City Clerk 
        
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax
maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this

data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

437

1:

Feet4370 218

licarila
Text Box
Enterprise Section 27



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax
maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this

data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

188

1:

Feet1880 94

licarila
Text Box
Evaline Section 15



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax
maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this

data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

207

1:

Feet2070 104

licarila
Text Box
Langston Section 22



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax
maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this

data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

262

1:

Feet2620 131

licarila
Text Box
Quill Creek (Booth) Section 3



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax
maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this

data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

493

1:

Feet4930 247

licarila
Text Box
Section 28 - Summit Park/Clover Ridge

licarila
Line

licarila
Line

licarila
Line

licarila
Line

licarila
Line

licarila
Line

licarila
Line

licarila
Line

licarila
Line

licarila
Line



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax
maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this

data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

577

1:

Feet5770 289

licarila
Text Box
Addison Heights Section 27

licarila
Line

licarila
Line

licarila
Line

licarila
Line

licarila
Line

licarila
Line

licarila
Line

licarila
Line

licarila
Line

licarila
Line



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax
maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this

data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

469

1:

Feet4690 235

licarila
Text Box
Sussex Park Section 25



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax
maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this

data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

201

1:

Feet2010 100

licarila
Text Box
Wright Section 9



CITY OF TROY

Special Assessment Roll Number: 14.907.1 For defraying the expense of construction for:

Westerly 220 feet of Cherry - Bituminous (Asphalt) Paving

CITY OF TROY

COUNTY OF OAKLAND

STATE OF MICHIGAN

I hereby certify and report that the foregoing is a special assessment roll, and the assessment made by me

pursuant to a resolution of the City Council adopted on the 9th day of May A.D.

2016 , for the purpose of paying that part of the cost which the Council decided should be  paid and borne by

special assessmentfor the purpose of Asphalt Paving of westerly 220' of Cherry Street

That in making such assessment I have, as near as may be and according to my judgement, conformed in

all things to the direction contained in the resolution of the Council herinbefore referred to, and the Charter of the City

relating to such assessments.

Dated at the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan on this 9th day of May

A.D., 2016 .

Leger A. (Nino) Licari,          City Assessor

Advertised:

CITY OF TROY

COUNTY OF OAKLAND

STATE OF MICHIGAN

I hereby certify that the above and foregoing assesment roll was filed on the 9th day of

May A.D., 2016 , and approved and confirmed by the Council of the City of Troy on the

9th day of May A.D., 2016 .

M. Aileen Dickson, City Clerk

In the name of the People of the State of Michigan

To the Treasurer of the City of Troy, in the County of Oakland, Michigan.

You are hereby commanded to collect from each of the several persons assessed in the Special Assessment

Roll hereunto annexed, the amount of money assessed to and set opposite his name therein, said amount being payable in

10 annual installments due March 1, 2017

respectively, with interest at the rate of six percent (6%) per annum or such other rate of interest per annum which is not

in excess of 1% of the rate borne by bonds issued in anticipation of the collection of said special assessment roll from and

after March 1, 2017 .

And in case any named in said Roll shall neglect or refuse to pay his assessment upon demand, after the same

becomes due, you are hereby authorized to levy and collect the same by distress and sale of the goods and chattels of

such person, and return said Roll and Warrant, together with your doing thereon within sixty (60) days;  for so doing this

shall be your sufficient Warrant.

Given under my hand and Seal of the City of Troy, Michigan, this 9th day of May

A.D., 2016 .

M. Aileen Dickson, City Clerk



Standard Resolution No. 4  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution 2016- 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council HAS CAUSED Special Assessment Roll No. 14.907.1 to BE 
PREPARED for the purpose of defraying the Special Assessment District’s portion of the 
following described public improvement in the City of Troy; 
 
Bituminous Paving of the easterly 220’ of Cherry Street 
 
AND WHEREAS, Troy City Council and the City Assessor HAVE MET after due legal notice 
and HAVE REVIEWED said Special Assessment Roll and HAVE HEARD all persons 
interested in said Special Assessment Roll appearing at said hearing; 
 
AND WHEREAS, Troy City Council IS SATISFIED with said Special Assessment Roll as 
prepared by the City Assessor; 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT Special Assessment Roll No. 14.907.1 in the amount 
of $91,013.00 is hereby CONFIRMED as prepared by the City Assessor, a copy of which shall 
be attached to, and become a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
May 4, 2016 
 
 
TO:    Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Thomas Darling, Director of Finance Services 
    
SUBJECT: Adoption of the 2016/17 Annual City Budget and 3-Year Budget  
 

 
Attached is a resolution to formally adopt both the 2016/17 annual City budget and the 3-year budget, 
per discussions at special City Council meetings on April 21 and April 25, 2016. 
 
The budget resolution reflects a total millage rate of 10.4 mills for 2016/17 as well as the 2017/18 and 
2018/19 fiscal years.  Final millage rate requirements can be summarized as follows: 

 
             2016/17         2017/18         2018/19 
 
General Operating  6.50  6.50  6.50 
Capital   1.53  1.53  1.53 
Refuse   1.07  1.07  1.07 
Library   0.70  0.70  0.70 
Debt    0.60  0.60  0.60 
 
Total Millage Rate          10.40          10.40          10.40 
 

 
 

       

stewartc
Text Box
E-02



 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

Reconciliation of Study Session Draft to Final Proposed Budget

Capital Projects Fund Estimated Proposed

2015/2016 2016/2017

Total Expenditures and Other Uses Per Draft 23,798,670    18,784,220     

Police UPS Generator Roll Forward (95,000)           95,000             

Police Gun Range Updates 50,000            -                        

Total Expenditures and Other Uses Per Final 23,753,670    18,879,220     

 



 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  March 31, 2016 
 
 
To:   Troy City Council Members 
  
From:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager 

Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
Kurt Bovensiep, Public Works Manager 

  
 
Subject: Agreement with North Woodward Community Foundation for Use of Public Property for 

“Troy Family Daze” Festival 
 
 

History 
 
At the July 21, 2014 study session, City Administration presented a request from the North Woodward 
Community Foundation (“NWCF”) to allow the Troy Family Daze festival to be hosted on City owned 
property. During the discussions, NWCF presented that the organization would take full responsibility 
for the festival and pay the City of Troy a flat fee for the cost of use of the property. By consensus, 
City Council directed City Administration to enter into negotiations with NWCF to hold the event on 
the Civic Center property beginning in September of 2015. 
 
On December 15, 2014, Troy City Council passed a resolution adopting an agreement that allowed 
the NWCF to use a portion of the Civic Center Campus for the next eight (8) years beginning in 
September 2015 (Resolution # 2014-12-163). The agreement specifically addressed NWCF 
reimbursing the City of Troy for the use of the property. 
 
 3. Reimbursement Fee 

NWCF agrees to pay to the CITY a flat fee of $10,000.00 for each year of the term, and 
payment will be tendered within 30 days after close of the Festival to compensate CITY 
for NWCF’s use of the Property identified in Exhibit 1. After the 2015 Festival, each 
yearly fee shall be increase from the previous year by the Consumer Price Index (“CPI”) 
for the Greater Metropolitan Detroit area, as long as the CPI increase does not exceed 
2% per year. Each year by June 1, NECF shall provide to the City Manager’s Troy Daze 
Executive Committee appointee a copy of its annual financial statements for the 
previous fiscal year. 

 
As detailed in the attached letter from Tom Kaszubski, President of Troy Family Daze Executive 
Board and Executive Director of the North Woodward Community Foundation, the festival’s revenue 
did not meet its expenses and is requesting that City Council consider forgiving the flat fee for the use 
of City property in the amount of $10,000.00 for the 2015 festival. 
 
 
 
 
 

stewartc
Text Box
H-01



 
 

2 

 

 
Options 
 

 Require payment in full from NWCF 
 Require half of payment now and the other half after 2016 festival 
 Require only half payment now 
 Require only half payment after 2016 festival 
 Require only half payment and consider the other half as a fireworks display sponsorship 
 Forgive the entire payment and consider forgiveness as a fireworks display contribution 

 
Recommendation 
 
Staff considers the Troy Family Daze Festival as a community benefit and desires to continue the 
partnership with the North Woodward Community Foundation. To continue this partnership, staff 
recommends a cost-sharing proposal where the City of Troy sponsors the fireworks display this year 
at a cost of $5,000 and provides the Troy Family Daze Festival an opportunity to defer the remaining 
payment of $5,000 to the close of the 2016 festival. Staff also recommends a continued sponsorship 
of the fireworks display for future years. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

3 

 

 



 
 

4 

 
 



 

 

G: Correspondence/Menig – Agenda Item TCSA ratification 2016-04-19 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Date:  April 19, 2016 
 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  Jeanette Menig, Human Resources Director 
    
 
Subject: Contract Ratification – Troy Communication Supervisors Association (TCSA) 2016-2021  

(Introduced by Jeanette Menig, Human Resources Director) 
 
 

History 
The Troy Communication Supervisors Association (TCSA) represents the eight Communication 
Supervisors in the Police Department.  The City of Troy and TCSA recently reached a tentative 
agreement for a five-year successor collective bargaining agreement to replace the contract that will 
expire June 30, 2016. 
 
Financial 
As seen in the attached Tentative Agreement Summary, this agreement provides annual wage increases 
each year, with lump sum payments in some years, and a modest enhancement to hourly shift premium.  
A Tuition Reimbursement Program has also been implemented for this unit.  
 
Recommendation 
City management recommends approval of the tentative agreement between the City of Troy and TCSA 
for a five-year collective bargaining agreement for the period July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2021. 
 
A summary of the tentative agreement and the resulting contract language changes are attached. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

stewartc
Text Box
I-04



G:TCSA Negotiations/TA Summary wChanges compared  2016-04 

 

TENTATIVE AGREEMENT SUMMARY 
City of Troy and TCSA 

2016-2021 Collective Bargaining Agreement 
(with side-by-side comparison where applicable) 

   

 
ISSUE CURRENT  TENTATIVE AGREEMENT 

Contact Duration   Five years  
 
Wages 

   
July 1, 2016 
July 1, 2017 
July 1, 2018 
July 1, 2017 
July 1, 2018 

 
1.5% plus $350 lump sum 
1.5% plus $350 lump sum 
2.0%  
2.0%  
2.0%  

 
Health Insurance 

 
Eye exams and lenses every 24 months 

 
Eye exams and lenses every 12 months 
 

Compensatory Time Unused accumulated compensatory 
time paid to the employee quarterly. 

Unused accumulated compensatory time 
paid to the employee annually. 

   

Non-Duty Disability Accrual of paid leave ends after 120 
days on disability. 

Paid leave accrual continues as usual for 
one year.  In the second and third year 
only sick leave accrues.  After three years 
of non-duty disability leave time no longer 
accrues and health insurance ceases. 

    
Retirement The percent contribution for current 

employees promoted into the unit is 
determined by the date promoted. 

The percent contribution for current 
employees promoted into the unit is 
determined by original hire date. 

    

Shift Bonus Afternoons $ .35/hr Afternoons $ .45/hr 
 Midnights $ .45/hr Midnights $ .55/hr 
    
Retiree Medical Insurance  Require eligible retirees (and their 

spouses) to enroll in Medicare A and B. 
    

Tuition Reimbursement   Add a tuition reimbursement program 
     

 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 

TCSA 2016-2021 Tentative Agreement (March 10, 2016)  Page 1 of 4 
 

 

TENTATIVE AGREEMENT  

City of Troy and Troy Command Supervisors Association (TCSA) 
2016-2021 Collective Bargaining Agreement 

 
 
 
CONTRACT TERM 
Five (5) years 
 
 
17.  OVERTIME 
B. A Communications Supervisor will be paid for such overtime at the rate of one and one-

half (1 ½) times his regular hourly rate.  At the employee’s option, payment for overtime 
may be declined in favor of banking compensatory time at the rate of one and one-half 
(1 ½) hours compensatory time for every one hour of earned overtime.  Each 
employee’s bank of compensatory time shall not exceed thirty (30) hours per quarter 120 
hours at any time.  All unused accumulated compensatory time shall be paid to the 
employee not later than the second pay after June 30, September 30, December 31 and 
March 31, at the employee’s current straight time rate as of those dates.  The granting 
use of compensatory time off shall not be granted if the absence creates additional 
personnel costs to the employer, and is subject to regulation as detailed in Police 
Department rules, policies and procedures. 

 
 
27.  DISABILITY INSURANCE 
C. Employees who are absent from work 120 consecutive days or longer will cease to 

accrue paid leave time.  However, in the case of absence for duty-related injury, accrual 
of paid leave time will cease after a period of absence of one (1) year. 

 
 
28.  NON-DUTY DISABILITY (add section and re-number subsequent sections) 
 
A.   Employees who are absent from work for reasons of non-duty disability shall 

continue to accrue benefits pursuant to rules governing leave accrual during the 
first full year of their disability.   

 
B.   During the second and third years of the non-duty disability, sick leave only shall 

accrue; however, hospitalization insurance shall be continued even if the 
employee utilizes all accrued leave time during that period.   

 
C.   After three years of non-duty disability, employees shall neither accrue additional 

leave time nor shall said employee receive hospitalization insurance paid for by 
the Employer. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

TCSA 2016-2021 Tentative Agreement (March 10, 2016)  Page 2 of 4 
 

 
30.  HOSPITALIZATION AND MEDICAL INSURANCE 

 
A. The Employer shall provide hospitalization and medical insurance for employee and 

family equal to or better than the following: 
1. Blue Cross Community Blue PPO Plan 1 Modified, including the following: 

a. $10/$40 prescription drug rider with mandatory generic, prior authorization, 
step therapy, and 2X MOPD. 

b. $30 office visit co-pay 
c. $50 emergency room co-pay 
d. $30 chiropractic office visit co-pay 
e. $250/$500 basic deductible 

2. Vision care every 24 months 12 months 
 
E.   There shall be a contract reopener at either party’s request on the sole issue of 

health care for July 1, 2018, July 1 2019, and/or July 1, 2020. 
 
 
33.  RETIREMENT 
 
B. Defined Contribution Plan 

Effective June 15, 2000, new hires and employees transferring into the bargaining unit 
who are participating in another City Defined Contribution Plan at the time of such 
transfer shall participate in an IRS §401(a) Defined Contribution (DC) Pension Program 
as a member of this unit. 
1.  Contribution rates: 

  Employee – 4% 
  Employer – 12% (employees hired before 1/1/04) 
 11% (employees hired on or after 1/1/04 – 6/30/05) 
 10% (employees hired on or after 7/1/05 – 6/30/13) 

 8% (employees who enter bargaining unit hired on or after 7/1/2013) 
 
C.   Retiree Medical Insurance 
 
 1.  For employees hired before January 2, 2006: 

Upon regular retirement, early retirement or disability retirement, employees will be 
eligible for health insurance, equivalent to that received by members of the bargaining 
unit at the time of the employee’s retirement if they meet the age and service 
requirements whether they participate in the Defined Benefit or Defined Contribution 
Pension Plan.  Such insurance will be provided for two-person coverage for retiree 
and spouse (or dependent child) at the time of retirement, at the rate of 4% per 
complete year of retirement service with the City of Troy, provided that the retiree or 
spouse is drawing pension benefits pursuant to the City of Troy Retirement 
Ordinance. 
 
Effective 7/1/2013, the City pays 3% for the monthly cost of health care for each 
future year of credited service to a maximum of 90%.  Current employees who as of 
7/1/2013 would be eligible for 90% or more of City paid health insurance shall not 
have that amount reduced as a result of this paragraph. 
 
Retirees (and covered spouses) with retiree medical insurance shall each enroll 
in Medicare Part A and B when eligible, at the retiree’s expense, and must notify 
the employer that they enrolled.  Upon enrollment in Medicare A and B the 
employer’s insurance shall become supplemental to Medicare. 

 



 

 

TCSA 2016-2021 Tentative Agreement (March 10, 2016)  Page 3 of 4 
 

 
34.  WAGES 
 
A. Annual salaries for Communications Supervisors and Communications Managers are 

outlined in the following schedule: 
 
Communications Supervisors: 
 Effective date of ratification of 

the Agreement–June 30, 2014 
July 1, 2014- 

June 30, 2015 
July 1, 2015-

June 30, 2016 
Hire $52,520 $53,045 $53,575 
End of Probation (1 Year) $55,045 $55,595 $56,151 
2 Years $57,570 $58,146 $58,727 
4 Years + $60,095 $60,696 $61,303 
 

Communications Manager: 
 Effective date of ratification of 

the Agreement–June 30, 2014 
July 1, 2014- 

June 30, 2015 
July 1, 2015-

June 30, 2016 
Start $64,640 $65,286 $65,939 
After Probation (1 Year) $66,660 $67,327 $68,000 
2 Years $68,680 $69,367 $70,060 
 
Communications Supervisors: 

 July 1, 2016 July 1, 2017 July 1, 2018 July 1, 2019 July 1, 2020 

 1.5% 
$350 lump sum 

1.5% 
$350 lump sum 

2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 

Start $54,379 $55,195 $56,299 $57,425 $58,574 

1 Year* $56,993 $57,848 $59,005 $60,185 $61,389 

2 Years $59,608 $60,502 $61,712 $62,946 $64,205 

4 Years  $62,223 $63,156 $64,419 $65,707 $67,021 

 
Communications Manager: 

 July 1, 2016 July 1, 2017 July 1, 2018 July 1, 2019 July 1, 2020 

 1.5% 
$350 lump sum 

1.5% 
$350 lump sum 

2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 

Start $66,928 $67,932 $69,291 $70,677 $72,091 

1 Year* $69,020 $70,055 $71,456 $72,885 $74,343 

2 Years $71,111 $72,178 $73,622 $75,094 $76,596 

*Subject to correction for mathematical error * End of Probation 
 
Effective upon the date of ratification of the Agreement, each current employee in the 
bargaining unit shall receive a signing bonus of nine hundred and fifty dollars ($950.00) 
less appropriate tax deductions.  Effective July 1, 2014, each current employee in the 
bargaining unit shall receive a lump sum bonus of two hundred and fifty dollars ($250.00) 
less appropriate tax deductions. 

 
B. If an employee does not receive a step increase in accordance with the appropriate 

schedule above, the matter shall be subject to the grievance procedure.  Within thirty (30) 
days after the date of the denial, the proposed step increase shall again be reviewed.  The 
involved employee shall be advised of this review and shall have the opportunity to 
discuss it with the reviewing employee(s), the Captain, and the Chief.  The probationary 
period for employees will be one (1) year. 

 
 
 
 



 

 

TCSA 2016-2021 Tentative Agreement (March 10, 2016)  Page 4 of 4 
 

 
C. Employees regularly scheduled by the City to work on the second or third shift (commonly 

referred to as the Afternoon and Midnight shifts, respectively) shall receive a shift bonus.  
The shift bonus shall be as follows:  
Second Shift (Afternoons) - $.35 $.45  Third Shift (Midnights) - $.45 $.55.  If employees 
supervised by members of this association are paid a shift bonus higher than those listed 
above, those members will receive shift bonuses equal to those paid to their subordinates. 

 
D. For the 2013-2016 2016 – 2021 contract, employees whose salaries exceed the annual 

salaries set forth in Section A above shall receive the same across the board wage 
increases of 1.0% and the same lump sum bonuses on the same schedule as in Section 
A. 

 
E.   There shall be a contract reopener at either party’s request on the sole issue of 

wages for July 1, 2020. 
 
 
 
Add new Article (and re-number subsequent sections) 
## TUITION REIMBURSEMENT 
A. Employees must have successfully completed their initial probationary period to be 

eligible to apply for tuition reimbursement. 

B. Courses must be: 

1. Completed from an accredited institution, and 

2. Courses leading to an Associate Degree, Bachelor Degree, Master Degree or 
Certification Program that is organizationally-related. 

C. Reimbursement will be granted only for pre-approved courses completed with a 
grade of “C” (2.0) or better. 

D. Reimbursement is for the cost of tuition only and does not include other expenses or 
fees such as registration fees, books, mileage, parking fees, laboratory fees, etc. 

E. Maximum reimbursement per employee, per fiscal year is $2,500. 

F. Employees who receive any monetary assistance from other sources, such as 
scholarships, grants-in-aid, G.I. Bill, etc., shall be eligible only for reimbursement of 
the difference between the outside financial assistance and the actual tuition costs. 

G. Prior to receipt of reimbursement, the employee will be required to sign a letter 
agreeing to repay the reimbursement if the employee terminates employment 
(including retirement) or is terminated by the City within (1) year of receiving the 
reimbursement. 

 
 
 
FOR THE UNION:     FOR THE CITY: 
 
_________________________________  __________________________________ 
 
_________________________________  __________________________________ 
 
Date: ________________    Date: ________________ 
 



 

 

 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
May 2, 2016                          
 
 
To:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members     
  
From:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager 

Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
Tom Darling, Director of Financial Services 
Glenn Lapin, Economic Development Specialist 

 
Subject: Approval of the Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority (BRA) Proposed Fiscal Year 

2016/17 and 3-Year Budget 
 

 
The Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority (BRA) recommended approval of its proposed 2016/17 
and 3-year budget at the April 19, 2016 BRA meeting. City management recommends that City 
Council approve the BRA’s proposed 2016/17 and 3-year budget. 
 
 

stewartc
Text Box
I-05



Brownfield Redevelopment Authority

County of Oakland, State of Michigan

Introduction

The Brownfield Redevelopment Financing Act, Act 381 of 1996, authorized the City of Troy to 

create the Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority (TBRA), which occurred on January 18, 

1999. The purpose of the TBRA is to implement Brownfield Plans, create Brownfield 

redevelopment zones, promote revitalization, redevelopment and reuse of distressed properties 

with the City.  Further, to utilize tax increment financing to assist the redevelopment.

The TBRA shall consist of not less thank five (5) persons and not more than nine (9) persons who 

serve for three year terms, and are appointed by the Mayor and approved by City Council.

Within this three year budget there are two active Brownfield Plans:  Brownfield Plan # 4 for the 

TCF Bank Branch and Brownfield Plan # 6 for the MJR Troy Grand Digital Cinema 16.

2016/17 through 2018/19 Budget

 1



Brownfield Redevelopment Authority

County of Oakland, State of Michigan

2015 2016 2016 2017 2018 2019

Actual Estimated Budget Budget Budget Budget

REVENUE

Property Taxes-TCF  $                  2,814  $             2,908  $              2,920  $             2,930  $             2,930  $            3,000 

Property Taxes-MJR                    13,502               86,813                91,670               85,760               86,000              87,070 

Interest Income                         691                 3,000                 1,200                 3,000                 3,000               3,000 
Total Revenues                   17,007              92,721              95,790              91,690              91,930             93,070 

EXPENDITURES
Administrative Expenses                      5,000                 5,000                 5,000                 5,000                 5,000               5,000 
Audit Fees                      1,800                 1,800                 1,800                 1,800                 1,800               1,800 
Tax Tribunals                             -                        -                        -                        -                        -                      - 
Payment to TCF Bank                      2,814                 2,908                 2,920                 2,930                 2,930               3,000 
Payment to MJR                    11,585                        -                        -                        -                        -                      - 
Other expenditures                             -                        -                        -                        -                        -                      - 
TOTAL - EXPENDITURES                   21,199                9,708                9,720                9,730                9,730               9,800 

Change in Fund Balance                    (4,192)              83,013              86,070              81,960              82,200             83,270 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 274,326                 270,134            270,134            353,147            435,107            517,307          

ENDING FUND BALANCE 270,134$              353,147$         356,204$         435,107$        517,307$        600,577$       

Beginning Balance 88,063$                 89,980$            89,980$            176,793$          262,553$          348,553$         
Loan payments from MJR 1,917                     86,813              91,670              85,760             86,000             87,070            
Loan payments (to) MJR -                            -                       -                      -                      -                     
Ending Balance 89,980                  176,793           181,650           262,553          348,553          435,623         

Unassigned Fund Balance 180,154                176,354           174,554           172,554          168,754          164,954         
Total Fund Balance 270,134$              353,147$         356,204$         435,107$        517,307$        600,577$       

014/15 through 2016/17 Budget

2016/17 through 2018/19 Budget

Revolving Fund/Fund Balance

 2



Brownfield Redevelopment Authority

County of Oakland, State of Michigan

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Budget Budget Budget Estimated Estimated

TCF Bank

Base Taxable Value  $               197,940  $          197,940  $          197,940  $         197,940  $         197,940 

Taxable Value                   342,280              342,280              345,703             349,160             352,651 

Captured Taxable Value                 144,340            144,340             147,763            151,220            154,711 

TCF Bank Tax Revenues                     2,930                2,930                3,000                3,070                3,140 

MJR Theater

Base Taxable Value  $            1,025,640  $       1,025,640  $       1,025,640  $      1,025,640  $      1,025,640 
Taxable Value                5,251,950           5,264,110           5,316,751          5,369,919          5,423,618 
Captured Taxable Value              4,226,310         4,238,470         4,291,111         4,344,279         4,397,978 

MJR Theater Tax Revenues                   85,760              86,000              87,070              88,150              89,240 

Millage Rates
City Less Debt Service                    9.8000               9.8000                9.8000               9.8000               9.8000 
County                    4.5456               4.5456                4.5456               4.5456               4.5456 
Community College                    1.5819               1.5819                1.5819               1.5819               1.5819 
Oakland County Transportation                    1.0000               1.0000                1.0000               1.0000               1.0000 
Intermediate School District                    3.3633               3.3633                3.3633               3.3633               3.3633 

Total                 20.2908            20.2908             20.2908            20.2908            20.2908 

Tax Capture and Millage
2016/17 through 2020/121

 3



Brownfield Redevelopment Authority

County of Oakland, State of Michigan

MJR Revolving Fund Debt Service MJR Interest and Admin Fees Totals
MJR

Admin Less Less Paid  Total Paid 
Beginning Interest Fees Payments on Payments on Ending Interest Interest Admin Admin on  Tax 

Year Balance (3%) (1%) Principal Interest/Admin Balance Paid Outstanding Paid Outstanding LSRRF  MJR 

2014/2015      463,495     13,905       4,635               (1,917)   480,118      1,917          11,988              -            4,635         1,917        13,502 

2015/2016      480,118     14,404       4,801         (53,991)             (32,822)   412,510    26,392                   -       6,430            3,006       86,813        86,813 

2016/2017      412,510     12,375       4,125         (75,030)             (10,730)   343,250    10,730            1,645              -            7,131       85,760        85,760 

2017/2018      343,250     10,298       3,433         (79,641)               (6,359)   270,981      6,359            5,584              -          10,564       86,000        86,000 

2018/2019      270,981       8,129       2,710         (84,451)               (2,613)   194,756      2,613          11,100              -          13,274       87,064        87,070 

2019/2020      194,756       5,843       1,948         (88,150)                        -   114,397             -          16,943              -          15,222       88,150        88,150 

2020/2021      114,397       3,432       1,144         (80,881)               (8,359)    29,733      8,359          12,016              -          16,366       89,240        89,240 

2021/2022       29,733          892          297           (1,351)             (29,571)             -    12,908                   -     16,663                   -       30,922        90,000 

Total 69,278  23,093  (463,495)     (92,371)           69,278  23,093  555,866  626,535   

MJR 
Revolving Loan Schedule

 4



 

 

1 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

 

May 2, 2016                          

 

To:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members     
  
From:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager 

Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
Tom Darling, Director of Financial Services 
Glenn Lapin, Economic Development Specialist 

 
Subject: Approval of the Joint Local Development Finance Authority Troy Subcommittee 

Proposed Fiscal Year 2016/17 and 3-Year Budget 
 

 

The Joint Local Development Finance Authority Troy Subcommittee (LDFA) recommended approval 
of its proposed 2016/17 budget at the April 25, 2016 LDFA meeting. City management recommends 
that City Council approve the LDFA’s proposed 2016/17 and 3-year budget. 

 

 

 

 

stewartc
Text Box
I-06



Local Development Financing Authority

County of Oakland, State of Michigan

Introduction

The Local Development Finance Authority, as established by The Local Development Financing Act, Act 281 of 1986, 
Section 125.2151, is composed of seven members and appointed for four-year terms by the Mayor subject to the 
approval of City Council. 

In 2003, the City of Troy established the Automation Alley SmartZone. Central to the SmartZone was the designation of 
an area as a certified technology park. This zone of approximately 75-acres was created as a Local Development Finance 
Authority (LDFA). The tax increment will be used to fund infrastructure for the Automation Alley Technology Park and 
establishment of a technology accelerator program to assist in technology based companies in bringing new products to 
the market. Council appointed a seven member Automation Alley SmartZone LDFA.

The Authority's primary objective is to encourage local development to prevent conditions of unemployment and to 
promote economic growth; to provide for the establishment of local development finance authorities and to prescribe 
their powers and duties; to provide for the creation of a board to govern an authority and to prescribe its powers and 
duties; to provide for the creation and implementation of development plans; to authorize the acquisition and disposal 
of interests in real and personal property; to permit the issuance of bonds and other evidences of indebtedness by an 
authority; to prescribe powers and duties of certain public entities and state officers and agencies; to reimburse 
authorities for certain losses of tax increment revenues; and to authorize and permit the use of tax increment 
financing.

2016/17 through 2018/19 Budget

 1



Local Development Financing Authority

County of Oakland, State of Michigan

2015 2016 2016 2017 2018 2019
Actual Estimated Budget Budget Budget Budget

REVENUE

Property Taxes (*)  $               140,456  $          183,650  $          180,900  $         160,050  $         135,370  $    139,550 

Interest Income                         871                 1,100                  1,100                 1,100                 1,100            1,100 

Total Revenues                 141,327            184,750             182,000            161,150            136,470       140,650 

EXPENDITURES

Automation Alley - Operations                    57,000               61,200                61,200               78,530               63,720          66,230 
Infrastructure                   106,000               53,000                72,360               53,000               53,000          53,000 
Tax Tribunals/Tax Refunds (*)                    36,774                        -                         -                        -                        -                   - 
Administrative Services                      5,000                 5,000                  5,000                 5,000                 5,000            5,000 
Marketing Costs (Membership)                    17,500               17,500                17,500               17,500               17,500          17,500 
Audit Fees                      1,950                 1,950                  1,950                 1,950                 1,950            1,950 
Other                    20,765                 5,000                  5,000                 5,000                 5,000            5,000 
TOTAL - EXPENDITURES                 244,989            143,650             163,010            160,980            146,170       148,680 

Change Before Other Financing                (103,662)              41,100               18,990                   170              (9,700)         (8,030)

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 116,495                 12,833              12,833              53,933             54,103             44,403        

ENDING FUND BALANCE 12,833$                53,933$           31,823$           54,103$          44,403$          36,373$     

(*) Note: 2014 property tax revenues captured approximately $36,800 in excess of the related taxable values from local units.
This amount will be refunded back to the local units in the 2015 fiscal year.

2014/15 through 2016/17 Budget

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19
Industrial Real Property Taxable Taxable Taxable
Real Base Taxable Value 13,016,380$      13,016,380$     13,016,380$     
Real Taxable Value 13,301,350        13,301,350       13,434,364       
Industrial Real Captured Value 284,970           284,970          417,984          

Commercial Personal Property
Personal Base Taxable Value 545,070             545,070            545,070            
Personal Taxable Value 2,051,210          2,071,722         2,092,439         
Commercial Personal Property Captured Value 1,506,140        1,526,652       1,547,369       

Industrial Personal Property
Personal Base Taxable Value 885,930             885,930            885,930            
Personal Taxable Value 6,313,855          5,131,140         5,131,140         
Commercial Personal Property Captured Value 5,427,925        4,245,210       4,245,210       

Total Captured Value 7,219,035$      6,056,832$     6,210,563$     

Tax Revenues
Industrial Real Revenues 7,870$              7,870$             11,540$            
Commercial Personal Revenues 36,590              37,090             37,600             
Industrial Personal Revenues 115,590             90,410             90,410             
Total Revenues 160,050$         135,370$        139,550$        

2016/17 through 2018/19 Budget

Captured Taxable Value

 2



Local Development Financing Authority

County of Oakland, State of Michigan

*1/2
Millage Oakland City School School 1/2 Community Hold

Rates County (Less Debt) OCPTA OP OP‐12 ISD College Harmless Total
Industrial Real 4.54560      9.80000    1.00000  -      9.00000     1.68165  1.58190      -           27.60915       
Commercial Personal 4.54560      9.80000    1.00000  3.00000    -       1.68165  1.58190      2.68705         24.29620       
Industrial Personal 4.54560      9.80000    1.00000  -      -       1.68165  1.58190      2.68705         21.29620       

2016/17 through 2018/19 Budget

 3



 

 

1 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
  

Date:             May 4, 2016 
 
To:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council     
  
From:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager 

Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
  Thomas Darling, Director of Financial Services 
    
Subject: Approval of the Troy Downtown Development Authority’s Proposed Fiscal Year 2016/17 

and Three Year Budget (Introduced by: Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & 
Community Development) 

 

 
The Downtown Development Authority (DDA) approved their proposed 2016/17 budget and three 
year budget at the April 20, 2016 DDA meeting. 
 
The City-captured tax rate of 10.4 mills, Oakland County 4.54 mills and Oakland County Community 
College 1.58 mills was used in determining the DDA property tax revenue, based on a captured 
taxable value of $74,312,460 in fiscal year 2016/17, with a projected property tax revenue of 
$1,228,200.   
 
The very positive tax revenue reflects the October 2013 amendment to the DDA Tax Increment 
Financing and Development Plan.  This latest Plan corrected the negative tax capture and eliminated 
the potential for default of three bond issues.  While the City of Troy issued bonds backed by the full 
faith and credit of the City, including its AAA bond rating to pay off the three DDA bond series.  The 
Plan amendment limits the DDA to three functions: debt service, maintenance cost and administrative 
fees.  In fiscal year 2016/17 the DDA will generate sufficient revenue to pay for both the bonds and 
maintenance, and administrative cost of $25,000 for the first time since the 2013 amendment.  In 
conclusion the 2013 DDA Plan amendment is successful in solving the dramatic reduction in DDA 
revenues. 
 
The DDA’s proposed fiscal year 2016/17 budget is hereby submitted to City Council for their 
approval. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

stewartc
Text Box
I-07



Downtown Development Authority

County of Oakland, State of Michigan

Introduction

In order to prevent further deterioration and to encourage economic development of the 
Downtown District, the City of Troy established the Downtown Development Authority of the City 
of Troy (the TDDA) pursuant to Act 197 of 1975 (Act 197) and an ordinance adopted by the City 
Council of the City of Troy on July 12, 1993 and amended on September 28, 1998, February 7, 
2000, August 5, 2002, December 16, 2002, June 4, 2007 and October 7, 2013.

The TDDA in it's first six Tax Increment Financing and Development Plans identified specific 
sources of funding to finance the implementation of a plan for physical improvements to the 
Downtown District identified in this plan as the Development Area.

The purpose of the Tax Increment Financing and Development Plans are to provide for the 
construction and financing of the necessary streets, sidewalks, street lighting, landscaping, 
parking garage and other facilities, Kmart and Civic Center projects, widening of Rochester and 
Big Beaver roads to improve traffic flow; provide and expand existing public facilities on the 
civic center site to serve the needs of the TDDA businesses and the citizens of the City of Troy; 
to fund improvements contained in the Big Beaver Corridor Study and to carry out the objectives 
of the TDDA so as to prevent the further deterioration of the Downtown Development Area while 
preserving and promoting economic growth for the benefit of all taxing units located within and 
benefited by the Troy Downtown Development Authority.

The TDDA issued three separate bond issues in 2001, 2002 and 2003.  The bonds were “naked tax 
increment bonds” secured solely by the tax increment revenues to be derived from the 
properties in the Downtown District.  This is rare in Michigan and was based on the then 
perceived strength of the Downtown District’s taxable values and the ability of properties in the 
Downtown District to generate sufficient tax increment revenues to pay the debt service on the 
bonds.  While the City has a AAA rating, its full faith and credit was not utilized or pledged for 
these three bond issues.

2016/17 through 2018/19 Budget

 1



Downtown Development Authority

County of Oakland, State of Michigan

The initial value of the district in 1993 was $439,230,530.  At the height of the aggregate value 
for the TDDA, the value peaked at $700,929,970 and captured value was $271,014,440.  In 
comparison, the projected value for 2016/2017 is $383,504,730 and the captured value is 
$74,312,460. The reduction in the separation between the base year value and current taxable 
value created a revenue stream reduction trending toward elimination.  This created a situation 
in which the TDDA would not be able to service the three bond issues and default was imminent. 

On October 7, 2013, a new Tax Increment Financing and Development Plan was approved.  The 
revised Plan eliminated properties that were a negative draw on the aggregate value of the 
TDDA.  The Plan authorized three functions: debt service, maintenance costs and administrative 
fees.  In addition, the TDDA and Plan were extended to 2033.  Finally, the City of Troy issued 
bonds backed by the full faith and credit of the City, including it's AAA bond rating to pay off the 
three TDDA bond series.  In conclusion, this budget demonstrates that the revision of the Plan 
provides for sufficient revenue to service the City of Troy bonds and thereby eliminates the 
threat of default of the TDDA bonds.

 2



Downtown Development Authority

County of Oakland, State of Michigan

2015 2016 2016 2017 2018 2019
Actual Estimated Budget Budget Budget Budget

REVENUE

Property Taxes  $        1,179,142  $     1,163,490  $        1,170,850  $      1,228,200  $          1,393,950  $    1,459,020 

City Contribution                         -                      -                         -                        - 

Interest Income                  1,581               3,000                         -                 3,000                    3,000              3,000 

Total Revenues          1,180,723       1,166,490          1,170,850         1,231,200            1,396,950      1,462,020 

EXPENDITURES

Administrative Expenses                         -                      -                         -               25,000                   25,500            26,000 
Audit Fees                  3,070               3,070                  3,070                 3,070                    3,070              3,070 
Tax Tribunals                (8,840)            100,000               100,000             100,000                 100,000          100,000 
Street Island Maintenance              142,079            169,500               179,380             177,550                 181,170          185,790 
Debt Service-Prior Issues                         -                      -                         -                        -                           -                     - 
Debt Service-Series 2013              958,688            951,000               950,760             941,900                 931,500          923,700 
Other expenditures                       70               1,000                  1,000                 1,000                    1,000              1,000 
TOTAL - EXPENDITURES          1,095,067       1,224,570          1,234,210         1,248,520            1,242,240      1,239,560 

Change Before Other Financing               85,656           (58,080)              (63,360)            (17,320)               154,710         222,460 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Bond Proceeds from General Fund                         -                      -                         -                        -                           -                     - 
Payments to Escrow Agent                         -                      -                         -                        -                           -                     - 
Total Financing Sources (Uses)                         -                      -                         -                       -                           -                     - 

SURPLUS (USE) OF FUND BALANCE               85,656           (58,080)              (63,360)            (17,320)               154,710         222,460 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 116,881             202,537          202,537             144,457            127,137               281,847         

ENDING FUND BALANCE 202,537$          144,457$       139,177$          127,137$        281,847$            504,307$      

2014/15 through 2016/17 Budget

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19
Taxable Taxable Taxable

Real Base Taxable Value (1993 initial/Revised 2013) 244,924,440$     244,924,440$   244,924,440$       
Real Taxable Value 283,345,090       290,408,730     293,312,818         
Real Captured Value 38,420,650       45,484,290     48,388,378         

Personal Base Taxable Value (1193 initial/Revised 2013) 64,267,830        64,267,830       64,267,830           
Personal Taxable Value 100,159,640       103,124,694     104,157,648         
Personal Captured Value 35,891,810       38,856,864     39,889,818         

Total Captured Value 74,312,460$     84,341,154$   88,278,196$       

Oakland Oakland City of
County Comm. College Troy Total

Millage Rates 4.5456 1.5819 10.4 16.5275

2016/17 through 2018/19 Budget

Captured Taxable Value

 3



Downtown Development Authority

County of Oakland, State of Michigan

Revenues Debt Service - Series 2013
Captured

Total Captured Tax Total
Taxable Taxable Revenues Debt

Year Value Value 16.5275 Principal Interest Service Net

2016/2017             383,504,730     74,312,460          1,228,200      260,000   681,663       941,663       286,537 

2017/2018             393,533,424     84,341,154          1,393,950      260,000   671,263       931,263       462,687 

2018/2019             397,470,465     88,278,195          1,459,020      260,000   663,463       923,463       535,557 

2019/2020             401,446,911     92,254,641          1,524,740      260,000   654,363       914,363       610,377 

2020/2021             405,463,156     96,270,886          1,591,120      375,000   638,488    1,013,488       577,632 

2021/2022*             409,517,788    100,325,518          1,658,130      440,000   618,113    1,058,113       600,017 

2022/2023             413,612,966    104,420,696          1,725,810      500,000   594,613    1,094,613       631,197 

2023/2024             417,749,096    108,556,826          1,794,170      600,000   567,113    1,167,113       627,057 

2024/2025**             426,104,078    116,911,808          1,932,260      745,000   537,213    1,282,213       650,047 

2025/2026             434,626,160    125,433,890          2,073,110      900,000   499,813    1,399,813       673,297 

2026/2027             443,318,683    134,126,413          2,216,770      975,000   452,938    1,427,938       788,832 

2027/2028             452,185,057    142,992,787          2,363,310   1,250,000   403,563    1,653,563       709,747 

2028/2029             461,228,758    152,036,488          2,512,780   1,250,000   352,781    1,602,781       909,999 

2029/2030             470,453,333    161,261,063          2,665,240   1,250,000   294,188    1,544,188    1,121,052 

2030/2031             479,862,400    170,670,130          2,820,750   1,275,000   227,906    1,502,906    1,317,844 

2031/2032             489,459,648    180,267,378          2,979,370   1,275,000   160,969    1,435,969    1,543,401 

2032/2033             499,248,841    190,056,571          3,141,160   1,275,000     94,031    1,369,031    1,772,129 

2033/2034             509,233,818    200,041,548          3,306,190   1,275,000     30,281    1,305,281    2,000,909 

*  = 1.0% Increase
** = 2% Increase

Projected Tax Capture to Debt
Schedule

 4



Downtown Development Authority

County of Oakland, State of Michigan

a.

b.

c. Increases in property values which occur for any other reason.

Tax increment revenues transmitted to the TDDA can be pledged for debt service on general 
obligation tax increment bonds issued by the municipality or tax increment revenue bonds 
issued by the TDDA.

TAX INCREMENT PROCEDURE

Tax increment revenue to be transmitted to the TDDA is generated when the current taxable 
value of all properties within a development area exceeds the initial assessed value of the 
properties. The initial assessed value is defined in Act 197 as the assessed value of all taxable 
property within the boundaries of the development area at the time the ordinance establishing 
the tax increment financing plan is approved, as shown by the most recent assessment roll of 
the municipality for which equalization has been completed at the time the ordinance is 
adopted. The current assessed value refers to the assessed value of all properties, real and 
personal, within the development area as established each year subsequent to the adoption of 
the tax increment financing plan. The amount in any one year by which the current taxable 
value exceeds the initial assessed value, including real and personal property, is defined as the 
"captured taxable value". The tax increment revenue transmitted to the TDDA results from 
applying the total tax levy of taxing units within the development area to the captured taxable 
value.

Inreases in  assessed values within a development area which result in the generation of tax 
increment revenues, can result from any of the following:

Construction of the new development occurring after the date establishing the "initial 
assessed value".

Construction of new rehabilitation, remodeling alterations, or additions accruing after the 
date establishing the "initial assessed value".

 5



Downtown Development Authority

County of Oakland, State of Michigan

If bonds are to be sold, the municipality may not pledge for annual debt service requirements 
in excess of 80% of the estimated tax increment revenue to be received from a development 
area for that year. In addition, the estimated annual debt service owed on bonds issued by the 
municipality may not exceed 80% of the estimated annual tax increment revenues. Should 
actual tax increment revenues fall below projections, any previously accumulated revenue 
would be devoted to retirement of the bonds. Any tax increment revenues collected in excess 
of the 80% measure described in Table 2 of the Development Plan will be used to pay current 
debt service on any bonds issued under the Plan. The bonds are subject to the Michigan 
Municipal Finance Act and may not mature in more than thirty years.

The TDDA may expend tax increment revenues only in accordance with the tax increment 
financing plan; surplus revenues revert proportionally to the prospective taxing jurisdictions. 
The tax increment financing plan may be modified upon approval of the governing body after 
notificaiton and hearings as required by Act 197. When the governing body finds that the 
purposes for which the plan was established have been accomplished, they may abolish the 
plan.

 6



 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
May 9, 2015 
 
 
TO:    Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Thomas Darling, Director of Financial Services 
   Paul Trosper, Superintendent of Water and Sewer 
       
SUBJECT: Amendment to Chapter 20 of the Troy City Code (Water and Sewer Rates) 
 

 
 
Attached is an amendment to Chapter 20 of the Troy City Code reflecting the water rate adjustment 
discussed during the 2016/17 budget study sessions.  The rate adjustment is a result of the Great 
Lakes Water Authority (GLWA) 10.8% increase estimates over the prior year. It should be noted that 
there is no rate adjustment proposed for Sanitary Sewer services in the 2016/17 fiscal year.  
 
This adjustment will provide sufficient funds to operate, maintain and make improvements to our 
systems.  The water and sewer rates are reviewed and adjusted annually when required.  The last 
adjustment was on July 1, 2015.  
 
The following water and sewer rates are recommended for City of Troy water bills rendered after 
July 1, 2016: 
 

2015/16 Rate       2016/17 Rate         Adjustment 
 
 Water      $34.40   $38.50            $4.10 
 Sewer        25.30                         25.30              0.00 
 
       $59.70   $63.80   $4.10 
 
The average residential bill will increase approximately $15.99 per quarter. 
 
 
Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that City Council approve the rates outlined herein and reflected in the 
amendments to Chapter 20 of the Troy City Code.  
 
 
 
 
 

stewartc
Text Box
I-08



 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
 
City Attorney’s Review as to Form and Legality 
 
 
____________________________  ______________ 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney   Date 
 
 
 



 

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 

CHAPTER 20 - CITY OF TROY ORDINANCE 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1. Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 20- 
City of Troy Ordinance.  
 
Section 2. Amendment 
 
Section 5.01 shall be amended as follows:  
  
5.01 Water Rates. Charges for water service to each premises within the City connected 

with the water supply system, for each quarterly (3 month) period, shall be $34.40 
$38.50 per 1,000 cubic feet.  Minimum quarterly bills shall be $27.86 $30.80.  

  
Private fire service lines shall be billed at a rate equal to four (4) times the minimum 
water bill. 

 
 Charges for water service to premises outside the City shall be 150% of those for 

water service within the City. 
 
 
 
Section 3. Repeal 
 
All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed only 
to the extent necessary to give this ordinance full force and effect. 
 
Section 4. Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved. Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced. This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 
 



 

Section 5. Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 6. Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective July 1, 2016 or upon publication, whichever 
shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a Regular Meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the ________ day of ________, ________. 
 
 
 
 

Dane Slater, Mayor 
 
 
 
M. Aileen Bittner, CMC, City Clerk 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL JOINT MEETING MINUTES-Draft April 18, 2016 
 

- 1 - 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

A Special Joint Meeting of the Troy City Council and the Planning Commission was held on 
Monday, April 18, 2016, at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd.  Mayor Slater called the meeting to 
order at 6:01 PM. 
 

B. ROLL CALL: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

C. DISCUSSION ITEMS:  

C-1 Introduction – City Manager Brian Kischnick 
 
City Manager Brian Kischnick introduced the evening’s topic for discussion, Cluster 
Developments, and explained that the Planning Commission has discussed this topic and 
welcomed this opportunity to have a joint discussion.  Mr. Kischnick introduced Planning 
Director Brent Savidant to present the topic. 
 

C-2 Cluster Development Presentation – Planning Director Brent Savidant 
 
Planning Director Brent Savidant began his presentation by defining the term, Cluster 
Development.  He continued by providing illustrations of existing site condominiums, as well as 
various samples of cluster developments.  Mr. Savidant shared that there are various benefits 
for creating cluster developments – some benefits include preserving some open space by 
clustering the units and reducing infrastructure; thus, allowing developers to maximize cost 
savings.  Mr. Savidant added that there is provision for cluster developments in the City of Troy 
Zoning Ordinance and there is one cluster development, Cedar Pines Woods, located in Troy.   
 
Mr. Savidant shared that the Planning Commission discussed cluster developments and came 
up with three goals:  1) Remove barriers to cluster development; 2) Incentivize; and 3) Permit 
design flexibility and creativity.   
 
Mr. Savidant explained that the existing Zoning Ordinance requires a minimum of 30% open 
space, and he would like to reduce that to 20%.  Mr. Savidant added that to obtain a density 
bonus requires 50% preserved as open space, plus meet one of three additional requirements, 
which is difficult to achieve.   
 

City Council Members Planning Commission Members 
Mayor Dane Slater Chairman Don Edmunds  
Edna Abrahim Ollie Apahidean 
Ethan Baker Karen Crusse 
Jim Campbell Carlton Faison 
Dave Henderson Michael Hutson 
Ellen Hodorek Tom Krent 
Mayor Pro Tem Ed Pennington Padma Kuppa 
 Philip Sanzica  (Absent) 
 John Tagle 

stewartc
Text Box
J-02a



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL JOINT MEETING MINUTES-Draft April 18, 2016 
 

- 2 - 

Mr. Savidant further explained that another goal is to encourage design flexibility and provide 
opportunities for the developer to be creative provided they maintain existing setbacks. He 
added that granting Planning Commission permission to waive internal setback provisions, 
provided specific provisions or standards have been met, will help achieve this goal.  Lastly, he 
explained the importance to incentivize by considering attached dwellings to maximize the 
footprint of the development and density bonuses to maximize the preservation of natural 
features.  
 
Mr. Savidant continued by providing additional illustrations of cluster developments involving 
various percentages of open space and involving density bonuses. 
 
Mr. Savidant summarized by posing the four discussion questions to determine the path going 
forward: 
 

 Approval authority by Planning Commission or City Council? 

 Maximum square footage of alternative housing types to achieve density bonus?  Is 
1,500 square feet too small? 

 Density Bonus – 50% Hard Cap OR Sliding Scale? 

 Permit attached units in R-1A and R-1B? 

 

C-3 Questions/Discussion 
 
Mayor Slater recommended discussing each question in order. 
 
 
 Approval authority by Planning Commission or City Council? 

Ms. Crusse began by stating that she feels City Council should be the final approval authority, 
especially pertaining to the density bonuses and the potential of holding public hearings 
regarding cluster developments.   
 
Chairman Edmunds concurred, and he expressed the importance of public input. 
 
Mayor Slater agreed explaining that City Council often received phone calls and emails 
regarding developments. 
 
 
 Maximum square footage of alternative housing types to achieve density bonus?  Is 1,500 

square feet too small? 

Mayor Slater began by stating that the maximum square footage is only to achieve the density 
bonus.  It does not require maximum square footage for the development.   
 
Ms. Kuppa indicated that she feels 1,500 square feet is an adequate maximum size.   
 
Council Member Abrahim agrees this is a realistic and feasible size in that many empty nesters 
are seeking to downsize, as well as for a starter home. 



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL JOINT MEETING MINUTES-Draft April 18, 2016 
 

- 3 - 

Mr. Hutson agreed that this square footage is more than adequate. 
 
Mr. Apahidean feels the square footage is acceptable, but he questioned whether the bonus 
should be more than 10%.  He further suggested increasing the incentive to 15% if you desire 
this product and square footage to make it attractive for developers. 
 
Mayor Slater agreed that if the goal is to encourage developments for empty nesters or starter 
homes, then the incentive percentage should be increased. 
 
Mr. Krent said many people approach him seeking smaller, quality homes in Troy.  He suggests 
creating reasons or incentives for developers to meet the demand by building good quality, 
smaller homes in Troy. 
 
Chairman Edmunds indicated that larger homes are not prohibited, they just would not receive 
the density bonus. 
 
Council Member Campbell clarified that the attached homes would each be a maximum of 
1,500 square feet, so it would be a 3,000 square foot building per lot.  He agreed that 1,500 
square feet maximum is acceptable. 
 
Mayor Slater asked Mr. Savidant if his intent is to bring in some developers to hear their point 
of view and what would incentivize them to bring their developments to Troy.  Mr. Savidant 
replied that the next step is to take tonight’s discussion and firm up a draft to present to the 
Planning Commission.  Once the Planning Commission is happy with the draft, he will present 
it to the development community.  
 
 Density Bonus – 50% Hard Cap OR Sliding Scale? 

Mayor Slater asked Mr. Apahidean to share his findings on cluster developments.   
 
Mr. Apahidean described some exercises he performed creating hypothetical cluster 
developments that would likely happen in Troy.  Instead of a 60, 70 or 80 unit development, he 
created a 10, 15, 20 unit development to determine the maximum density based on the 
bonuses.  He found it fairly easy to achieve 50% with good open space and a good layout.  He 
offered the sliding scale would allow the developers the flexibility to be creative. 
 
Mayor Slater agreed that the sliding scale would be beneficial; however, he questioned whether 
developers would sacrifice the profit of building 60 homes vs building a handful of homes to 
create the open space.    
 
Ms. Padma compared the density of a conventional development versus the density of a 
clustered development with attached units. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Pennington recommended talking with developers that have created clustered 
developments. 
 
Mayor Slater asked if the current cluster development section of the ordinance is keeping 
developers from creating these types of developments. 
Mr. Savidant said lack of incentives are road blocks for developers. 



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL JOINT MEETING MINUTES-Draft April 18, 2016 
 

- 4 - 

 
Mayor Slater indicated that in his personal situation, it would cost him more to downsize at this 
time.  It is important to make it financially rewarding for people to downsize.   
 
Council Member Hodorek asked if there is a developer that expressed interest in revising the 
ordinance.  Mayor Slater confirmed that the developer has a parcel that lends itself to the 
development.  Council Member Hodorek said she feels it would be a great achievement to 
meet the needs of residents, developers and the City.  
 
 
 Permit attached units in R-1A and R-1B? 

Mayor Slater expressed that this may be a sensitive question to answer. 
 
Mr. Hutson explained it may not be desirable to existing residents for a cluster development to 
be placed in between homes on large lots. 
 
Ms. Kuppa provided an example of a potential economic benefit to the City in that many 
parishioners of the temple may seek to live close to their house of worship. 
 
Mr. Krent indicated that he does not feel that attached units should be in R-1A and R-1B 
districts. 
 
Mr. Tagle shared concerns with integrating attached homes within those districts and feels 
there should be additional studies and discussion before moving forward. 
 
Mr. Apahidean spoke about side yard setbacks and the potential for cluster developments even 
without attached units in the R-1A and R-1B districts.   
 
Mr. Savidant explained that cluster developments are located in R-1A, R-1B, R-1C, R-1D and 
R-1E.  He clarified that attached homes are being proposed in the R-1A and R-1B districts. 
 
Council Member Henderson posed questions about setbacks and abutting properties.   
 
Mr. Tagle asked whether one of the requirements for cluster development is that one of the 
borders must occur on a major thoroughfare.  Mr. Savidant confirmed that a cluster 
development with attached housing would require access to a major thoroughfare. 
 
Council Member Henderson asked about backyards or back lots.  Mr. Savidant responded that 
existing setbacks would be respected and maintained.   
 
Chairman Edmunds explained that the map is very telling that attached homes are permitted in 
R-1C, but not in R-1A and R-1B.   
 
Council Member Henderson questioned attached housing without regard for what surrounds 
the property.  Mr. Savidant clarified that attached homes would be a significant change to the 
neighboring properties, so the ordinance was written to mandate developments with attached 
units to access or abut a major thoroughfare. 



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL JOINT MEETING MINUTES-Draft April 18, 2016 
 

- 5 - 

Council Member Baker clarified that attached housing is permitted without regard to what exists 
on the property provided it accesses a major thoroughfare.  Mr. Savidant indicated that there 
are control mechanisms to determine the number of units. 
 
Council Member Hodorek went back to the question – do we permit attached housing in R-1A 
and R-1B.  She expressed that she is not in favor of attached housing in those zoning districts.   
 
Council Member Baker asked the reasoning for prohibiting attached units in R-1A and R-1B. 
 
Council Member Hodorek indicated that the intention is to protect property owners in that area.   
 
Mr. Apahidean discussed property values and the effects cluster developments would have on 
property values. 
 
Council Member Abrahim asked why limit cluster development to the east side of the City.   
 
Council Member Henderson expressed that there are properties in R-1A and R-1B districts 
where these types of housing options would fit. 
 
Ms. Crusse asked whether the language could provide discretion in permitting cluster 
developments with attached homes in those districts.   
 
City Attorney Bluhm responded that there could be language that would limit the areas within 
the R-1A and R-1B districts; however, her concern is the language would have to be carefully 
crafted, applied equally to everyone, and have articulated standards to form the basis for the 
limiting where they are permitted.   
 
Mayor Slater explained that it is a touchy subject in that developers are purchasing lots in older 
homes, tearing down the homes, and building monster houses.  There are people who will 
object to building large homes, and there are people who will object to cluster developments.   
 
Mr. Tagle explained that the dynamic is changing that will drive the value for cluster 
developments.  He shared that studies show that large homes will be vacant and will not be 
attractive to homeowners. 
 
Mr. Faison agreed with Mr. Tagle.  He shared concerns with having different cluster options in 
different areas of the City.  He recommended obtaining input from the developers that will be 
helpful in moving forward with any changes. 
 
Mayor Slater indicated that the language addressing cluster developments as it currently 
stands needs revising.  He recommended that some language be drafted to provide City 
Council and the Planning Commission some leeway with regards to cluster developments 
within all of the R-1 districts.   
 
Mr. Krent shared that the dense zoning on the east side of the City will actually provide more 
green space for future developments. 
 

C-4 Next Steps 
 



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL JOINT MEETING MINUTES-Draft April 18, 2016 
 

- 6 - 

City Manager Kischnick stated that this is still in the very early stages.  He will have City 
Administration develop something to present for the Planning Commission. 
 
 

D. PUBLIC COMMENT: 

Jim Werpetinski  Spoke in favor of cluster developments. 
 
 

E. ADJOURNMENT: 

 
The Meeting ADJOURNED at 7:01 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 

Mayor Dane Slater 
 
 
 

Cheryl A. Stewart 
Administrative Aide 

 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft April 18, 2016 
 

- 1 - 

Pastor Simion Timbuc from Bethesda Romanian Pentecostal Church performed the Invocation.  
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held on Monday, April 18, 2016, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Rd.  Mayor Slater called the meeting to order at 7:31 PM. 
 

B. ROLL CALL: 
 

Mayor Dane Slater 
Edna Abrahim 
Ethan Baker 
Jim Campbell 
Dave Henderson 
Ellen Hodorek  
Mayor Pro Tem Ed Pennington  

 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  

C-1 On Behalf of the City of Troy Employees’ Casual for a Cause Program for the 

Months of November and December 2015, a Check in the Amount of $869 

Presented to Dr. Charles Main, Pediatric Oncologist, Beaumont Hospital, 

Scholarships for Pediatric Cancer Survivors (Presented by:  Cindy Stewart, 
Community Affairs Director) 

 
C-2 Proclamation to Declare April as Child Abuse Prevention Awareness Month 

Presented to Patricia Rosen, Executive Director of CARE House, and Wendy 

Gueth, Administrative Director of CARE House (Presented by:  Cindy Stewart, 
Community Affairs Director) 

 
C-3 Proclamation to Support the National Association of Letter Carriers Annual Food 

Drive Day on May 14, 2016 Presented to James Hunter, NALC Regional Food Drive 

Coordinator, and Alex Viviano, NALC Troy Food Drive Coordinator (Presented by:  
Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director) 

 
C-4 Recognition by Troy City Council for Sanctuary Lake and Sylvan Glen Golf 

Courses.  Sanctuary Lake was awarded Top Performer of the Year – The most 

successful facility based on financial performance.  Sylvan Glen won the ACE 

Award – The facility that most embodies the ACE spirit of treating each guest to a 

fun and enjoyable golf experience by presenting a well-conditioned golf course, 

friendly and welcoming service, and respect for each guest’s time.  (Presentation 
to Aaron Konold, General Manager, Sanctuary Lake; Derick Marcum, General 
Manager, Sylvan Glen, and Jim Vandenberghe, Superintendent of Sylvan Glen and 
Sanctuary Lake by Mayor Dane Slater) 

 

stewartc
Text Box
J-02b



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft April 18, 2016 
 

- 2 - 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 

D-1 No Carryover Items 
 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

E-1 No Public Hearings 
 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 

RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 
 

G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 

COMMENT: 
 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 

H-1 No Postponed Items 
 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – Brownfield 

Redevelopment Authority, Downtown Development Authority; b) City Council 

Appointments – Charter Revision Committee, Zoning Board of Appeals 
 
a) Mayoral Appointments:   
 
Resolution #2016-04-066 
Moved by Slater  
Seconded by Pennington  
 
RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby APPOINTS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated:   
 

Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 
Appointed by Mayor 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 
Term Expires:  4/30/2019 Steve Gottlieb 

 Term currently held by: Steve Gottlieb 
 
 

Downtown Development Authority 
Appointed by Mayor 
13 Regular Members 

4 Year Term 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft April 18, 2016 
 

- 3 - 

Term Expires:  9/30/2017 Kenny Koza 

 Term currently held by: Vacancy – Albert Papa’s unexpired 
term (resignation) 

 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
b) City Council Appointments:   
 
Resolution #2016-04-067 
Moved by Pennington  
Seconded by Baker 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Charter Revision Committee 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 
Term Expires:  4/30/2019 Robert Berk 

 Term currently held by: Robert Berk 
   
Term Expires:  4/30/2019 Shirley Kanoza 

 Term currently held by: Shirley Kanoza 
 
 

Zoning Board of Appeals 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 
Term Expires:  4/30/2019 David Eisenbacher 

 Term currently held by: David Eisenbacher 
 

Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft April 18, 2016 
 

- 4 - 

I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – Global Troy 

Advisory Committee; b) City Council Nominations – Animal Control Appeal Board, 

Charter Revision Committee, Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees / 

Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan and Trust, Liquor Advisory Committee, Traffic 

Committee, Volunteer Firefighter Incentive Plan Board, Zoning Board of Appeals 
 
a) Mayoral Nominations:   
 
City Council took no action on this item. 
 
b) City Council Nominations:  
 
Resolution #2016-04-068 
Moved by Pennington  
Seconded by Henderson  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council Meeting for 
action: 
 

Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees / Retiree Health Care Benefits 

Plan and Trust 
Appointed by Council 

7 Regular Members and 2 Ordinance Member 
3 Year Term 

 
Nominations to the Employees Retirement System Board of Trustees / Retiree Health 

Care Benefits Plan and Trust: 
 
Unexpired Term Expires:  12/31/2016 Mark Owczarzak 

 Term currently held by: Vacancy–Ex-Officio Retiree 
Wm. Need resigned 

 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

I-3 No Closed Session Requested 
 

I-4 Standard Resolutions 1, 2 and 3 for Special Assessment District for the Paving of 

the Westerly 220 Feet of Cherry Street in Section 27 (Introduced by:  Nino Licari, 
City Assessor) 

 
a) Standard Resolution #1 
 
Resolution #2016-04-069 
Moved by Campbell  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft April 18, 2016 
 

- 5 - 

Seconded by Henderson  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS Standard Resolution #1 to direct the 
preparation of plans and costs estimates for the Special Assessment to pay all or part of the 
cost of Asphalt Paving of Cherry in Section 27 Project No.14.907.1, all pursuant to Sections 1.1 
and 1.2 of Chapter 5 of the Code of the City of Troy. 
 
Yes: Campbell, Hodorek, Pennington, Slater, Abrahim, Baker 
No: Henderson  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
b) Standard Resolution #2 

 
Resolution #2016-04-070 
Moved by Campbell  
Seconded by Abrahim 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS Standard Resolution #2 to approve plans 
and cost estimates for a Special Assessment to pay all or part of the cost of Asphalt Paving of 
Cherry, in Section 27, Project No. 14.907.1, all pursuant to Sections 1.1 and 1.2 of Chapter 5 of 
the Code of the City of Troy 
 
 Total Estimated Cost    $91,013.00 
 Assessment     91,013.00 
 City's Share              0.00 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Assessor is hereby ORDERED and DIRECTED to 
prepare a Special Assessment Roll in accordance with Chapter 5 of the Code of the City of 
Troy. 
 
Yes: Hodorek, Pennington, Slater, Abrahim, Baker, Campbell  
No: Henderson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
c) Standard Resolution #3 
 
Resolution #2016-04-071 
Moved by Campbell  
Seconded by Hodorek  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS Standard Resolution #3 to set a Public 
Hearing date on the Special Assessment roll for Asphalt Paving of Cherry, in Section 27, 
Project No. 14.907.1, all pursuant to Chapter 5 of the Code of the City of Troy, with said Public 
Hearing to be established for May 9, 2016. 
 
Yes: Hodorek, Abrahim, Campbell, Henderson 
No: Pennington, Slater, Baker 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft April 18, 2016 
 

- 6 - 

 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

I-5 Agreement with North Woodward Community Foundation for Use of Public 

Property for “Troy Family Daze” Festival (Introduced by:  Tom Kaszubski, North 
Woodward Community Foundation Executive Director) 

 
Resolution #2016-04-072 
Moved by Slater  
Seconded by Baker 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES Item I-5 Agreement with North 
Woodward Community Foundation for Use of Public Property for “Troy Family Daze” Festival to 
the Regular City Council Meeting on May 9, 2016. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2016-04-073-J-1a 
Moved by Slater  
Seconded by Baker 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) J-04f and J-07, which shall be CONSIDERED after 
Consent Agenda (J) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Resolution #2016-04-073-J-2 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 
 
a) City Council Minutes-Draft – April 4, 2016  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft April 18, 2016 
 

- 7 - 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:   
 
Resolution #2016-04-073-J-3 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following City of Troy 
Proclamations: 
 
a) Child Abuse Prevention Awareness Month – April 2016 
b) National Association of Letter Carriers Food Drive Day – May 14, 2016  
 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:   
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Sole Bidder Meeting Specifications – 

Interoperability Repeater – Police Department 
 
Resolution #2016-04-073-J-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to the sole bidder meeting 
specifications, AMK Services, LLC of Johnstown, OH, in the amount of $38,240.00 as per the 
bid pricing and specifications contained in the original bid tabulation; a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the company’s 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements.  
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Concrete Slab 

Replacement Program 
 
Resolution #2016-04-073-J-4b 
 
WHEREAS, On April 14, 2014, Troy City Council awarded a one-year contract to provide 
concrete slab replacement services with an option to renew for one (1) additional year to the 
low total bidder, DiLisio Contracting, Inc. of Clinton Township, MI (Resolution #2014-04-063-J-
4a) and additionally approved the one (1) year extension with an increase that directly reflected 
the increase in all infrastructure trades in the Metro Detroit Area (Resolution #2015-03-039); 
and,  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has determined that DiLisio Contracting, Inc. meets all the terms 
and conditions of the original bid; and, 
 
WHEREAS, DiLisio Contracting, Inc. has requested to exercise a two-year option to renew with 
keeping current pricing for the first year and a three (3) percent increase for the second year; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DEEMS it to be in the 
City’s best interest to EXERCISE the option to renew the contract with DiLisio Contracting, Inc. 
of Clinton Township, MI to provide concrete slab replacement under the same contract terms, 
and conditions and pricing escalation as detailed in the letter sent from DiLisio Contracting, Inc. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft April 18, 2016 
 

- 8 - 

dated April 6, 2016, a copy of which will be ATTACHED to the Minutes of this meeting, contract 
to expire June 30, 2018. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  National Joint Powers Alliance (NJPA) 

Cooperative Agreement – Kubota Tractor – B3350HSDDC and Bid Waiver – Kubota 

Tractor Implements 
 
Resolution #2016-04-073-J-4c 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase a Kubota 
B3350HSDC with options as detailed in the attached quote from Kubota Tractor Company of 
Torrance, California, as per the NJPA Cooperative Contract# NJPA070313 - KBA for an 
estimated total cost of $28,285.65 as detailed in quote #557138 from Weingartz, who is an 
authorized dealer of Kubota and who will be the delivering company; a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council DEEMS in to be in the best interest of 
the City and hereby WAIVES the bid requirements to purchase tractor implements that include 
a Land Pride Box Scraper, Post Hole Digger, Trencher, Power Take Off (PTO) Chipper, and 
Backhoe from authorized dealer, Weingartz of Utica, MI, for an estimated total of $21,535.00, 
which includes the deduction of $10,000 for the listed trade-ins as per quote# 10118091-00; a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the contractor’s 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates, 
and all other specified requirements. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – Fitness 

Equipment – Police Department 
 
Resolution #2016-04-073-J-4d 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to the low bidder meeting 
specifications, All Pro Exercise of Plymouth Township, MI, in the amount of $46,699.00 as per 
the bid pricing and specifications contained in the original bid tabulation and also as per the 
detailed attached quote; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the company’s 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements.  
 
e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  NJPA Purchasing Cooperative – Hoist 

Equipment 
 
Resolution #2016-04-073-J-4e 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase a New 
Challenger 4 Post General Service Hoist Model 4015XFX042015 including installation from the 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft April 18, 2016 
 

- 9 - 

low bidder Kirk’s Automotive of Detroit Michigan, the authorized Challenger Dealer in Michigan 
through the NJPA Cooperative Contract# 032515-GPC for an estimated total cost of 
$14,490.50. 
 
g) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Award to Low Bidder Meeting Specifications 

and Budget Amendment – Slide Repairs at Troy Family Aquatic Center 
 
Resolution #2016-04-073-J-4g 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to furnish all equipment, 
material, and labor to repair slide support structures at the Troy Family Aquatic Center to the 
low bidder meeting specifications, Usztan, LLC of Auburn Hills, MI, for an estimated total cost 
of $15,100.00, as contained in the bid tabulation opened April 7, 2016; a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, and also APPROVES a Budget 
Amendment in the amount of $15,100.00. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the contract is CONTINGENT upon contractor’s submission 
of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates, and all other 
specified requirements. 
 

J-5 Suggested Resolution to Schedule a Closed Session on May 23, 2016 for the 

Annual Evaluation of the City Attorney 
 
Resolution #2016-04-073-J-5 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session on May 23, 2016 in the 
Council Board Room, pursuant to MCL 15.268 (a) and (h) (MCL 15.243(g)) for the evaluation of 
the City Attorney. 
 

J-6 Cost Participation Agreement for I-75 Phase I Reconstruction – North of Coolidge 

to North of South Boulevard – MDOT Contract Number 16-5075 
 
Resolution #2016-04-073-J-6 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the MDOT Contract No. 16-5075 
between the City of Troy and the Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) for I-75 
Phase I Reconstruction from north of Coolidge to north of South Boulevard at an estimated 
cost to the City of Troy of $635,000; and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO 

EXECUTE the agreement; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting.    
 

J-8 Amendment of Agreement for Use of Driveway – Amendment to Allow the Use of 

Flynn Park Driveway for Access to Beaumont Hospital From South Boulevard 

During Dequindre Road Reconstruction 
 
Resolution #2016-04-073-J-8 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft April 18, 2016 
 

- 10 - 

RESOLVED, That the Letter of Agreement, Amending Agreement between City of Troy and 
William Beaumont Hospital for Use of Flynn Park Driveway is hereby APPROVED and the 
Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents; a copy of which shall 
be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.    
 

J-9 Troy v Behunin 
 
Resolution #2016-04-073-J-9 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the proposed Consent Judgment in 
the City of Troy v Behunin condemnation case, Oakland County Circuit Court case number 
2014-144331 CC, and AUTHORIZES payment in the amounts stated therein, and further 
AUTHORIZES the City Attorney’s Office to execute the document on behalf of the City of Troy; 
a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

J-10 Stonecrest PUD Legal Description Ratification 
 
Resolution #2016-04-073-J-10 
 
WHEREAS, On November 23, 2015, the City Council of the City of Troy approved and 
authorized the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the Stonecrest Planned Unit Development 
Agreement; and, 
 
WHEREAS, After the Stonecrest Planned Unit Development Agreement was signed by all 
parties, but before it was recorded with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a minor 
discrepancy in the legal description of the subject property was discovered; and, 
 
WHEREAS, The developer, NP Senior Living Development LLC, through its attorney has 
submitted a substitute page 1 and a substitute page 2 reflecting the correct acreage of the 
subject property, and a substitute Exhibit B and a substitute Exhibit C setting forth the correct 
legal description for the subject property, and has requested the City Council confirm, ratify and 
approve the attached Stonecrest Planned Unit Development Agreement with the correct legal 
description; and,  
 
WHEREAS, The attached Stonecrest Planned Unit Development Agreement with the 
substituted pages and exhibits is in all other respects the same agreement approved by the 
City Council of the City of Troy on November 23, 2015 and subsequently executed by the 
Mayor and the City Clerk; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONFIRMS, 
RATIFIES, and APPROVES the attached Stonecrest Planned Unit Development Agreement, 
AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute any necessary documents to demonstrate 
this approval and ratification, and further DIRECTS that this ratified version be recorded with 
the Oakland County Register of Deeds; a copy of the agreement as corrected shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft April 18, 2016 
 

- 11 - 

 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:   
 
f) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Camp 

Ticonderoga Restaurant Operations 
 
Resolution #2016-04-074 
Moved by Slater  
Seconded by Henderson  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the five year renewal option between 
Gallatin, Inc. (aka Camp Ticonderoga) and the City of Troy and APPROVES the attached five 
year agreement; a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the contract is CONTINGENT upon contractor’s 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates, 
and all other specified requirements. 
 
Yes: Abrahim, Campbell, Henderson, Hodorek, Pennington, Slater 
No: Baker 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

J-7 Authorization to Request Reimbursement – Reimbursement From Oakland County 

West Nile Virus Fund 
 
Resolution #2016-04-075 
Moved by Slater  
Seconded by Abrahim 
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council for the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, hereby 
AUTHORIZES the City of Troy’s Parks, Streets, and Drains Divisions to seek reimbursement 
for an amount not to exceed $18,531.93 from Oakland County’s West Nile Virus Fund for the 
expenditures incurred while instituting proactive public health measures used to reduce the 
population of mosquitoes in the environment. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 
 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 

 some future point in time):  None Submitted 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft April 18, 2016 
 

- 12 - 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 

RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 

 
Verba Edwards Spoke about noise levels from I 75. 
 
Resolution to Suspend City Council Rule #17 Members of the Public and Visitors to 

Allow More Time for Public Comment for Mr. Verba Edwards 
 
Resolution #2016-04-076 
Moved by Slater  
Seconded by Pennington  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SUSPENDS Council Rule #17, Members of the 
Public & Visitors, to allow additional time for Public Comment. 
 
Yes: All-7  
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Jim Werpetinski Spoke about the Friends of Troy Seniors paper shredding event on 

Tuesday, April 19, 2016, at the Troy Family Aquatic Center; also spoke 
about the Annual Prayer Breakfast to be held on May 6, 2016 at St. 
Nicholas Social Hall - Tickets are $25/person, $30 at the door. 

Hema Surendran Spoke about safety concerns regarding a property developer on Brunswick. 
Francis Plizga Announced a Myalgic Encephalomyelitis (ME)/Chronic Fatigue Syndrome 

(CFS) Awareness Walk on Saturday, May 14, 2016, from 12:00 PM–1:00 
PM at Troy Beaumont Hospital. 

 

M. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 

COMMENT: 

City Manager Kischnick stated that he will arrange a conference call/meeting with Mr. Edwards, 
City Administration and the Michigan Dept. of Transportation. 
 
Mayor Slater addressed the ongoing issue between the residents on Brunswick and the 
developer and City Administration is working on a resolution. 
 

N. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  

Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 

Placement on the Agenda 

N-1  No Council Referrals  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft April 18, 2016 
 

- 13 - 

O. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

O-1  Council Comments  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Pennington spoke about concerns with the increase of Police Officer fatalities 
killed in the line of duty. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Pennington also announced that the Dept. of Labor established a new rule for 
financial planners and advisors called the “Conflict of Interest Rule” requiring financial planners 
and advisors to have the client’s best interest in mind pertaining to IRA’s.  Also, Mayor Pro Tem 
Pennington recommended making sure they are registered with the SEC. 
 
Council Member Hodorek reflected on the Joint Special City Council and Planning Commission 
meeting earlier this evening and thanked City Administration for facilitating the discussion. 
 

P. REPORTS: 

P-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Election Commission-Final – February 10, 2016 
b) Building Code Board of Appeals-Final – March 2, 2016 
c) Election Commission-Draft – March 24, 2016 
d) Building Code Board of Appeals-Draft – April 6, 2016 

Noted and Filed 
 

P-2 Department Reports:   
a) Building Department Activity Report – March, 2016 
b) 2016 City of Troy Assessment Roll and Board of Review Report 

Noted and Filed 
 

P-3 Letters of Appreciation:   
a) To the Troy Police Department from Michelle and Kirk Down Regarding Officer Morse 
b) To Chief Mayer from Arnette Heintze Regarding Officer Todd Gustke 

Noted and Filed 
 

P-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 

Q. COMMENTS ON ITEMS ON OR NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM 

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC OUTSIDE OF TROY (NOT RESIDENTS OF 

TROY AND NOT FROM TROY BUSINESSES): 

 
Andrew Corey Spoke about a police incident from 2015. 
 

R. CLOSED SESSION:  

R-1 No Closed Session Requested 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft April 18, 2016 
 

- 14 - 

S. ADJOURNMENT: 

 
The Meeting ADJOURNED at 9:13 PM. 
 
 
 
 

Mayor Dane Slater 
 
 
 

Cheryl A. Stewart 
Administrative Aide 

 
 



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL BUDGET STUDY MINUTES-Draft April 21, 2016 

 

- 1 - 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

 
A Special Budget Study Meeting of the Troy City Council was held on Thursday, April 21, 2016, 
at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd.  Mayor Slater called the meeting to order at 6:01 PM. 
 

B. ROLL CALL: 

(a)  Mayor Dane Slater 
Edna Abrahim 
Ethan Baker 
Jim Campbell 
Dave Henderson 
Ellen Hodorek 
Mayor Pro Tem Ed Pennington 

 

C. DISCUSSION ITEM:  

C-1 Proposed Fiscal Year 2016/17 Annual Budget and Three-Year Budget 
 

(Budget is available for review at the City Clerk’s Office, Troy Public Library and on the City’s 
website http://www.troymi.gov/budget/) 
 
City Manager Brian Kischnick opened the discussion of the 2016/17 Annual Budget and Three-
Year Budget presentation. He discussed the Manager’s Message portion of the Budget 
document. 
 
City Assessor Nino Licari discussed the taxable value history from 2004 to 2016 and the 
assessed value ratio history from 1953 to 2016. 
 
Tom Darling, Director of Financial Services, discussed funded plans for employees and 
retirees. 
 
Mr. Kischnick reviewed the Fund Balances in the Major Streets, Local Streets and Refuse 
Funds. He then opened the subject of the General Fund. 
 
City Clerk Aileen Dickson discussed the election inspectors expenditures for elections in Troy. 
 
Police Chief Mayer discussed the budgetary contributions to community organizations. 
 
Kurt Bovensiep, Public Works Manager, discussed tree lighting along the Big Beaver Corridor. 
He also discussed the funding of the dog park. 
 
Mr. Kischnick discussed the Capital Fund and Unassigned Fund Balance in the Capital Fund. 
 
Bill Huotari, Deputy City Engineer, discussed road projects planned for major roads in 2016-
2017. Mr. Bovensiep discussed road projects planned for local roads in 2016-2017. Mr. 
Kischnick highlighted some of the improvements completed from 2012 to 2015. 

http://www.troymi.gov/budget/
stewartc
Text Box
J-02c



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL BUDGET STUDY MINUTES-Draft April 21, 2016 

 

- 2 - 

Steve Pallotta, Director of Building Operations, discussed the replacement of the roof at the 
Nature Center that is in progress. 
 
Fire Chief Dave Roberts discussed the funding budgeted for the replacement of Fire Station 4. 
 
Chief Mayer discussed funding budgeted for upgrades in the Police Department gun range. 
 
Mr. Pallotta discussed funding budgeted in the 2017-2018 budget for replacement of the roof of 
the 52-4 District Court building located next to City Hall. 
 
Mr. Kischnick introduced the 2016 Strategies adopted by City Council. 
 
Stephanie Fleischer, Marketing Coordinator, discussed funding budgeted for the redesign of 
the City website. 
 
Maggie Hughes, Management Analyst, discussed funding budgeted for recycling elements and 
LED lighting in city facilities. 
 
Mr. Bovensiep discussed funding budgeted for linking the civic center campus with a trail and 
pathway system. 
 
Ms. Hughes discussed funding budgeted for the pedestrian crosswalk and transportation 
shelters on Big Beaver Corridor at Automation Alley. 
 
Mr. Kischnick discussed funding budgeted for a market study and for developing a concept 
plan for the redevelopment of the civic center property. 
 
Mayor Slater opened the discussion for questions from City Council Members. 
 
Council Member Campbell said that he thinks that $2 million is a lot of money for a trail and 
pathway system that residents have said they don’t want in the past. Mr. Kischnick said that the 
budget is $1 million. Mayor Slater said that he remembers when City Council used to put away 
$1 million per budget year for the purpose of funding a trail and pathway system. He said he 
remembers when residents wanted trails and pathways through the city and when City Council 
had to use that money for other expenditures during the recession. He said that he 
understands the frustration but he believes it is still an important plan to keep in the budget. He 
said he still hears enthusiasm in the community for trails such as near the future dog park. He 
said he thinks this is money well invested. Council Member Baker said that he likes the idea of 
trails and pathways but struggles with this plan that doesn’t connect to enough areas. He said 
that he doesn’t agree with spending money for small portions without having a bigger idea for 
the end result. Mayor Slater said there is a master plan. Mr. Bovensiep said that the trails and 
pathways master plan from 2009 does contain the proposed pathway budgeted in 2016-2017. 
Mayor Slater said that we could again begin saving money for trails this year and get started on 
the trails plan since we can only do a small portion each year. He said that if we complete a 
small portion each year, eventually we will achieve the master plan. Mayor Pro Tem 
Pennington said this trail in the 2016-2017 budget is a great start to master plan for trails. 
Mayor Slater said that we have heard for years from residents near civic center campus that 
they want a trail that connects to the campus. Council Member Hodorek said that the walkable 
trails trend is in high demand for the older and the younger populations in Troy. She said that 



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL BUDGET STUDY MINUTES-Draft April 21, 2016 

 

- 3 - 

the more walkability we have, the more valuable our city becomes. Council Member Abrahim 
said that this plan seems complementary to the clustering discussion from this past Monday’s 
joint meeting with the Planning Commission. She said that this is a logical next step for us. 
Council Member Henderson said that a million dollars seems like a lot of money to spend on a 
speculative plan for that area when the dog park isn’t built yet. He said he would like to see the 
dog park built and how it is used before spending a million dollars on a trail. Mayor Slater said 
that we expect the dog park to be completed this year. He said that City Council has a 
responsibility to pursue items that residents list at the top of their list of what they’d like to see 
the City accomplish. Mayor Slater said there is a consensus of City Council to move forward 
with this expenditure for the trail. 
 
Council Member Henderson asked why both the expenditures for the Nature Society and the 
Historical Society were increased this year when both of those expenditures were meant to be 
temporary assistance to those organizations. Mr. Darling said that last year or the year before 
the expenditure for the Historical Society was increased but there is no increase this year for 
the Nature Society. Mayor Slater asked why the personal services expenditure is increased for 
the Historical Society. Mr. Darling answered that the increase is for the grounds maintenance 
workers. Mr. Bovensiep clarified that the City is still responsible for grounds maintenance and 
City employees perform that function. Mr. Kischnick said that the museum and nature center 
are assets of the City. He said that the Historical Society has taken on a monumental task of 
caring for and advancing the museum. He said that he believes the increase is justified.  
 
Lorraine Campbell, Director of the Historical Society, discussed the income and expenses for 
the Society from 2014 to the 2016-2017 budget as well as the operational management 
summary for the Society. Mayor Slater commented that it was a goal at the beginning to ween 
the Historical Society and Nature Society off of City contributions but he believes these two 
groups are passionate about their missions and he thinks it’s important to help them. Council 
Member Hodorek said that she supports the proposed funding budgeted for both organizations. 
Mayor Pro Tem Pennington said he supports the proposed funding budgeted for both 
organizations. Council Member Henderson said that he understands the aspects of why we are 
funding them but he wants to know the end game of when the increases will end. Council 
Member Abrahim said that she supports the funding budgeted for both organizations and said 
that we are making a wise investment by providing funding. Mayor Slater asked if Mr. 
Bovensiep would investigate lawn and weed treatments at the Museum. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Pennington commented that he noticed that the civic center redevelopment 
budget increased from $100 thousand to $200 thousand. Mr. Kischnick said that he is very 
comfortable with the funding budgeted after discussions with Mr. Farrell and Mr. Gibb and the 
initial $100 thousand amount was a preliminary amount. Mr. Kischnick said that there will be 
progress made this calendar year on developing a plan. Council Member Hodorek said she has 
been aware of Mr. Farrell’s connection with Troy for a long time and she knows he is 
passionate about the City of Troy’s future. Mayor Slater said that we are setting money aside 
for improvements and repairs on buildings on the civic center campus but are we putting good 
money into bad buildings. Mayor Pro Tem Pennington said that he is looking forward to seeing 
progress on the walkability and trails plans. 
 
Council Member Hodorek asked if the City Clerk is prepared to address the removal of straight 
party voting from the Presidential Election ballot. City Clerk Dickson answered that 
 



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL BUDGET STUDY MINUTES-Draft April 21, 2016 

 

- 4 - 

Council Member Baker asked if the east entrance to City Hall really needs to be changed or do 
we really just need a person to answer questions at the east entrance. Mr. Kischnick said that 
the first step will be to locate a staff member at the entrance, then see what the plan for the 
civic center will be before spending a large amount of money on remodeling the building. He 
said he believes that this budgeted amount is a good amount but this is a budget. 
 
Council Member Henderson asked if the Kiwanis Club is still contributing to the lights along Big 
Beaver. Mayor Slater answered that they are no longer involved so the City is paying for the 
entire expenditure.  
 
Council Member Henderson asked if there will be a mobile app for the new City website. Ms. 
Fleischer answered that a mobile app will be part of the website redesign. 
 
Mayor Slater asked if the General Fund Fund Balance depletion is just a conservative estimate. 
Mr. Kischnick answered that the graph in the presentation shows a conservative estimate 
based on projections but that he is not concerned about what the projections show. 
 
Mayor Slater asked about the Personnel Summary where it shows less than 1 in a position. Mr. 
Darling answered that when a position is part-time or divides time between two departments 
that creates a true allocation of hours to that department. 
 
Council Member Hodorek commented that when determining the Fund Balance Policy, City 
Council took into consideration the AAA bond rating for the City and the financial impacts of the 
Policy especially considering the millage rate cap in the City Charter. She said she wants to 
remind everyone that the bond rating is a source of pride for all of us. 
 
Mayor Slater said there is a consensus of City Council that City Administration can go forward 
with the City Budget as presented tonight. 
 

D. PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 
Evan Agnello Resident - Spoke supporting a dirt trail that is less expensive near the dog park 

instead of spending $1 million on a paved trail; supports an online kiosk at the 
east entrance along with the staff member at that entrance; supports a website 
redesign but does not think the City needs an app. 

E. ADJOURNMENT: 

The Meeting ADJOURNED at 8:03   PM. 
 
 

Mayor Dane Slater 
 
 
 

M. Aileen Dickson, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL BUDGET STUDY MINUTES-Draft April 25, 2016 

 

- 1 - 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

 
A Special Budget Study Meeting of the Troy City Council was held on Monday, April 25, 2016, 
at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd.  Mayor Slater called the meeting to order at 6:01 PM. 
 

B. ROLL CALL: 

(a)  Mayor Dane Slater 
Edna Abrahim 
Ethan Baker 
Jim Campbell 
Dave Henderson 
Ellen Hodorek 
Mayor Pro Tem Ed Pennington 

 

C. DISCUSSION ITEM:  

C-1 Proposed Fiscal Year 2016/17 Annual Budget and Three-Year Budget 
 

(Budget is available for review at the City Clerk’s Office, Troy Public Library and on the City’s 
website http://www.troymi.gov/budget/) 
 
City Manager Brian Kischnick recapped the agenda and discussion from the Budget Study 
Session held on April 21, 2016.  He then introduced the topics that were covered during this 
meeting: Taxable Value, Public Safety and Water Rates. 
 
Nino Licari, City Assessor, discussed the topic of Taxable Value. Mayor Slater highlighted the 
small 1% or less than 1% increases in taxable value that don’t generate a lot of revenue for the 
City. Mr. Licari said that new construction and property sales are what generate revenue 
whereas new businesses moving into vacant spaces do not generate new tax revenue for the 
City. Council Member Henderson asked if taxes are different for July to December vs January 
to June. Mr. Licari said that taxes are based on taxable value so if a building is only partially 
completed in December, the whole following year will show taxes based on the value of the 
incomplete building. Mr. Kischnick highlighted that all of the new developments such as new 
hotels and offices generated just over $200,000 in tax revenue for the City. 
 
Fire Chief Dave Roberts discussed the topic of Public Safety and the collaboration that takes 
place between the Fire Department, Police Department and ambulance service providers. 
 
Police Chief Gary Mayer discussed the topic of Police Department cooperatives. He highlighted 
SOCCIT (South Oakland County Crash Investigation Team), the cooperative between Auburn 
Hills, Bloomfield Hills, Bloomfield Township and Troy. Chief Mayer discussed the MCAT (Major 
Case Assistance Team) cooperative. He explained that MCAT is a cooperative between 
Auburn Hills, Birmingham, Bloomfield Hills, Bloomfield Township, Clawson, the FBI, Oakland 
County Sheriff, Rochester and Troy. Chief Mayer said that by utilizing cooperatives, the Troy 
Police Department is able to maintain adequate staff for the day-to-day operations and have 
the ability to reach out to other communities for help during major incidents. Chief Mayer 
discussed the benefits and uses of the Troy Police & Fire Training Center.  

http://www.troymi.gov/budget/
stewartc
Text Box
J-02d



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL BUDGET STUDY MINUTES-Draft April 25, 2016 

 

- 2 - 

Paul Trosper, Superintendent of Water & Sewer, discussed the topic of Water Rates as well as 
water system functions and changes. Mr. Kischnick discussed revenues, expenses and 
volumes of water by year in Troy from 2012 to 2016. Mayor Slater asked if the move to Great 
Lakes Water Authority has affected the City’s efforts to impose watering restrictions in order to 
save money. Tim Richnak, Director of Public Works, answered that Troy does still see a 
savings by restricting watering according to peak hours and peak days. He said that rates will 
balance out with other communities by maintaining the restrictions. Tom Darling, Director of 
Financial Services, explained how Troy’s water rates are determined based on water usage of 
Troy but also the communities surrounding Troy. He indicated the question for City Council to 
decide is whether to increase the Water Sale Rate in order to generate enough revenue to 
cover the water expenditures. Mr. Kischnick explained that the recommendation from the FIT 
(Financial Ideas Team) was to increase the water sale rate by 11.9% (increase to $38.50) for 
the 2016-2017 Budget. Council Member Henderson asked Mr. Darling to explain what will 
happen to the revenue if the rate estimate is off by 5% in either direction. Mr. Darling also 
explained how the water sale rate is calculated and that Troy only increases our water sale rate 
based on increases imposed by Great Lakes Water Authority. Council Member Henderson 
asked for clarification about copper vs lead plumbing. Mr. Trosper said that there are less than 
ten services in the City of Troy that are lead but he personally has never found lead services. 
He said that if a property owner discovers lead pipe in the residence, the owner should contact 
the Department of Public Works for assistance. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Pennington asked if Detroit water is still considered the best quality water. Mr. 
Trosper answered that the quality of water coming from the Great Lakes is of the highest 
quality. 
 
Mayor Slater commended the FIT (Financial Ideas Team) for their hard work in developing the 
water sale rate recommendation. Mr. Kischnick commented that there were multiple groups in 
the FIT and the average recommendation was $38.50. There was a consensus of City Council 
to continue with the recommendation for the water sale rate increase to $38.50 for the 2016-
2017 Budget.  
 
Council Member Henderson asked if the sewer water is metered. Mr. Trosper answered that it 
used to be metered but now there is just one fixed rate based on incoming water that also 
covers the cost of sewer services.  
 
Council Member Hodorek commented that she appreciates the hours and hard work that went 
into producing the Budget document. She encouraged residents and business owners to 
contact the City if they have any questions or comments regarding the Budget. She expressed 
appreciation for best practices maintained by City Administration. 
 

D. PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 

E. ADJOURNMENT: 

 
The Meeting ADJOURNED at 7:17 PM. 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL BUDGET STUDY MINUTES-Draft April 25, 2016 

 

- 3 - 

 
 
 

Mayor Dane Slater 
 
 
 

M. Aileen Dickson, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



 

 
 
 
May 4, 2016 
 
TO:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
FROM: Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development 
  MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager 
  Elaine Bo, Recreation Director 
  Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low Bidder Meeting Specifications - Printing 

Services for the Troy Today Quarterly Newsletter 
 

History 
The Troy Today Quarterly Newsletter, an all-encompassing newsletter to inform residents and 
businesses about pertinent City news, Library, Historic Village, Nature Center and Recreation 
programs and special events, is mailed to all residential and business addresses.  In addition, a Flip 
page newsletter is posted on the City’s website.  Going forward the City will now be printing two 
newsletters each quarter, one for Recreation and one for the City, Library, Nature Center and Historic 
Village news and information.  The existing contract expired April 30, 2016. 
 

Purchasing 
On April 14, 2016, a public bid opening was conducted as required by City Charter and Code in order 
to provide printing and delivery services of the Troy Today Quarterly Newsletter and the Troy 
Recreation Quarterly Newsletter.  Ninety five (95) vendors were notified of the bid opportunity on the 
Michigan Inter-governmental Trade Network (MITN) website; www.mitn.info.  Five (5) responsive bids 
were received.  Below is a detailed vendor summary: 
         

Companies notified via MITN 95 

Troy Companies notified via MITN 7 

Troy Companies notified - Active email Notification 7 

Troy Companies notified - Active non-paying 0 

Companies that viewed the bid  33 

Troy Companies that viewed the bid 3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MITN provides a resourceful online platform to streamline the 
procurement process, reduce costs, and make it easier and more 
transparent for vendors to do business with the City of Troy. 
Active MITN members with a current membership and paying annual 
dues receive automatic electronic notification which allows instant 
access to Bids, RFPS and Quote opportunities with the City.   
Active MITN non-paying members are responsible to monitor and 
check the MITN website for opportunities to do business with the City. 
Inactive MITN member status can occur when a company does not 
renew their account upon expiration.  Inactive members cannot be 
notified of solicitations or access any bid information. 

 

http://www.mitn.info/
stewartc
Text Box
J-04a



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

 

 

Purchasing (continued) 
Grand Blanc Printing Co, Inc of Grand Blanc, MI, was the low bidder meeting all bid specifications and is 
being recommended to provide one (1) year requirements for the printing and delivery of the Troy Today 
Quarterly Newsletter and the Troy Recreation Quarterly Newsletter with an option to renew for two (2) 
additional years.  Grand Blanc Printing Co. Inc. is currently providing printing services for the City, is 
meeting all bid specifications and is doing an excellent job of handling the printing and delivery services 
of the Troy Today Quarterly Newsletter.  Note that web press equipment is required to provide printing 
services for the Troy Today Quarterly Newsletter. 

 
Financial 
Funds are available from the printing accounts of the City Manager, the Library and Recreation 
Departments operating budgets. 
 

Recommendation 
City management recommends awarding a one (1) year contract with the option to renew for two (2) 
additional years for printing and delivery services of the Troy Today Quarterly Newsletter and the 
Troy Recreation Quarterly Newsletter to the low bidder meeting specifications, Grand Blanc Printing 
Co., Inc., of Grand Blanc, MI for an estimated total cost of $34,140.00 for the Troy Today Quarterly 
Newsletter, and $46,100.00 for the Troy Recreation Quarterly Newsletter, plus the actual cost of bulk 
rate postage and $30.00 per issue to post the Flip page newsletter on the City’s website, and 
additional charges if needed not to exceed $3,900.00 at prices as contained in the bid tabulation; 
contract to expire April 30, 2019, in accordance with contract requirements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Bid Award 15-16 Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 2 ITB-COT 16-18 



Opening Date - 04-14-2016

Date Reviewed - 04/14/2016

Check #

Item

Base Bid 

Total 

Pages

35# 

Pages

Gloss 

Text 

Pages 

Cost Per Issue
Cost Per 

Issue

a 28 24 4 5,300.00$                               6,112.00$     

b 32 28 4 5,565.00$                               6,419.00$     

c 36 32 4 5,835.00$                               6,677.00$     

d 40 36 4 6,505.00$                               7,161.00$     

Item

Base Bid 

Total 

Pages

35# 

Pages

Gloss 

Text 

Pages 

Cost Per Issue
Cost Per 

Issue

e 48 44 4 7,280.00$                               7,904.00$     

f 52 48 4 7,550.00$                               8,277.00$     

g 56 52 4 8,235.00$                               9,419.00$     

h 60 56 4 8,505.00$                               9,584.00$     

Novolith Gloss/Inside & White Birch Paper Co. New Page/Cover & Resolute/Inside

Item

Base Bid 

Total 

Pages

50# 

Pages

Gloss 

Text 

Pages 

Cost Per Issue
Cost Per 

Issue

a 28 24 4 6,700.00$                               7,097.00$     

b 32 28 4 7,170.00$                               7,576.00$     

c 36 32 4 7,645.00$                               8,219.00$     

d 40 36 4 8,535.00$                               8,402.00$     

Item

Base Bid 

Total 

Pages

50# 

Pages

Gloss 

Text 

Pages 

Cost Per Issue
Cost Per 

Issue

e 48 28 4 9,695.00$                               10,889.00$   

f 52 32 4 10,165.00$                             11,358.00$   

g 56 36 4 11,055.00$                             11,992.00$   

h 60 56 4 11,525.00$                             12,506.00$   

Novolith Gloss/Inside & Boise Vellum Offset New Page/Cover & New Page/CoverPaper manufactured by:

Paper manufactured by:

Annual Cost Annual Cost

26,800.00$          28,388.00$                    

28,680.00$          30,304.00$                    

30,580.00$          32,876.00$                    

34,140.00$          33,608.00$                    

CITY OF TROY
BID TABULATION Page 1 of 6

ITB-COT 16-18

44,220.00$          47,968.00$                    

46,100.00$          50,024.00$                    

40,660.00$          45,432.00$                    

BID PROPOSAL B2:  Printing & Delivery of RECREATION TROY TODAY Newsletters - 50# Offset/92 Bright

Annual Cost Annual Cost

38,780.00$          43,556.00$                    

BID PROPOSAL A2:  Printing & Delivery of RECREATION TROY TODAY  Newsletters - 60# Gloss Text Cover, 35#/80 

Bright.

Annual Cost Annual Cost

BID PROPOSAL B1:  Printing & Delivery of TROY TODAY  Newsletters - 50# Offset/92 Bright.

Cost per additional proofs if needed No Charge  $                            95.00 

Cost Per Issue Cost Per Issue

Cost Per Proof Cost Per Proof

BID PROPOSAL C: Flip Page Newsletter for Website

Flip Page Newsletter for posting on City's Website 30.00$                 179.00$                           

ADDITIONAL CHARGES:

VENDOR NAME:
Grand Blanc Printing, Inc.

Grand Blanc, MI

Indiana Printing and Publishing Co., Inc.

Indiana, PA

#009436985

$2,000.00

38,336.00$                    

32,940.00$          

34,020.00$          

26,708.00$                    

28,644.00$                    

31,616.00$                    

33,108.00$                    

37,676.00$                    

23,340.00$          

26,020.00$          

29,120.00$          

30,200.00$          

PRINTING TROY TODAY NEWSLETTER

BID PROPOSAL A1:  Printing & Delivery of TROY TODAY  Newsletters - 60# Gloss Text Cover, 35#/80 Bright.

Annual Cost

21,200.00$          

22,260.00$          

Bid Deposit on File

N/ACheck Amount

Annual Cost

24,448.00$                    

25,676.00$                    



Can meet Y or N

REFERENCES: Y/N

Susan Riesterer

Cindy Stewart

Enna Bachelor

Purchasing Manager

ATTEST:

Mary Beth Murz,

Contact Person

Hours of Operation

Phone No.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
Y/NPAYMENT TERMS:

EXCEPTIONS:

QUESTIONNAIRE: Y/N

Net 30

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 16-18

BID TABULATION Page 2 of 6

PRINTING TROY TODAY NEWSLETTER

Blank

Y

Y

Y

Mike Donnelly

24 Hours a Day

724-388-3839

Y

9am-5pm

810.875.0185

Y

2% 10 Days Net 
30Blank

Y

Y

COMPLETION SCHEDULE

CONTACT INFORMATION

Y

Greg Care

VENDOR NAME:
Grand Blanc Printing, Inc. Indiana Printing and Publishing Co., Inc.

Grand Blanc, MI Indiana, PA



Check #

Item

Base Bid 

Total 

Pages

35# 

Pages

Gloss 

Text 

Pages 

Cost Per Issue
Cost Per 

Issue

a 28 24 4 6,788.43$                               6,654.00$     

b 32 28 4 8,025.35$                               7,011.00$     

c 36 32 4 7,516.40$                               7,368.00$     

d 40 36 4 8,898.56$                               8,601.00$     

Item

Base Bid 

Total 

Pages

35# 

Pages

Gloss 

Text 

Pages 

Cost Per Issue
Cost Per 

Issue

e 48 44 4 10,947.33$                             9,035.00$     

f 52 48 4 9,968.64$                               9,392.00$     

g 56 52 4 11,236.68$                             10,219.00$   

h 60 56 4 11,757.14$                             10,296.00$   

Sonoma/Cover & Norbrite/Inside Sappi/cover & Resolute/Inside

Item

Base Bid 

Total 

Pages

50# 

Pages

Gloss 

Text 

Pages 

Cost Per Issue
Cost Per 

Issue

a 28 24 4 7,813.78$                               7,847.00$     

b 32 28 4 9,364.41$                               8,392.00$     

c 36 32 4 8,855.67$                               8,936.00$     

d 40 36 4 10,424.93$                             10,545.00$   

Item

Base Bid 

Total 

Pages

50# 

Pages

Gloss 

Text 

Pages 

Cost Per Issue
Cost Per 

Issue

e 48 28 4 12,861.02$                             11,167.00$   

f 52 32 4 11,995.89$                             12,914.00$   

g 56 36 4 13,469.68$                             11,711.00$   

h 60 56 4 14,025.88$                             12,991.00$   

Sonoma/cover & Finch/Inside Sappi/cover & Verso/Inside

Paper manufactured by:

CITY OF TROY
BID TABULATION Page 3 of 6

PRINTING TROY TODAY NEWSLETTER

ITB-COT 16-18

VENDOR NAME:

Annual Cost Annual Cost

Printwell, Inc. EP Graphics

Taylor, MI Berne, IN

#950739 #76366

Check Amount $2,000.00 $2,000.00

BID PROPOSAL A1:  Printing & Delivery of TROY TODAY  Newsletters - 60# Gloss Text Cover, 35#/80 Bright.

Annual Cost Annual Cost

43,789.32$          36,140.00$                    

27,153.72$          26,616.00$                    

32,101.40$          28,044.00$                    

35,594.24$          34,404.00$                    

30,065.60$          29,472.00$                    

BID PROPOSAL A2:  Printing & Delivery of RECREATION TROY TODAY Newsletters - 60# Gloss Text Cover, 35#/80 

Bright.

Annual Cost Annual Cost

31,255.12$          31,388.00$                    

37,457.64$          33,568.00$                    

39,874.56$          37,568.00$                    

47,028.56$          41,184.00$                    

44,946.72$          40,876.00$                    

BID PROPOSAL B1:  Printing & Delivery of TROY TODAY  Newsletters - 50# Offset/92 Bright.

35,422.68$          35,744.00$                    

BID PROPOSAL B2:  Printing & Delivery of RECREATION TROY TODAY Newsletters - 50# Offset/92 Bright

53,878.72$          46,844.00$                    

51,964.00$                    

Flip Page Newsletter for posting on City's Website 300.00$               $4.00/page

51,444.08$          44,668.00$                    

47,983.56$          51,656.00$                    

56,103.52$          

41,699.72$          42,180.00$                    

Annual Cost Annual Cost

Cost Per Proof Cost Per Proof

BID PROPOSAL C: Flip Page Newsletter for Website

Cost Per Issue Cost Per Issue

Paper manufactured by:

ADDITIONAL CHARGES:

$20.00/pageCost per additional proofs if needed $2.00/page



Can meet Y or N

REFERENCES: Y/N Y Y

BID TABULATION

PRINTING TROY TODAY NEWSLETTER

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 16-18

Page 4 of 6

Shawn Borg Lori Bantz

Y Y

VENDOR NAME: Printwell, Inc. EP Graphics

Taylor, MI Berne, IN

COMPLETION SCHEDULE

CONTACT INFORMATION

Contact Person

24 hours 8am - 5pm

734 247 8030 260 729 2245

Hours of Operation

Phone No.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
Y/N

Y Y

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30 Net 30

EXCEPTIONS: None None

QUESTIONNAIRE: Y/N Y Y



Check #

Item

Base Bid 

Total 

Pages

35# 

Pages

Gloss 

Text 

Pages 

Cost Per Issue
Cost Per 

Issue

a 28 24 4 8,787.00$                               

b 32 28 4 9,199.00$                               

c 36 32 4 9,611.00$                               

d 40 36 4 10,243.00$                             

Item

Base Bid 

Total 

Pages

35# 

Pages

Gloss 

Text 

Pages 

Cost Per Issue
Cost Per 

Issue

e 48 44 4 11,145.00$                             

f 52 48 4 11,479.00$                             

g 56 52 4 12,895.00$                             

h 60 56 4 13,306.00$                             

Flogloss/Cover & Resolute/Inside

Item

Base Bid 

Total 

Pages

50# 

Pages

Gloss 

Text 

Pages 

Cost Per Issue
Cost Per 

Issue

a 28 24 4 10,199.00$                             

b 32 28 4 10,846.00$                             

c 36 32 4 11,492.00$                             

d 40 36 4 12,236.00$                             

Item

Base Bid 

Total 

Pages

50# 

Pages

Gloss 

Text 

Pages 

Cost Per Issue
Cost Per 

Issue

e 48 28 4 13,654.00$                             

f 52 32 4 14,301.00$                             

g 56 36 4 15,952.00$                             

h 60 56 4 16,598.00$                             

Flogloss/Cover & Resolute/Inside

CITY OF TROY
BID TABULATION Page 5 of 6

PRINTING TROY TODAY NEWSLETTER

ITB-COT 16-18

VENDOR NAME:

Annual Cost Annual Cost

AinsTech, Inc.

Troy, MI

#988996

Check Amount $2,000.00

BID PROPOSAL A1:  Printing & Delivery of TROY TODAY  Newsletters - 60# Gloss Text Cover, 35#/80 Bright.

35,148.00$          -$                               

36,796.00$          -$                               

40,972.00$          -$                               

38,444.00$          -$                               

BID PROPOSAL A2:  Printing & Delivery of RECREATION TROY TODAY Newsletters - 60# Gloss Text Cover, 35#/80 

Bright.

45,916.00$          -$                               

53,224.00$          -$                               

51,580.00$          -$                               

Annual Cost Annual Cost

44,580.00$          -$                               

Paper manufactured by:

BID PROPOSAL B1:  Printing & Delivery of TROY TODAY  Newsletters - 50# Offset/92 Bright.

Annual Cost Annual Cost

54,616.00$          -$                               

63,808.00$          

45,968.00$          -$                               

48,944.00$          -$                               

43,384.00$          -$                               

BID PROPOSAL B2:  Printing & Delivery of RECREATION TROY TODAY Newsletters - 50# Offset/92 Bright

57,204.00$          -$                               

-$                               

Annual Cost Annual Cost

40,796.00$          -$                               

Cost Per Issue Cost Per Issue

66,392.00$          -$                               

Paper manufactured by:

BID PROPOSAL C: Flip Page Newsletter for Website

Flip Page Newsletter for posting on City's Website 117.00$               

ADDITIONAL CHARGES:

130.00$               

Cost Per Proof Cost Per Proof

Cost per additional proofs if needed



Can meet Y or N

REFERENCES: Y/N

QUESTIONNAIRE: Y/N Y

Y

PRINTING TROY TODAY NEWSLETTER

VENDOR NAME: AinsTech, Inc.

Troy, MI

CONTACT INFORMATION

Contact Person

Hours of Operation

Y

COMPLETION SCHEDULE

Shawn Borg

CITY OF TROY

BID TABULATION Page 6 of 6

ITB-COT 16-18

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30

EXCEPTIONS: None

24 hours

Phone No. 734 247 8030

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
Y/N

Y



 

 

1 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Date:  April 21, 2016 
 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager 

Mark Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development 
  Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Award to Low Bidders – Home Chore Lawn and 

Yard Services 
 

 
History 

 The City of Troy receives Community Development Block Grant funding each year and 15% of 
the total funding can be allocated for Public Services.   

 The City of Troy utilizes our Public Services allocation for the Home Chore program.  Low 
income qualified senior citizens and persons with permanent disabilities are eligible for the 
City’s Home Chore Program which offers lawn and yard services in the spring, summer and fall 
seasons and Snow Removal in the winter.   

 The yard services include lawn mowing plus spring and fall clean-up of the homeowner’s 
yards.  Currently the City has over ninety (90) qualified recipients signed up for the Home 
Chore Program. 

 The current contract expired December 31, 2015. 
 
Purchasing 

 On April 14, 2016; a bid opening was conducted as required by City Charter/Code and bids 
were received at the City’s request from firms interested in providing seasonal requirements of 
lawn and yard services for Troy residents using the Home Chore Program with an option to 
renew for one (1) additional season.   

 Companies were notified via the Michigan Intergovernmental Trade Network (MITN); 
www.mitn.info. 249 vendors were notified via the MITN website.  Four (4) bid responses were 
received.  Below is a detailed summary of the vendor responses. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Companies notified via MITN 249 

Troy Companies notified via MITN 7 

Troy Companies - Active email Notification 7 

Troy Companies - Active Free 0 

Companies that viewed the bid  26 

Troy Companies that viewed the bid 0 

 

 

MITN provides a resourceful online platform to streamline the 
procurement process, reduce costs, and make it easier and more 
transparent for vendors to do business with the City of Troy. 
Active MITN members with a current membership and paying annual 
dues receive automatic electronic notification which allows instant 
access to Bids, RFPS and Quote opportunities with the City.   
Active MITN non-paying members are responsible to monitor and 
check the MITN website for opportunities to do business with the City. 
Inactive MITN member status can occur when a company does not 
renew their account upon expiration.  Inactive members cannot be 
notified of solicitations or access any bid information. 

 

http://www.mitn.info/
stewartc
Text Box
J-04b



 

 

2 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

Purchasing (continued) 

 The award recommendation considered the vendor offering the best combination of a variety 
of factors including bid price, professional competence and level of service, equipment fleet, 
and the comfort of the residents involved in the program.  

 References were checked and a post-bid meeting was held with the companies being 
recommended. 

 The contract warrants making an award to a primary and secondary contractor in the event the 
primary contractor is unable to perform services as specified.  The secondary vendor will be 
called upon to fulfill the terms of the contract if necessary. 

 A low total award for Proposals A and B is being recommended  
 

Financial 
Funds for lawn and yard services for the Home Chore Program are available initially through the 
Public Works operating budget, then reimbursed by Oakland County through the Community 
Development Block Grant Program (CDBG). 
 
Recommendation 
City management recommends City Council award contracts for seasonal requirements of lawn and 
yard services for Troy residents using the Home Chore Program with an option to renew for one (1) 
additional season to the low total bidders, Cooper Lawnscape, Inc. of Warren, MI as the primary 
contractor, and Gratiot Landscaping of Roseville, MI, as secondary contractor at unit prices contained 
in the bid tabulation opened April 14 2016; contract to expire December 31, 2017. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Bid Award 15-16/ Standard Purchasing Resolution 2 HChore Lawn Svcs ITB-COT 16-19.doc 

 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 16-19
Opening Date: 4/14/2016 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 2
Date Reviewed: 04/14/2016 LAWN SERVICES/HOME CHORE PROGRAM

VENDOR NAME:

EST NO.

PROPOSAL A: LAWN CARE SERVICES

72 Lawn Care Services Residential City of Troy
Lots Home -up to one acre

25 Lawn-care Services at lots over 1-2 acres
Lots

PROPOSAL A ESTIMATED TOTAL 26 Weeks

PROPOSAL B: YARD CLEAN UP 

72 Yard clean up at a residential City of Troy
Lots home - up to one acre

25 Yard Clean up for lots 1-2 acres
Lots

PROPOSAL B ESTIMATED TOTAL 2 Weeks

GRAND TOTAL BOTH SERVICES: Estimated

PHONE NUMBERS: Daytime

24 Hour

Contact Name

Hrs of Operation

PAYMENT TERMS:

EXCEPTIONS:

ALL OR NONE AWARD: Y or N

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS: Signed Y or N

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE: Attached    Y or N

ATTEST: BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOW TOTAL BIDDER

Sue Riesterer
Cindy Stewart
Enna Bachelor ________________________________

MaryBeth Murz, 
Purchasing Manager

G:\ITB-COT 16-19 Lawn Care Home Chore Program

$26,234.00 $27,495.00

$29.50

$1,850.00

$37.00

$4,608.00

$32.00

$1,750.00

$35.00

$39,192.00

Y Y

Y Y Y

Y Y

Gratiot Landscaping
Roseville, MI

PRICE PER SERVICE

None

Net 30 30 Days 1% net 10

586-329-9925

586-329-9925

Wade Daley

586-859-7059

586-859-7059

Chad Cooper

7am-7pm

248-721-0794

248-721-0794

Corey Bambrough

7am-5pm

None None

7am-7pm

$8,450.00

$13.00

$17,784.00

$9.50

$13.50

Cooper Lawnscape, Inc

Warren, MI

Xpert Lawn & Snow
Ferndale, MI

$1,700.00

$34.00

$4,176.00

$29.00
$4,248.00

$5,998.00

PRICE PER SERVICE

$12.00

$32,734.00

$10,270.00

$15.80

$22,464.00

PRICE PER SERVICE

$18,720.00

$10.00

$8,775.00

$6,458.00

$33,493.00

Y

Y

$32,110.00

$5,876.00



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 16-19
BID TABULATION Page 2 of 2
LAWN SERVICES/HOME CHORE PROGRAM

VENDOR NAME:

PROPOSAL A: LAWN CARE SERVICES

72 Lawn Care Services Residential City of Troy
Lots up to one acre

25 Lawn-care Services at lots 1-2 acres
Lots

PROPOSAL A ESTIMATED TOTAL 26 Weeks

PROPOSAL B: YARD CLEAN UP 

72 Yard clean up at a residential City of Troy
Lots up to one acre

25 Yard Clean up for lots 1-2 acres
Lots C

PROPOSAL B ESTIMATED TOTAL 2 Weeks

GRAND TOTAL BOTH SERVICES: Estimated

PHONE NUMBERS: Daytime
24 Hour
Contact Name
Hrs of Operation

PAYMENT TERMS:

EXCEPTIONS:

ALL OR NONE AWARD: Y or N

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS: Signed Y or N

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE: Attached    Y or N

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

Stanley Brantley

810-610-0427
810-610-0427

Y

Y

Y

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

PRICE PER SERVICEPRICE PER SERVICE

Brantley Development

$0.00

Inkster, MI

$0.00

$17,875.00

$27.50

$36,036.00

$19.25

$53,911.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$8,340.00

$6,048.00

$42.00

PRICE PER SERVICE

$62,251.00

Blank

7am-7pm

2% Ten Days

$2,562.50

$51.25



 

 

1 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
  

Date:  May 2, 2016 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager  
  Tom Darling, Director of Financial Services 
  Kurt Bovensiep, Public Works Manager 
     
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 2 - Sole Bidder Meeting Specifications – Redwood 

Park Pickleball Courts 
 

History 

 The Parks Division is responsible for the maintenance of all municipal property and improvements 
to parks. 

 Redwood Park is a small neighborhood park located in a subdivision at 14 mile and Stephenson. 

 2010 census data moved the low to moderate-income section to the area that Redwood Park is in 
making it eligible for improvements using Community Development Block Grant (CBDG) funds. 

 City Council adopted the CDBG application to expend 2015 funds in the amount of $107,000 on 
improving Redwood Park, which includes converting two basketball courts into four Pickleball 
Courts (Resolution #2015-01-015). 

 CDBG funds are Federal Funds that require the city to pay a prevailing wage rate for this project. 

 The City of Troy currently does not have any outdoor Pickleball Courts. 
 

Purchasing 
On April 28, 2016, a bid opening was conducted as required by City Charter/Code and bids were 
received at the City’s request from firms interested in providing services to install four Pickleball 
Courts at Redwood Park.  Companies were notified via the Michigan Intergovernmental Trade 
Network (MITN); www.mitn.info.  392 vendors were notified via the MITN website.  One (1) bid 
response was received.  Below is a detailed summary of the vendor responses. 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Companies notified via MITN 392 

Troy Companies notified via MITN 9 

Troy Companies - Active email Notification 9 

Troy Companies - Active Free 0 

Companies that viewed the bid  26 

Troy Companies that viewed the bid 1 

 

 

http://www.mitn.info/
stewartc
Text Box
J-04c



 

 

2 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

Purchasing (continued) 
After reviewing the proposal, WCI Contractors, Inc., of Detroit, MI was the sole bidder meeting 
specifications and is being recommended for the installation of four (4) Pickleball Courts, which 

includes resurfacing, fencing, and other related tasks at Redwood Park at unit prices identified in 
the attached bid tabulation.  
 
Financial 
Funds for this project are budgeted in the Park Development Capital Budget and are 100% 
reimbursable through the Community Development Block Grant. 
 
Recommendation 
City management recommends awarding a contract to provide four (4) Pickleball Courts which 

includes resurfacing, fencing, and other related tasks at Redwood Park to the following lowest 
responsible bidder; WCI Contractors, Inc., of Detroit, MI, at unit prices as contained in the attached 
bid tabulation for an estimated total cost of $138,759.00, not to exceed budgetary limitations.  The 
award is contingent upon the contractor’s submission of properly executed bid documents including 
insurance certificates and all other specified requirements. 
 
 
 
 



 

 



Opening Date -- 4/28/2016 CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 16-21
Date Reviewed -- 05/04/2016 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 1

REDWOOD PARK PICKLEBALL COURTS

Vendor:

Check#:
Amount:

Item Qty. Unit Price Total Cost Unit Price Total Cost 

1. Mobilization, (max 10%) Lump Sum 11,200.00$      11,200.00$        

2. Basketball Hoop, Rem & Salv 4 each 340.00$           1,360.00$          

3. Existing Net Post Foundations, Rem 2 each 225.00$           450.00$             

4. Pavt, Rem 802 Sq. Yds. 15.00$             12,030.00$        

5. Dr Structure, Rem 4 each 280.00$           1,120.00$          

6. Maintenance Basin, HDPE, 12 inch 4 each 840.00$           3,360.00$          

7. Existing Gate, Rem, Repair & Install 4 each 150.00$           600.00$             

8. Site Grading Lump Sum 8,650.00$        8,650.00$          

9. Aggregate Base, 21AA Limestone, CIP 270 Tons 32.60$             8,802.00$          

10. HMA, 13A, 1.5 inch, Wearing 80 Tons 230.00$           18,400.00$        

11. HMA, 13A, 1.5 inch, Leveling 80 Tons 230.00$           18,400.00$        

12. Plexipave Textured Colored Surface Lump Sum 5,950.00$        5,950.00$          

13. Net Posts, Nets and Center Anchors 4 each 1,120.00$        4,480.00$          

14. Post Foundations 8 each 840.00$           6,720.00$          

15. Chain Link fence, 72 inch 156 ft. 80.00$             12,480.00$        

16. Seeding, Mixture THM 66 lb. 12.00$             792.00$             

17. Topsoil Surface, Furn, 3 inch 1450 Sq. Yds. 3.60$               5,220.00$          

18. Fertilizer, Chemical Nutrient, CI A 68 lb. 2.50$               170.00$             

19. Mulch 1450 Sq. Yds. 0.30$               435.00$             

20. Water, Sodding/Seeding (1,000 gal/unit) 10 units 420.00$           4,200.00$          

21. Weed Control (if necessary) 1450 Sq. Yds. 0.20$               290.00$             

22. Prefabricated Portable Sanitary Facility Lump Sum 250.00$           250.00$             

23. Audio/Video Route Survey Lump Sum 1,650.00$        1,650.00$          

24. Inspection Crew Days @ $500.00 # of days 14.00$             7,000.00$          

25. Electrical Demolition Lump Sum 4,750.00$        4,750.00$          

GRAND TOTAL AMOUNT OF BASE BID:

CONTACT INFORMATION:

INSURANCE: Can Meet
Cannot Meet

EXCEPTIONS:

FORMS COMPLETED:

Denotes: Sole Bidder Meeting Specifications

ATTEST:
Sue Reisterer
Ashely Levin MaryBeth Murz,
Enna Bachelor Purchasing Manager

WCI CONTRACTORS, INC

Detroit, MI

#745984
$10,000.00

PROPOSAL:  REDWOOD PARK PICKLEBALL COURTS

Y

$138,759.00

Y

NONE

313-368-2100
Thomas Maliszewski III, VP

wcicontractors@msn.com

G:\Bid Tabs 15-16\ITB-COT ENG 16-21 Redwood Park Courts_DPW.xlsx

mailto:wcicontractors@msn.com


 

 

1 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
  

Date:  May 4, 2016 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager   
  Kurt Bovensiep, Public Works Manager 
  Ashely Levin, Project Manager 
   
   
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Award to Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – 

Sidewalk Replacement and Installation Program, and Manhole Rehabilitation  
 
History 

 The Streets Division is responsible for the inspection of all sidewalks and approaches and ensuring 
defects are corrected to provide a safe pedestrian walkway. 

 Under Chapter 34.10, residents are responsible for the maintenance and repair of sidewalks abutting 
their property.  

 The Streets Division notifies property owners of any defects and provides an opportunity to the 
resident to either complete the repair him or herself or to participate in Troy’s sidewalk program. 

 Under this program, the city manages the repairs and then invoices the resident for the work. 

 It is usually least expensive for residents to participate in the program and allow the city to manage 
the work because of the large work volumes specified in the bid. 

 It is estimated that residents in the program reimburse 40-60% of total program expenses. The 
remaining expenses not reimbursed are from sidewalk defects caused by city assets such as Rights-
of-Way trees, manholes, or the property is owned by the city. 

 This year’s bid was updated to include self-adjusting manhole covers which will help to alleviate 
sidewalk defects caused by manholes. 
 

Purchasing 
The bid was posted on the Michigan Inter-governmental Trade Network (MITN) website; www.mitn.info.  
Five (5) bid responses were received.  On April 21, 2016, a bid opening was then conducted for Sidewalk 
Replacement and Installation.  Below is a detailed summary of potential vendors for the bid opportunity: 
 

 
 

Companies notified via MITN 431 

Troy Companies notified via MITN 5 

Troy Companies - Active email 
Notification 5 

Troy Companies - Active Free 0 

Companies that viewed the bid  40 

Troy Companies that viewed the bid 0 

 
 

MITN provides a resourceful online platform to streamline the procurement 
process, reduce costs, and make it easier and more transparent for vendors 
to do business with the City of Troy. 
Active MITN members with a current membership and paying annual dues 
receive automatic electronic notification which allows instant access to Bids, 
RFPS and Quote opportunities with the City.   
Active MITN non-paying members are responsible to monitor and check the 
MITN website for opportunities to do business with the City. 
Inactive MITN member status can occur when a company does not renew 
their account upon expiration.  Inactive members cannot be notified of 
solicitations or access any bid information. 

 

http://www.mitn.info/
stewartc
Text Box
J-04d



 

 

2 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

Financial 
Funds for Sidewalk Replacement and Installation Program, and Manhole Rehabilitation are available 
in the Streets Division’s Capital Budget. 
 
Recommendation 
City management recommends awarding a one (1) year contract (2016-2017) with the option to 
renew for two (2) additional years to the low bidder meeting specifications; Italia Construction of 
Washington, MI for an estimated total cost of $500,000 per year at unit prices contained in the bid 
tabulation opened April 21, 2016 with all expenses not to exceed budgetary limitations, contract 
expiring June 30, 2019.  
 
 



Opening Date -- 4/21/2016 CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 16-20
Date Reviewed - 4/26/2016 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 6

SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT & INSTALLATION

VENDOR NAME:

CITY, STATE
CHECK #:

CHECK AMOUNT:

EST UNIT ESTIMATED UNIT ESTIMATED

ITEM DESCRIPTION U/M QTY  PRICE TOTAL  PRICE TOTAL

1 Remove and Replace 4" Concrete S.F. 75,000 $3.74 $280,500.00 $4.20 $315,000.00
2 Remove and Replace 6" Concrete S.F. 40,000 $4.50 $180,000.00 $4.85 $194,000.00
3 Remove and Replace 8" Concrete S.F. 5,000   $5.23 $26,150.00 $5.00 $25,000.00
4 Adjusting Drainage Structure Ea 45 $110.00 $4,950.00 $150.00 $6,750.00
5 Reconstruct Drainage Structure L.F. 40 $110.00 $4,400.00 $75.00 $3,000.00
6 L.F. 1200 $24.00 $28,800.00 $24.00 $28,800.00
7 Install Handicap Ramps per  MDOT R-28H S.F. 7,500 $6.00 $45,000.00 $9.50 $71,250.00
8 Detectable Warnings L.F. 50 $40.00 $2,000.00 $3.00 $150.00
9 Remove Concrete & replace with top soil & seed S.F. 2,000 $1.00 $2,000.00 $1.10 $2,200.00
10 Tree Root Grind EA 350 $1.00 $350.00 $12.00 $4,200.00
11 Class "A" Culvert, 12", if needed L.F. 10 $20.00 $200.00 $7.00 $70.00
12 6" Edge drain, if needed L.F. 250 $2.00 $500.00 $3.00 $750.00
13 Install Concrete Sidewalk, 4" as per specs. S.F. 5,000 $3.65 $18,250.00 $2.75 $13,750.00
14 Install Concrete Sidewalk, 6" as per specs. S.F. 500 $4.50 $2,250.00 $3.00 $1,500.00
15 Install Concrete Sidewalk, 8" as per specs. S.F. 250 $6.00 $1,500.00 $3.25 $812.50
16 Install HCR Cheek Walls, 0"-18' in height L.F. 50 $9.00 $450.00 $7.00 $350.00
17 Traffic Maintenance Included
18 Soil Erosion Control Included
19 Restoration Included

EST UNIT ESTIMATED UNIT ESTIMATED

ITEM DESCRIPTION U/M QTY  PRICE TOTAL  PRICE TOTAL

1 L.F. 25 $285.00 $7,125.00 395.00$    $9,875.00
2 L.F. 25 $285.00 $7,125.00 395.00$    $9,875.00
3 L.F. 25 $285.00 $7,125.00 175.00$    $4,375.00
4 Included
5 Included

Included

ESTIMATED ONE (1) YEAR GRAND TOTAL COST PROPOSAL 

A - SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT AND INSTALLATION $597,300.00 $667,582.50

ESTIMATED  GRAND TOTAL - PROPOSALS A & B: $618,675.00 $691,707.50

Items of Excavation, Removal & Restoration Included Included

ESTIMATED ONE (1) YEAR GRAND TOTAL COST PROPOSAL 

B - SANITARY MANHOLE REHABILITATION $21,375.00 $24,125.00

Italia Construction, Inc.
Rotondo Construction, 

Inc.

Farmington Hills, MI

#000971160
$10,000.00

ONE(1) YEAR REQUIREMENTS OF THE SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT AND INSTALLATION PROGRAM 

WITH AN OPTION TO RENEW FOR TWO (2) ADDITIONAL ONE (1) YEAR PERIODS.

PROPOSAL A:  SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT AND SIDEWALK INSTALLATION PROGRAM (Local & 

Major Roads Scattered Locations within the City.)

Remove/Replace Concrete Curb/Gutter, if 

Included Included
Included Included

Washington, MI

#1608401952
$10,000.00

PROPOSAL B:  SANITARY MANHOLE REHABILITATION

Repair Sanitary Manhole Chimney
Repair Gate Well Manhole Chimney
External Seal - Sanitary Manhole Wrap
Traffic Maintenance Included Included

Included



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 16-20
BID TABULATION Page 2 of 6
SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT & INSTALLATION

VENDOR NAME:

Can Meet
INSURANCE: Cannot Meet

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hours of Operation
24 Hr Phone #

PROGRESS PAYMENTS: Identified as

REFERENCES: Y or N

PAYMENT TERMS: 

WARRANTY:

EXCEPTIONS:

FORMS COMPLETED:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Signed Y or N

Denotes: Low Bidder meeting specifications.

ATTEST:
Sue Reisterer
Ashely Levin MaryBeth Murz, 
Enna Bachelor Purchasing Manager

G: ITB-COT 16-20 Sidewalk Replacement Program

Y Y

Blank Blank

Y Y

Minimum 2 Year Minimum 2 Year

Y Y

Blank Blank

Every 2-4 weeks Every 2 weeks

7am-7pm 8am-5pm

586-405-1347 248-763-0420

X X

Italia Construction, Inc.
Rotondo Construction, 

Inc.

Bid from Merlo Construction rejected for failure to 

submit bid deposit



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 16-20
BID TABULATION Page 3 of 6

SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT & INSTALLATION

VENDOR NAME:

CITY, STATE
CHECK #:

CHECK AMOUNT:

EST UNIT ESTIMATED UNIT ESTIMATED

ITEM DESCRIPTION U/M QTY  PRICE TOTAL  PRICE TOTAL

1 Remove and Replace 4" Concrete S.F. 75,000 $4.40 $330,000.00 $4.70 $352,500.00
2 Remove and Replace 6" Concrete S.F. 40,000 $5.00 $200,000.00 $5.30 $212,000.00
3 Remove and Replace 8" Concrete S.F. 5,000   $5.60 $28,000.00 $5.90 $29,500.00
4 Adjusting Drainage Structure Ea 45 $200.00 $9,000.00 $200.00 $9,000.00
5 Reconstruct Drainage Structure L.F. 40 $200.00 $8,000.00 $250.00 $10,000.00
6 L.F. 1200 $28.00 $33,600.00 $23.50 $28,200.00
7 Install Handicap Ramps per  MDOT R-28H S.F. 7,500 $6.00 $45,000.00 $7.30 $54,750.00
8 Detectable Warnings L.F. 50 $50.00 $2,500.00 $120.00 $6,000.00
9 Remove Concrete & replace with top soil & seed S.F. 2,000 $2.00 $4,000.00 $2.00 $4,000.00
10 Tree Root Grind EA 350 $50.00 $17,500.00 $75.00 $26,250.00
11 Class "A" Culvert, 12", if needed L.F. 10 $20.00 $200.00 $30.00 $300.00
12 6" Edge drain, if needed L.F. 250 $8.00 $2,000.00 $10.00 $2,500.00
13 Install Concrete Sidewalk, 4" as per specs. S.F. 5,000 $5.00 $25,000.00 $3.45 $17,250.00
14 Install Concrete Sidewalk, 6" as per specs. S.F. 500 $6.00 $3,000.00 $4.00 $2,000.00
15 Install Concrete Sidewalk, 8" as per specs. S.F. 250 $7.00 $1,750.00 $5.00 $1,250.00
16 Install HCR Cheek Walls, 0"-18' in height L.F. 50 $20.00 $1,000.00 $20.00 $1,000.00
17 Traffic Maintenance Included
18 Soil Erosion Control Included
19 Restoration Included

EST UNIT ESTIMATED UNIT ESTIMATED

ITEM DESCRIPTION U/M QTY  PRICE TOTAL  PRICE TOTAL

1 L.F. 25 $300.00 $7,500.00 250.00$    $6,250.00
2 L.F. 25 $300.00 $7,500.00 250.00$    $6,250.00
3 L.F. 25 $300.00 $7,500.00 250.00$    $6,250.00
4 Included
5 Included

ESTIMATED  GRAND TOTAL - PROPOSALS A & B: $733,050.00 $775,250.00

Items of Excavation, Removal & Restoration Included Included

ESTIMATED ONE (1) YEAR GRAND TOTAL COST PROPOSAL 

B - SANITARY MANHOLE REHABILITATION $22,500.00 $18,750.00

PROPOSAL B:  SANITARY MANHOLE REHABILITATION

Repair Sanitary Manhole Chimney
Repair Gate Well Manhole Chimney
External Seal - Sanitary Manhole Wrap
Traffic Maintenance Included Included

Included Included
ESTIMATED ONE (1) YEAR GRAND TOTAL COST PROPOSAL 

A - SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT AND INSTALLATION $710,550.00 $756,500.00

Included Included
Included Included

#1290157 2010945395
$10,000.00 $10,000.00

PROPOSAL A:  SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT AND SIDEWALK INSTALLATION PROGRAM (Local & 

Major Roads Scattered Locations within the City.)

ONE(1) YEAR REQUIREMENTS OF THE SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT AND INSTALLATION PROGRAM 

WITH AN OPTION TO RENEW FOR TWO (2) ADDITIONAL ONE (1) YEAR PERIODS.

L.Anthony Construction
Lacaria Concrete 
Construction, Inc.

Shelby Twp, MI Detroit, MI

Remove/Replace Concrete Curb/Gutter, if 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 16-20
BID TABULATION Page 4 of 6

SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT & INSTALLATION

VENDOR NAME:

Can Meet
INSURANCE: Cannot Meet

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hours of Operation
24 Hr Phone #

PROGRESS PAYMENTS: Identified as

REFERENCES: Y or N

PAYMENT TERMS: 

WARRANTY:

EXCEPTIONS:

FORMS COMPLETED:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Signed Y or N Y Y

Blank Blank

N Y

Minimum 2 Year Minimum 2 Year

Blank Y

Blank 30 days

Blank 30 days

Blank 6am-6pm
Blank 313-218-6834

X X

L. Anthony Const
Lacaria Concrete 
Construction, Inc.



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 16-20

BID TABULATION Page 5 of 6
SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT & INSTALLATION

VENDOR NAME:

CITY, STATE
CHECK #:

CHECK AMOUNT:

EST UNIT ESTIMATED UNIT ESTIMATED

ITEM DESCRIPTION U/M QTY PRICE TOTAL  PRICE TOTAL

1 Remove and Replace 4" Concrete S.F. 75,000 $5.75 $431,250.00 $0.00
2 Remove and Replace 6" Concrete S.F. 40,000 $6.75 $270,000.00 $0.00
3 Remove and Replace 8" Concrete S.F. 5,000   $7.75 $38,750.00 $0.00
4 Adjusting Drainage Structure Ea 45 $200.00 $9,000.00 $0.00
5 Reconstruct Drainage Structure L.F. 40 $200.00 $8,000.00 $0.00
6 L.F. 1200 $40.00 $48,000.00 $0.00
7 Install Handicap Ramps per  MDOT R-28H S.F. 7,500 $10.00 $75,000.00 $0.00
8 Detectable Warnings L.F. 50 $50.00 $2,500.00 $0.00
9 Remove Concrete & replace with top soil & seed S.F. 2,000 $3.00 $6,000.00 $0.00
10 Tree Root Grind EA 350 $100.00 $35,000.00 $0.00
11 Class "A" Culvert, 12", if needed L.F. 10 $30.00 $300.00 $0.00
12 6" Edge drain, if needed L.F. 250 $20.00 $5,000.00 $0.00
13 Install Concrete Sidewalk, 4" as per specs. S.F. 5,000 $5.00 $25,000.00 $0.00
14 Install Concrete Sidewalk, 6" as per specs. S.F. 500 $6.00 $3,000.00 $0.00
15 Install Concrete Sidewalk, 8" as per specs. S.F. 250 $7.00 $1,750.00 $0.00
16 Install HCR Cheek Walls, 0"-18' in height L.F. 50 $50.00 $2,500.00 $0.00
17 Traffic Maintenance Included
18 Soil Erosion Control Included
19 Restoration Included

EST UNIT ESTIMATED UNIT ESTIMATED

ITEM DESCRIPTION U/M QTY  PRICE TOTAL  PRICE TOTAL

1 L.F. 25 $500.00 $12,500.00 $0.00
2 L.F. 25 $500.00 $12,500.00 $0.00
3 L.F. 25 $500.00 $12,500.00 $0.00
4 Included
5 Included

ESTIMATED  GRAND TOTAL - PROPOSALS A & B: $998,550.00 $0.00

Items of Excavation, Removal & Restoration Included Included

ESTIMATED ONE (1) YEAR GRAND TOTAL COST PROPOSAL 

B - SANITARY MANHOLE REHABILITATION $37,500.00 $0.00

PROPOSAL B:  SANITARY MANHOLE REHABILITATION

Repair Sanitary Manhole Chimney
Repair Gate Well Manhole Chimney
External Seal - Sanitary Manhole Wrap
Traffic Maintenance Included Included

Included Included
Included Included

ESTIMATED ONE (1) YEAR GRAND TOTAL COST PROPOSAL 

A - SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT AND INSTALLATION $961,050.00 $0.00

$10,000.00

PROPOSAL A:  SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT AND SIDEWALK INSTALLATION PROGRAM (Local & 

Major Roads Scattered Locations within the City.)

Remove/Replace Concrete Curb/Gutter, if 

Included Included

ONE(1) YEAR REQUIREMENTS OF THE SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT AND INSTALLATION PROGRAM 

WITH AN OPTION TO RENEW FOR TWO (2) ADDITIONAL ONE (1) YEAR PERIODS.

Luigi Ferdinardi & Son 
Cement Co. Inc.

Roseville, MI
#1268816



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 16-20
BID TABULATION Page 6 of 6
SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT & INSTALLATION

VENDOR NAME:

Can Meet
INSURANCE: Cannot Meet

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hours of Operation
24 Hr Phone #

PROGRESS PAYMENTS: Identified as

REFERENCES: Y or N

PAYMENT TERMS: 

WARRANTY:

EXCEPTIONS:

FORMS COMPLETED:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Signed Y or N

Minimum 2 Years

Y

30 days net

Y

N/A

Y

Net 30 days

8am-5pm
586-615-6101

X X

Luigi Ferdinardi & Son 
Cement Co. Inc.



 

 
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  April 18, 2016 
 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
  Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
  Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
    
Subject: Private Agreement – Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements  
 Stonecrest Planned Unit Development & Dog Park - Project No. 15.925.3 
 
 
History 
 
NP Troy LLC proposes to develop Stonecrest Planned Unit Development (PUD) located on the east 
side of Livernois between Big Beaver and Wattles, in Section 22.  
 
City Council at the November 23, 2015  City Council meeting approved the Concept Development 
Plan and the Preliminary Development Plan for Stonecrest Assisted Living  PUD & Dog Park, 
Resolution #2015-11-148. 
 
Site grading and utility plans for this development were reviewed and recently approved by the 
Engineering Department.  The plans include municipal improvements which will be constructed by NP 
Troy LLC on behalf of the City of Troy: including water main, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, detention, 
paving, sidewalks, landscaping and soil erosion.  The required fees and refundable escrow deposits 
in the form of performance bond & 10% cash, that will assure completion of the municipal 
improvements, have been provided by NP Troy LLC (see attached Private Agreement).  
 
The Engineering Department has worked with NP Troy LLC to extend a 12” water main from 
Livernois east to Colebrook.  The 2015 Water System Reliability Study recommended constructing 
this water main loop to improve fire flows and increase pressure.  It is proposed that the water main 
extension to Colebrook be constructed by the contractor for NP Troy LLC at the same time that 
utilities are being constructed for the new assisted living facility and Dog Park.  The City would 
reimburse NP Troy, LLC for the cost of the extensions in accordance with the unit prices they 
submitted.  Engineering has reviewed the pricing and found it to be reasonable and fair market value 
for this type of work.   
 
Financial 
 
See attached summary of required deposits and fees for this Private Agreement.   
 
Funds for the additional water main work are included in the Water and Sewer Funds. 
 
 

stewartc
Text Box
J-05



 

 
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
 
Recommendation 
 
Approval of the Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) is 
recommended. 
 
It is also recommended that the City of Troy reimburse NP Troy LLC $62,431.64 (upon completion 
and approval) for the installation of approximately 1,300 feet of 12” water main and related work 
within the Stonecrest PUD. 
 
 
 
 
G:\Projects\Projects - 2015\15.925.3 - Stonecrest PUD\Private Agreement Agenda Item Document_NEW_2-24-14.doc 















finlaysg
Rectangle

finlaysg
Callout
PROJECT LOCATION



 

 
April 18, 2016 
 
TO:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
FROM: Mark Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
  David Roberts, Fire Chief 
  Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
   
SUBJECT: Agreement for Traffic Control Device 
  Fire Station #4 Sign and Flasher Removals (Co. #1018) 
 
Background: 
 
The existing warning signal lights and sign over Maple Road in front of Fire Station #4 have been in 
place for many years. The flashing amber lights activate upon receiving a radio signal from the station.   
It is not a traffic control signal.  Based on our experience, this setup has not made a noticeable impact 
on traffic to improve the response time of firefighters to and from the station, and has been challenging 
at times to maintain. 
 
After discussion with Station #4 members, it was determined that keeping the current warning signal 
and relocating it as part of the construction of the new fire station, is not worth the expense. Installing 
a new, fully functional emergency traffic control signal in front of the new fire station would be cost 
prohibitive and, would unlikely be effective due to its close proximity to the John R intersection and the 
difficulty in timing the two signals. As such, a request to remove the existing warning signal lights, sign, 
and pole has been made to the Road Commission for Oakland County (RCOC).   
 
Attached is an Agreement for Traffic Control Device between the RCOC and Troy. The RCOC will 
remove the warning signals, signs and associated materials.   
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
The estimated cost for this work is $4,500.  The actual cost paid by the City to the RCOC will be 
based on the actual work performed by the RCOC. 
 
Funds for the work will be taken from the Capital Fund for the Fire Station construction project. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
The agreement is of the same format and content as other traffic signal agreements that have been 
previously approved.   
 
 
Wjh/ G:\Contracts\Contracts - 2016\16-xx Fire Station 4\Correspondence\To CC re Emergency Fire Signal_REMOVAL-Rev3.docx 

CITY COUNCIL ACTION REPORT 
 

stewartc
Text Box
J-06



 
 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 
BOARD OF COUNTY ROAD COMMISSIONERS 

OAKLAND COUNTY 
AGREEMENT FOR TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICE 

 
 
 
Type of Work: Fire Station Sign and Flasher Removals 

 
 
Location:    Maple Road, East of John R Road, Troy Fire Station #4    Signal No:  1018  
 Fire Station Driveway Signs and Flashers   Date Effective: 

 
Under authority of state law and by virtue of resolution formally adopted by their respective governing bodies, the under-signed hereby 
agree to participate in the cost of installation, maintenance and operation of the above traffic control device on the basis of the following 
division of costs. (Title to equipment shall remain with the purchasing agency, unless purchased for roads not under the jurisdiction of 
the Board of County Road Commissioner.) The proportionate share of all costs are to be billed monthly. This agreement is terminable 
on thirty days written notice by any party. 
 

DIVISION OF COSTS 

 
 
 AGENCY     REMOVAL MAINTENANCE 
 Percent Estimated Cost Percent 
                                                             
   

City of Troy        100 %         $ 4,500.00    N/A 
 
 
                                                                             Total      100 %        $ 4,500.00         N/A 
  
It is further agreed that the agency responsible for payment of energy billings and/or leased line interconnection billings included in 
maintenance costs, shall be the ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY. 
 
It is further agreed that the agency responsible for making original and replacement installations and performing maintenance shall be 
the ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY. 
 
"In the event the traffic control device referred to in this agreement is located on a road or street that is not under the jurisdiction of the 
Road Commission for Oakland County, the authority having the jurisdiction over the road or street hereby agrees to save harmless, 
indemnify, represent, and defend the Road Commission for Oakland County from any and all claims, demands, or suits arising out of or 
relating to the installation, maintenance and operation of the traffic control device which is the subject matter of this agreement." 
 
"In the event the traffic control device referred to in this agreement is located on a road or street that is under the jurisdiction of the 
Road Commission for Oakland County and by virtue of this agreement will be maintained by an agency other than the Road 
Commission for Oakland County, then and in that event the said agency hereby acknowledges that it is undertaking the Road 
Commission for Oakland County's duty to maintain the said traffic control device and further agrees to provide insurance coverage 
protecting the Road Commission for Oakland County." 
 

 
APPROVED: APPROVED: 
 
ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY CITY OF TROY 
 

 
Date____________________ Date____________________ 
 
 
By__________________________ By_________________________ 
  Danielle Deneau, P.E. 
 
DIRECTOR OF TRAFFIC-SAFETY ___________________________ 
Title of Authorized Official Title of Authorized Official 
 

*Certified copy of resolution must be submitted with this form for new installations. 





 

1 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  April 22, 2016 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
  Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
  Larysa Figol, Sr. Right-of-Way Representative 
    
Subject: Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Highway Purposes from  
 A.S. Investment Properties, LLC - Sidwell #88-20-03-226-042 
   

 
 
History 

 
As part of the major road reconstruction, South Boulevard, Livernois to Rochester, the City of Troy 
has received a permanent easement for highway purposes from A.S. Investment Properties, LLC, 
owner of a property located in the northeast ¼  of Section 3 at South Boulevard and Rochester Road, 
identified with Sidwell #88-20-03-226-042. 
 
This easement will enhance the existing right turn lane to Rochester Road and allow considerable 
improvements to South Boulevard. 
 
The format and content of this easement is consistent with conveyance documents previously 
accepted by City Council.  
 
 
Financial 
 
The consideration amount on this document is $1.00. 
 
 
Recommendation 
 
City Management recommends that City Council accept the attached permanent easement 
consistent with our policy of accepting easements for development and improvement purposes. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\MEMOS TO MAYOR AND CC\AS INVESTMENT.DOC 

stewartc
Text Box
J-07



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax
maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this

data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

233

1:

Feet2330 117









 

 

1 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  May 9, 2016 
 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  Eleanor Yoon, Management Assistant 
 
Subject: Student Representatives to the Global Troy Advisory Committee 
 

 
 
History 
 
On April 4, 2016, City Council adopted a resolution to establish the Global Troy Advisory Committee. 

The committee consists of 11 Troy residents and serves as a catalyst for creating a more inclusive 

City. The initial creation did not allow for student representatives, but based on the expression of 

some interest, City Administration now recommends an amendment to allow two student 

representatives to the Global Troy Advisory Committee. This amendment is required since Chapter 6 

of the City of Troy Charter otherwise requires City board and commission members to be registered 

voters of the City and be at least 18 years old. The suggested amendment would allow up to two 

nonvoting student members on the committee.  

 
 
Suggested Resolution  

 

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted celebrating diversity as one of the top ten strategies for the City 

government on March 9, 2015, and reaffirmed this commitment by incorporating the launch of the 

Global Troy Advisory Committee as a top ten strategy for 2016; and  

 

WHEREAS, on April 4, 2016 the Troy City Council authorized the creation of the Global Troy Advisory 

Committee (Resolution #2016-04-060); and  

 

WHEREAS, the Troy City Council is desirous of allowing up to two student representatives to serve 

on the Global Troy Advisory Committee in a non-voting and advisory capacity.  

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor is authorized to appoint up to two non-voting 

student representatives to the Global Troy Committee, and that these appointments are subject to 

City Council approval. The student representatives shall be appointed for one year terms, and shall 

be eligible for re-appointment.  

 

stewartc
Text Box
J-11



 

 

2 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that City Council approves the amendment to authorize up to two non-voting 
student representatives to the Global Troy Advisory Committee.  
 
 
 
EY\AGENDA ITEMS\05.09.16 - Student Representatives to the Global Troy Advisory Committee 



 
 
Date:   May 3, 2016 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
From:   Mark Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
   Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
       
Subject:  Cost Participation Agreement for Road Work on 
 Dequindre Road, Burningbush Road to Utica Road – Phase I  
 Project No. 02.202.5  
 
History: 
 
The Cost Participation agreement between the Board of County Road Commissioners (Board) and 
the City of Troy fixes the rights and obligations of each agency as part of a multi-agency road 
construction project on Dequindre Road, from Burningbush Road (in Sterling Heights) to Utica Road 
(in Rochester Hills/Shelby Township).  This project will widen and reconstruct Dequindre Road to a 5-
lane concrete pavement with associated utilities.  The other agencies involved will execute separate 
Cost Participation Agreements with their respective Board’s for their share of the estimated project 
cost.  This is the first phase of a multi-year project. 
 
The second phase will reconstruct and widen Dequindre from Long Lake to Burningbush in 2017.  
The third and final phase will reconstruct and widen Dequindre from Utica to Auburn (outside of Troy) 
in 2018. 
 
Financial: 
 
The estimated total project cost of Phase I is $8,294,600.  Exhibit A provides details as to each 
agencies share of the project costs.  Troy’s share is estimated at $282,252.  Funds for the City of 
Troy’s share are included in the Capital Fund for 2016 and 2017. 
   
Recommendation: 
 
Staff recommends that City Council approve the attached Cost Participation Agreement between the 
City of Troy and the Board of County Road Commissioners for Oakland County for the widening and 
reconstruction of Dequindre Road, from Burningbush Road to Utica Road in the amount of 
$8,294,600 with the City of Troy share estimated at $282,252.  Furthermore, staff recommends that 
the Mayor and City Clerk be authorized to execute the agreements. 
 
WJH\G:\Contracts\Contracts - 2016\16-xx Dequindre, Beaumont to Utica (RCOC)\Cost Participation Agreement\To CC re Dequindre_Burningbush to Utica_CON_Cost Participation Agreement_r1.docx 

CITY COUNCIL ACTION REPORT 
 

stewartc
Text Box
J-12



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax
maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this

data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

3,052

1:

Feet3,0520 1,526



COST PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT 

CONSTRUCTION 

Dequindre Road 

Burningbush Road to Utica Road 

City of Troy 

Board Project No. 53071 

 

This Agreement, made and entered into this _____ day of _________________, 2016, 

by and between the Board of County Road Commissioners of the County of Oakland, Michigan, 

hereinafter referred to as the BOARD, and the City of Troy, hereinafter referred to as TROY, 

provides as follows: 

WHEREAS, the BOARD, TROY, and the City of Rochester Hills, hereinafter referred to 

as ROCHESTER HILLS, in cooperation with the Michigan Department of Transportation, 

hereinafter referred to as MDOT, have programmed the reconstruction of Dequindre Road from 

Burningbush Road to Utica Road, as described in Exhibit "A", attached hereto, and made a part 

hereof, which improvements involve a border road under the jurisdiction of the BOARD and the 

Macomb County Department of Roads and within TROY and ROCHESTER HILLS, which 

improvements are hereinafter referred to as the PROJECT; and 

WHEREAS, the estimated total cost of the PROJECT is $8,294,600; and 

WHEREAS, the BOARD has entered into Contract No. 16-5224 with MDOT for partial 

funding of the PROJECT with federal program dollars under the Transportation Economic 

Development Program in the amount of $4,657,113, the Surface Transportation Program in the 

amount of $977,000, and the State Transportation Economic Development Program in the 

amount of $975,405; and 

WHEREAS, the BOARD, as the requesting party therein, will be the party financially 

responsible to MDOT to bear all costs of the PROJECT in excess of federal funds, hereinafter 

referred to as the LOCAL SHARE; and 

WHEREAS, all the parties hereto have reached a mutual understanding regarding the 

cost sharing for the LOCAL SHARE and wish to commit that understanding to writing in this 

Agreement. 



 

Dequindre Road - 2 - 
City of Troy 
Project No. 53071 
5/3/2016 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth herein and in 

conformity with applicable law, it is hereby agreed between TROY and the BOARD that: 

1. TROY and ROCHESTER HILLS approve of the PROJECT, declare its public necessity, 

and authorizes the BOARD and MDOT to perform or cause to be performed, and 

complete the PROJECT along with all administration in reference thereto. 

2. The PROJECT shall include force account work and total payments to the contractor. 

3. The estimated total LOCAL SHARE is $1,685,082 which shall be shared equally and 

concurrently by the BOARD and the Macomb County Department of Roads.  Each 50% 

share is estimated to be $842,541.  The BOARD’S portion of the LOCAL SHARE shall 

be shared as follows: 

a. The BOARD shall contribute 50%, estimated in the amount of $421,270. 

b. The remaining 50% shall be shared by TROY and ROCHESTER HILLS for their 

respective portions of the PROJECT. 

c. TROY shall contribute 67% of the remaining 50%, estimated in the amount of 

$282,252.  TROY agrees that any cost overages shall be shared equally and 

concurrently between the BOARD and TROY. 

d. ROCHESTER HILLS shall contribute 33% of the remaining 50%, estimated in the 

amount of $139,019.  ROCHESTER HILLS agrees that any cost overages shall be 

shared equally and concurrently between the BOARD and ROCHESTER HILLS. 

4. Upon execution of this agreement, the BOARD shall submit an invoice to TROY in the 

amount of $141,126 (being 50% of TROY’S estimated portion of the BOARD’S LOCAL 

SHARE. 

5. The BOARD shall issue subsequent invoices periodically, as additional costs accrue, 

after the initial payment has been expended. 



 

Dequindre Road - 3 - 
City of Troy 
Project No. 53071 
5/3/2016 

6. The total actual LOCAL SHARE will be determined from the records of the BOARD 

upon completion of State financial audits of the PROJECT and a final determination of 

the total federal funds used on the PROJECT.  Final adjustments in the financial 

obligations of the parties hereto will be made upon completion of the required audits. 

7. Upon receipt of said invoice(s), TROY shall pay to the BOARD the full amount thereof, 

within thirty (30) days of such receipt. 

8. The BOARD shall execute a separate Cost Participation Agreement with ROCHESTER 

HILLS, for their share of the estimated PROJECT cost. 



 

Dequindre Road - 4 - 
City of Troy 
Project No. 53071 
5/3/2016 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement the day and 

date first written above. 

 BOARD OF ROAD COMMISSIONERS OF THE  
 COUNTY OF OAKLAND 
 A Public Body Corporate 

 
  By_________________________________________ 
 
 
 Its_________________________________________ 
 
 
 CITY OF TROY 

 

By_________________________________________ 
 
 
 Its_________________________________________ 

 
 
 



Contractor Payments $7,169,500

Force Account Work:
Traffic Signal Controller Cabinet Assembly Work $55,000

and Equipment, Traffic Signal Inspection Services

Construction Engineering, Construction Materials $1,070,100
Testing, and Inspection

Total Estimated Local Share $8,294,600

Less Federal Funds - TED ($4,657,113)

Less Federal Funds - STP ($977,000)

Less State Funds - TED ($975,405)

TOTAL ESTIMATED LOCAL SHARE $1,685,082

TROY
ROCH. 

HILLS
MCDR BOARD TOTAL

$282,252 $139,019 $842,541 $421,270 $1,685,082

$282,252 $139,019 $842,541 $421,270 $1,685,082

Board Project No. 53071

Reconstruction of Dequindre Road from Burningbush Road to Utica Road.

TOTAL SHARES

Contribution

COST PARTICIPATION BREAKDOWN

EXHIBIT A

ESTIMATED PROJECT COST

Dequindre Road

Burningbush Road to Utica Road

City of Troy

 



stewartc
Text Box
P-01a





stewartc
Text Box
P-01b





stewartc
Text Box
P-01c









ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING FINAL March 15, 2016 

1 

On March 15, 2016, at 7:30 p.m., in the Council Board Room of Troy City Hall, Chairman Clark 
called the Zoning Board of Appeals meeting to order. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 

Present: 
Glenn Clark 
Kenneth Courtney 
Thomas Desmond 
David Eisenbacher 
Allen Kneale 
David Lambert 
Philip Sanzica 
 

Also Present: 
Paul Evans, Zoning and Compliance Specialist 
Julie Q. Dufrane, Assistant City Attorney 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES –  December 15, 2015 
 
Moved by Courtney 
Seconded by Eisenbacher 
 

RESOLVED, to approve the December 15, 2015 meeting minutes. 
 

Yes: All 
 

MOTION PASSED 
 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA – No changes. 
 

4. HEARING OF CASE 
 

VARIANCE REQUEST, RICK AND JEANINE KACZMAREK, 6714 EMERALD LAKE – 
In order to construct an addition to the house, a 6.3 foot setback variance from the 
requirement that the combined total of both side yard setbacks equal 20 feet. 
 
Moved by Courtney 
Seconded by Desmond 
 

RESOLVED, to grant the variance. 
 

Yes: All 
 

MOTION PASSED 

stewartc
Text Box
P-01d





stewartc
Text Box
P-01e

















PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 22, 2016 
  

 
 

1 
 

Chair Edmunds called the Regular meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order at 
7:00 p.m. on March 22, 2016 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Ollie Apahidean Padma Kuppa 
Karen Crusse Philip Sanzica 
Donald Edmunds 
Carlton M. Faison 
Michael W. Hutson 
Tom Krent 
John J. Tagle 
 

Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Ben Carlisle, Carlisle Wortman Associates 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2016-03-025 
Moved by: Apahidean 
Support by: Tagle 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 

Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Kuppa, Sanzica 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2016-03-026 
Moved by: Krent 
Support by: Faison 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the March 8, 2016 Regular meeting as 
submitted. 
 

Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Kuppa, Sanzica 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

stewartc
Text Box
P-01f



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 22, 2016 
  

 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items not on the Agenda 
 
Thomas Newkold, 1072 Bradley, spoke about the Bradley Square development in 
relation to his home. 
 

5. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (ZBA) REPORT 
 
The March 15, 2016 Zoning Board of Appeals report was inclusive of the agenda 
packet. 
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Savidant reported there was no Downtown Development Authority (DDA) meeting in 
March. 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Savidant reported City Council adopted a Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment 
relating to Oil and Gas Extraction at their March 14, 2016 Regular meeting. 

 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
8. SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 

JPLN2016-0005) – Proposed K-9 Club, North side of Maple, West of Rochester 
between Eastport and Westwood, Section 27, Currently Zoned MR (Maple Road) 
District 
 
Mr. Savidant stated the proposed K-9 Club application was postponed at the March 8, 
2016 Planning Commission Regular meeting, at which time a Public Hearing was 
opened and closed. Mr. Savidant said notifications of tonight’s public meeting were sent 
to the same 71 property owners notified of the Public Hearing. 
 
Mr. Carlisle reported in an effort to mitigate noise concerns expressed at the March 8th 
Public Hearing, the applicant submitted a revised site plan that relocates the outdoor 
play area to the east side of the building further away from residential. He said the 
applicant also reduced the size of the outdoor play area by 75% and surrounds it with a 
15-foot wall. Mr. Carlisle reported the application meets all Zoning Ordinance 
requirements and all Special Use standards and recommends Preliminary Site Plan and 
Special Use approval. 
 
Mr. Carlisle acknowledged public comment received on the item was either included in 
the agenda packet or distributed to Board members prior to the beginning of tonight’s 
meeting. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 22, 2016 
  

 
 

3 
 

Mr. Carlisle said a noise assessment report prepared by Soundscape Engineering was 
also distributed to Board members prior to the beginning of tonight’s meeting. 
 
Present were the applicant John Asselin of Asselin, McLane Architectural Group, Robert 
Cassidy, prospective purchaser of the property, and Mandy Kachur of Soundscape 
Engineering. 
 
Mr. Cassidy addressed revisions to the outdoor play area and acoustical building 
materials. He circulated sample building materials. Mr. Cassidy said noise would be 
managed with a monitoring/recording device called a Yacker Tracker. 
 
Ms. Kachur reviewed in detail the noise assessment report prepared for the proposed 
K-9 Club and responded to questions posed by Board members. 
 
Chair Edmunds opened the floor for public comment. 
 
The following spoke in opposition. 

 N. Joseph Calarco, 1826 Eastport 

 Jeff Ullenbruch, 1663 Westwood 

 Jim Barnes, 1839 Eastport 

 Nicoleta Balan, 80 Stalwart; lives near existing dog day care facility 

 Tim Ostler, 1842 Eastport; delivered original list of names in opposition 

 Jim Savoie, 1853 Eastport 

 Denise Carter, 1751 Eastport 

 Renee Ullmann, 1825 Eastport 

 Shannon Fuhrman, 1780 Westwood 

 John Dobrin, 1675 Eastport 
 
Chair Edmunds closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Discussion followed on: 

 Potential uses of property; by right and special use. 

 Assessment of property values for homes near similar use. 

 Noise Assessment Report prepared by Soundscape Engineering. 
o Noise level as relates to elevation of home(s). 
o Noise level of Maple Road traffic. 

 Disposal of animal waste. 

 Applicant’s intent to seek LEED certification. 

 Applicant’s investment in development. 

 Conditions that can be placed on a Special Use approval. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL MARCH 22, 2016 
  

 
 

4 
 

Resolution # PC-2016-03-027 
Moved by: Krent 
Support by: Tagle 
 

RESOLVED, That Special Use Request and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed K-9 Club, North side of Maple, West of Rochester between Eastport and 
Westwood, Section 27, Currently Zoned MR (Maple Road) District, be granted subject 
to the following conditions: 
 

1. That the applicant and owner of the business monitor sound levels on a continuous 
basis and record and log them. 

2. Limit hours of outdoor animal activity from 8:00 a.m to 4:30 p.m., Monday through 
Friday, and 8:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m., Saturday and Sunday. 

 

Yes: All present (7) 
Absent: Kuppa, Sanzica 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Edmunds requested a recess at 8:43 p.m.; the meeting reconvened at 8:55 p.m. 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
9. POTENTIAL ENHANCED CLUSTER OPTION 

 
The following cluster option points were discussed: 

 Reduce required open space. 

 Incentivize clustering through density bonus. 

 Incentivize development that is not currently offered in the market. 

 Allow attached housing. 

 Permit greater design flexibility. 

 Eliminate extra requirements for density bonus. 
 
Mr. Carlisle said draft Zoning Ordinance language would be prepared for discussion at 
the April 12, 2016 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
 

10. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT 

 
There were general Planning Commission comments. 
 
Mr. Savidant addressed a sustainable development project that was recently granted 
approval. 





Draft Minutes Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority  
Annual Meeting - April 19, 2016 

 

1 
 

The meeting was called to order at 3:05 p.m. in the Council Boardroom, Troy City Hall 
by Vice Chairperson Rosemary Kornacki.  
 
Members Present: Joseph Vassallo (arrived 3:07 p.m.) (Chair) 
   Rosemary Kornacki (Vice Chair) 
   Mary Kerwin 
   Charles Salgat 
   Robert Swartz 
 
Members Absent: None 
 
Also Present:  Lori Bluhm, City Attorney 
   Glenn Lapin, Economic Development Specialist 
   Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development 
    
ELECTION OF OFFICERS (Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson and Secretary/Treasurer) 
 
Resolution # BRA 2016-04-01 
Moved by Kornacki 
Seconded by Salgat 
RESOLVED, that Joseph Vassallo be elected as Chairperson. 
 
Yeas:  5 
Nays:  0 
 
Resolution # BRA 2016-04-02 
Moved by Vassallo 
Seconded by Salgat 
RESOLVED, that Rosemary Kornacki be elected as Vice Chairperson. 
 
Yeas:  5 
Nays:  0 
 
Resolution # BRA 2016-04-03 
Moved by Kerwin 
Seconded by Salgat 
RESOLVED, that Mark F. Miller be elected as Secretary/Treasurer. 
 
Yeas:  5 
Nays:  0 
 
2016 REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE 
 
2016 BRA meetings are scheduled on April 19 and October 18 at 3:00 pm.  Meetings 
are held in the Council Boardroom at Troy City Hall. 

stewartc
Text Box
P-01g



Draft Minutes Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority  
Annual Meeting - April 19, 2016 

 

2 
 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM OCTOBER 20, 2015 
 
Resolution # BRA 2016-04-04 
Moved by Kerwin 
Seconded by Salgat 
 
RESOLVED, that the BRA approve the minutes of the October 20, 2015 regular 
meeting. 
 
Yeas:  5  
Nays:   0  
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
None 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. 2016-17 and 3-Year BRA Budget 
 
Mark F. Miller provided an overview of the budget to the BRA and answered questions 
related to it.   
 
Resolution # BRA 2016-04-05 
Moved by Salgat 
Seconded by Swartz 
 
RESOLVED, that the BRA approve the 2016-17 and 3-Year Budget. 
 
Yeas:  5 
Nays:  0 
 
     B. Potential Future Project Opportunities 
 
Mark F. Miller and Glenn Lapin provided an overview of potential future project 
opportunities. 
 
 
BOARD MEMBER COMMENT 
 
General discussion took place including discussion related to the potential future use of 
the unassigned BRA fund balance.  Utilizing portions of the fund balance for marketing 
purposes was suggested.   
 



Draft Minutes Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority  
Annual Meeting - April 19, 2016 

 

3 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
None 
 
Meeting was adjourned at 3:50 p.m. 
 
The next scheduled meeting is October 18, 2016 – 3:00 p.m. 

 
 
 

 



ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING DRAFT April 19, 2016 

1 

On April 19, 2016, at 7:30 p.m., in the Council Chambers of Troy City Hall, Chairman Clark 
called the Zoning Board of Appeals meeting to order. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 

Present: 
Glenn Clark 
Thomas Desmond 
David Eisenbacher (arrived 7:48 p.m.) 
Allen Kneale 
David Lambert 
Philip Sanzica 
 

Also Present: 
Paul Evans, Zoning and Compliance Specialist 
Julie Q. Dufrane, Assistant City Attorney 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES –  March 15, 2016 
 
Moved by Lambert 
Seconded by Desmond 
 

RESOLVED, to approve the March 15, 2016 meeting minutes. 
 

Yes: All 
 

MOTION PASSED 
 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA – Item 4A withdrawn by applicant, noted by Board. 
 

4. HEARING OF CASE 
 
VARIANCE REQUEST, DAVID J. PARDUN, 1321 BOYD – In order to split a parcel of 
land into two parcels, a 305.5 square foot variance from the 7,500 square foot minimum 
lot size 
 
Moved by Lambert 
Seconded by Clark 
 

RESOLVED, to deny the variance. 
 

Yes: Lambert, Clark 
No: Eisenbacher, Kneale, Sanzica, Desmond 
 

MOTION FAILS 
 

stewartc
Text Box
P-01h



ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING DRAFT April 19, 2016 

2 

Moved by Kneale 
Seconded by Lambert 
 
RESOLVED, to deny the variance. 
 

Yes: Kneale, Lambert, Clark 
No: Sanzica, Desmond, Eisenbacher 
 

MOTION FAILS 
 
Moved by Lambert 
Seconded by Kneale 
 

RESOLVED, to postpone the request to the May 17, 2016 regularly scheduled Zoning 
Board of Appeals meeting. 
 

Yes: All 
 

MOTION PASSED 
 

5. COMMUNICATIONS – The Board acknowledged receipt of the Master Plan status 
memo from the Planning Director. 

 
6. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS – None. 

 
7. PUBLIC COMMENT – None 
 
8. ADJOURNMENT – The Zoning Board of Appeals meeting ADJOURNED at 8:32 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
        
Glenn Clark, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
        
Paul Evans, Zoning and Compliance Specialist 
 
G:\ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS\Minutes\2016\Draft\2016 04 19 ZBA Minutes Draft.doc 

 



Downtown Development Authority Minutes – Draft April 20, 2016 
 

1 
 

A meeting of the Downtown Development Authority was held on Wednesday, January 20, 2016 in the 

Lower Level Conference room, City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan.  Chairman Alan Kiriluk 

called the meeting to order at 7:30 AM. 

 

Present:                          

 Blair, Tim  

 Bostick, Dennis  

 Hay, David  

 Keisling, Larry  

 Knight, Barbara  

 MacLeish, Dan  

 Randol,  Ward  

 Reschke, Ernest  

 Slater, Mayor Dane  

 Schroeder, Douglas  

   

   

Absent: Kiriluk, Alan  

 Jonna, Arkan  

 Koza, Kenny  

   

Also Present:                Miller, Mark, Executive Director  

 Darling, Thomas, Secretary/Treasurer  

 Kischnick, Brian  

 Bluhm, Lori  

 Bovenseip, Kurt  

 Hughes, Maggie  

 Savidant, Brent  

 Lapin, Glenn  

 Licari, Nino  

 Yoon, Eleanor  

 
Minutes               
 

Resolution: DDA-2016-04-21 

  

Moved by:     MacLeish     

Seconded by:  Keisling 

 

RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the January 20, 2016 regular meeting be approved. 

 

Yeas:   10 

Absent:   3 

stewartc
Text Box
P-01i



Downtown Development Authority Minutes – Draft April 20, 2016 
 

2 
 

 
Old Business – None 
 

 

New Business – Recommend approval of the fiscal year 2016/17 through 2018/19 
budget (Presented by Mark Miller, Director of Economic and 
Community Development and Thomas Darling, Financial Service 
Director) 

 
Mr. Miller reviewed the budget noting revenue streams and that “Plan” is working to cover debt. 

 

Resolution: DDA-2016-04-22 

  

Moved by:     MacLeish     

Seconded by:  Reschke 

 

RESOLVED, That the Fiscal Year 2016/17 through 2018/19 Budget be approved. 

 

Yeas:   10 

Absent:   3 

 
New Business – Planning and Development Report 

 

Brent Savidant, Planning Director reviewed and highlighted significant projects: 

Eddie V’s, Tom + Chee, 888 West Big Beaver sold for $20 million and planning for 8 

restaurants, parking deck and apartments. 

 

Glenn Lapin, Economic Development Specialist reviewed upcoming major leases in the 

district. 

 

New Business – City of Troy 2016 Strategies (Presented by Brian Kischnick, City 

Manager) 

 

Brian reviewed the Big Beaver Corridor, Seasons 52 possibly coming to town. Brian also 

reviewed the 2016 Strategies noting: 

 Space for customer service at the east entrance of City Hall, 

 Redesign of the city’s web site, 

 Review of city ordinances,  

 Installation of recycling elements at city facilities,  

 Linking the Civic Center campus with trails and pathways,  



Downtown Development Authority Minutes – Draft April 20, 2016 
 

3 
 

 Establish site development design standards to ensure quality, 

 Explore development of the Civic Center campus with a market study and developing a 

concept plan,  

 Launch the Global Troy Advisory Committee,  

 Enhance pedestrian crosswalk and transportation at Automation Alley  

 Partner to establish a Big Beaver transportation service 

 

Public Comment              
 

None 

 

Mr. Hay mentioned the Car Show on Sunday, August 7th and what a wonderful event it is. 

 

Would like to see option on how the DDA can partner with developers at a subsequent 

meeting and directed and motioned for management to assemble such a presentation at a 

subsequent meeting. 

 

 

Resolution: DDA-2016-04-23 

  

Moved by:     Blair     

Seconded by:  Macleish 

 

RESOLVED, That management coordinate a meeting between the DDA and developers to discuss 

partnership possibilities. 

 

Yeas:   10 

Absent:   3 

 

This meeting was adjourned at 8:24 AM. 

 

The next regular meeting of the Troy Downtown Development Authority is scheduled for Wednesday 

October 19, 2016 at 7:30 AM. 

 
 

 

 



Draft Minutes  
Joint Local Development Finance Authority Troy Subcommittee        

Annual Meeting of April 25, 2016 
 

1 
 

The meeting was called to order at 3:30 p.m. in the Council Boardroom at Troy’s City 
Hall by Chairperson Robin Beltramini.   
 
Members Present: Chairperson Robin Beltramini 
   Ellen Hodorek (alternate) 
   Paul Hoef 

David Shields     
Irene Spanos (County representative, non-voting) 

    
Members Absent: John Sharp 
  Mayor Dane Slater (alternate) 
  Nikolas Vitale 
   
Also Present:  Lori Bluhm, City Attorney 
   Glenn Lapin, Economic Development Specialist 

Secretary/Treasurer Mark F. Miller 
 
ELECTION OF OFFICERS (Chair, Secretary/Treasurer) 
 
Resolution # LDFA 2016-04-01 
Moved by Hoef 
Seconded by Shields 
 
RESOLVED, that the following be elected: 
 
 Chair    Robin Beltramini 
 Secretary/Treasurer  Mark F. Miller 
 
Yeas:  4 
Nays:   0  
 
REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE FOR 2016 
 
The regular meeting schedule for 2016 was provided for informational purposes. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # LDFA 2016-04-02 
Moved by Shields 
Seconded by Hoef 
 
RESOLVED, that the LDFA approve the minutes of the October 26, 2015 regular 
meeting. 
 
Yeas:  4  

stewartc
Text Box
P-01j



Draft Minutes  
Joint Local Development Finance Authority Troy Subcommittee        

Annual Meeting of April 25, 2016 
 

2 
 

Nays:   0   
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 

A. Automation Alley SmartZone Update 
 
Mark F. Miller provided an update on the Automation Alley SmartZone.  A timeline 
for requesting a 5-year and 15-year extension of the Southfield and Troy Joint 
LDFA/SmartZone was presented along with the Michigan Economic Development 
Corporation’s SmartZone Evaluation Policy and Tax Increment Financing Policy.  
General discussion took place. 
 
B. Move Across Troy Update 
 
Mark F. Miller provided information on the proposed East Big Beaver Road 
crosswalk improvements in the Automation Alley SmartZone.  Concept drawings 
were presented.  General discussion followed, and the committee expressed its 
pleasure with the proposed concept.  

 
NEW BUSINESS 

 

A. 2016-17 and 3-Year LDFA Budget 
 

Mark F. Miller provided an overview of the proposed 2016-2017 and 3-Year Budget 
to the LDFA and answered questions related to it.  It was recommended that the 
budget math be checked and corrected if necessary. 

 
Resolution # LDFA 2016-04-03 
Moved by Hoef 
Seconded by Shields 
 
RESOLVED, that the LDFA recommends approval of the 2016-17 and 3-Year Budget to 
City Council. 
 
Yeas:  4 
Nays:  0 
 
BOARD MEMBER COMMENT 
 
Irene Spanos announced that the annual Oakland County Economic Outlook Luncheon 
will be held at the Troy Marriott Hotel on May 5, 2016. 
 
Ellen Hodorek expressed her appreciation for the City of Troy Retreat that was held on 
February 26 and 27, 2016. 
 



Draft Minutes  
Joint Local Development Finance Authority Troy Subcommittee        

Annual Meeting of April 25, 2016 
 

3 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
None 
 
Meeting was adjourned at 4:18 p.m. 
 
The next scheduled meeting is October 24, 2016 – 3:30 p.m. 
 

 



 

 

 
 
April 28, 2016 
 
 
TO:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
FROM:  David Roberts, Fire Chief 
     
SUBJECT: Fire Station #4 Update 
 
 
The following information summarizes the recent progress of the Fire Station #4 rebuild project: 

 

 December, 2015: City Council approves a contract to provide Architectural/Engineering 

Services for Fire Station #4 to Redstone Architects, Inc. of Bloomfield Hills, MI. 

 January, 2016: City of Troy Project team is formed with Fire; Building Operations; Engineering; 

and Planning Departments. Meetings begin with Redstone Architects to discuss a site plan and 

floor plan design for the new fire station. A tentative and preliminary construction timeline is 

developed.  

 February, 2016: Construction Manager at Risk (CMR) RFPs are received and bids are opened 

with Purchasing Department. Discussions begin with DTE and consulting engineers Hubbell, 

Roth and Clark, Inc., to schedule overhead utility relocation to accommodate the new site 

layout. Meetings continue with Redstone Architects. Proposed site plan is discussed. 

 March, 2016: CMR submittals are evaluated and scored by the Project Team. Two rounds of 

interviews are scheduled and conducted by the Purchasing Department and Project Team. 

Meetings continue with Redstone Architects. Proposed floor plan is discussed along with 

electrical and mechanical needs.  

 April, 2016: Revised proposed site plan is discussed to account for existing site utilities. City 

Council approves a contract to provide CMR services for Fire Station #4 to The Dailey Company 

of Lake Orion, MI. Project kick-off meeting occurs with the City of Troy, Redstone Architects, 

and The Dailey Company. An exterior design charrette is held to come up with the architectural 

façade for the building. Site preparation begins with soil boring samples. 65 area residents are 

invited to Station #4 to meet with the Project Team; Redstone; and Dailey to discuss the project. 

Only one resident attends. Subsequent discussions ensure regarding design, finishes, and 

colors. 

 May, 2016: The first pre-construction meeting will be held between the Project Team, Redstone, 

and Dailey, to discuss specifics of the project. 

 

Included with this summary update is a revised tentative pre-construction timeline for the project, 

followed by an understanding of project drawing content for budget purposes from The Dailey Company 

in cooperation with Redstone Architects. This timeline estimate may change based on ensuing pre-

construction meetings and discussions, but the completion date is not anticipated to be delayed. 
 
 
DR/ M:\2016\My Documents\Word\Fire Station 4 Update to Council 05-09-16.docx 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

stewartc
Text Box
P-02a



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Troy Fire Station #4 
Pre-Construction Timeline 

 
May 2, 2016 

 
 

 April 27th –  
o 6PM-8PM – Neighborhood Open House.  Façade/elevations for open house 

 
 May 2nd –  

o Submit initial elevations, floor plans and site plans to City for comments prior to 
Planning Commission site plan review (Issue to Dailey for initial budget) 

o Redstone to issue Dailey soil boring logs and report  
 

 May 10th –  
o Dailey to submit initial budget for elevations, floor plans and site plans from May 

2nd submission 
 

 May 12th –  
o Submit to Planning Commission for site plan approval.  (1 month review) 

 
 May 23rd –  

o Redstone to forward 30% drawings to Dailey  
 

 June 8th –  
o Dailey to submit updated budget for 30% drawings 

 
 June 14th –  

o 7PM – Planning Commission meeting to approve May 12th submission 
o Redstone to forward 50% drawings to Dailey 

 
 June 27th –  

o City Council meeting for approval 
 

 June 28th –  
o Dailey to submit updated budget for 50% drawings 

 
 June 30th –  

o 75% drawings to Dailey for GMP proposal 
 

 July 15th  -  
o Establish GMP  
o 100% drawings from Redstone for bidding and permitting 

 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Troy Fire Station #4  
Understanding of Progress Drawing Content for Budgets 

 
May 2, 2016 

 
Initial Elevations, Floor Plans, Site Plan 

 Architectural site plan. 

 Floor Plan to date with floor materials notes. 

 Elevations with material type noted. 

 Roof plan with material type notes. 

 
 
30% Drawings 

 Outline spec of materials and equipment types / initial thoughts on mfgs. 

 Soil borings (or field logs if report not completed). 

 Engineers survey / topo of existing. 

 Site Plan to date showing pavement types. 

 Floor plan to date showing location of fire rated walls. 

 RCP to date. 

 Elevations to date with material types. 

 
 
50% Drawings 

 Outline spec update including FF&E responsibilities. 

 Geotech report with recommendations of design (site prep, slab, pavement, 

foundations). 

 Site Plan showing layout of utilities and detention type / location and means to phase 

site work (from CE). 

 ROW modifications. 

 Architectural Floor, Roof and Ceiling Plan updates. 

 Building sections. 

 Roof framing layout (from SE). 

 Identify type & depth of roof decking. 

 Identify connection design option / responsibility. 

 HVAC & Plumbing narrative description. 

 Electrical & Lighting narrative description. 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
75% Drawings – BASIS OF GMP 

 Full spec draft Divisions 2 – 14 locking in materials to be used. 

 Civil drawings including grades, sized utilities and pavement sections on site and in 

ROW. 

 List / Identify what trades will have design & engineering delegated to the trades. 

 Confirm if structural detailing will be delegated design. 

 Architectural Floor, Roof and Ceiling Plans. 

 Building sections to date. 

 Wall sections to date. 

 Finish & Door schedule. 

 Division 10, 11, 12 items that are either CFCI or OFCI. 

 Structural Plans with roof members & columns sized / load bearing walls located. 

 Preliminary foundation plans either sized or kip loads shown. 

 HVAC equipment located and scheduled (sized / spec’d) 

 Ductwork layout with sizing or cfm. 

 Temp control sequence of operation or narrative. 

 Plumbing equipment and fixtures located and scheduled (sized / spec’d). 

 Domestic, sanitary and storm pipe layout. 

 Electrical riser diagram with gear and power generation sized. 

 Light fixture schedule with control diagram or narrative. 

 Identify / locate any OFCI, piped or powered equipment. 

 
 
100% - Bid and Permit Documents 

 All plans completed. 

 Full specifications coordinated with plans. 

 Details /sections coordinated with Geotech recommendations. 

 Alternates shown on plans (base bid & alternate) and coordinated with specs. 

 Civil & other work affected by phasing is detailed such that if can be phased. 

 Any temporary work required for phasing is detailed. 

 Phasing line shown on all drawings. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

  

TO: Members of the Troy City Council 
 

FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
Allan T. Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Julie Quinlan Dufrane, Assistant City Attorney  
Nicole MacMillan, City Attorney Assistant  
 

DATE: April 18, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:    2016 First Quarter Litigation Report 

 

 

The following is the quarterly report of pending litigation and other matters of 
interest.  Developments during the FIRST quarter of 2016 are in bold. 

 
A. ANATOMY OF THE CASE 

 
Once a lawsuit has been filed against the City or City employees, the City Attorney’s 

office prepares a memo regarding the allegations in the complaint.  At that time, our office 
requests authority from Council to represent the City and/or the employees.  Our office then 
engages in the discovery process, which generally lasts for several months, and involves 
interrogatories, requests for documents, and depositions.  After discovery, almost all cases 
are required to go through case evaluation (also called mediation).  In this process, three 
attorneys evaluate the potential damages, and render an award.  This award can be 
accepted by both parties, and will conclude the case.  However, if either party rejects a case 
evaluation award, there are potential sanctions if the trial result is not as favorable as the 
mediation award.  In many cases, a motion for summary disposition will be filed at the 
conclusion of discovery.  In all motions for summary disposition, the Plaintiff’s version of the 
facts are accepted as true, and if the Plaintiff still has failed to set forth a viable claim against 
the City, then dismissal will be granted.  It generally takes at least a year before a case will 
be presented to a jury.  It also takes approximately two years before a case will be finalized 
in the Michigan Court of Appeals and/or the Michigan Supreme Court.   

 
B. ZONING CASES 

 
These are cases where the property owner has sued for a use other than that for which 
the land is currently zoned and/or the City is suing a property owner to require 
compliance with the existing zoning provisions.  
 

There are no pending zoning cases for this quarter.  
 

C.  EMINENT DOMAIN CASES 
 

These are cases in which the City wishes to acquire property for a public 
improvement and the property owner wishes to contest either the necessity or the 
compensation offered. In cases where only the compensation is challenged, the City 

stewartc
Text Box
P-02b



 2 

obtains possession of the property almost immediately, which allows for major projects 
to be completed.    

 
1. Troy v Behunin, et al – This condemnation case was initiated on December 2, 

2014 to acquire needed right of way from property owned by Kathleen and 
Michael Behunin.  The property is located on John R. Road, between Square 
Lake Road and South Boulevard.  The case was assigned to Oakland County 
Circuit Court Judge Martha Anderson.  A hearing is set for January 14, 2015 
at which the City will request an Order of Possession.  On January 14, 2015, 
the Court granted the City’s request for an order of possession.  The case will 
proceed on the issue of just compensation.  The parties are preparing 
documents to facilitate discovery exchange.    Discovery is ongoing.  Case 
Evaluation is scheduled for late February 2016.  The Case Evaluation that 
was scheduled for February was adjourned and subsequently held on 
March 9, 2016. 

 
 
D. CIVIL RIGHTS CASES 

 
 These are cases that are generally filed in the federal courts, under 42 U.S.C. 
Section 1983.  In these cases, the Plaintiffs argue that the City and/or police officers of the 
City of Troy somehow violated their civil rights.   
 

1.  Burley v. Gagacki. This is an excessive force case filed against a Troy police 
officer who was participating on a federal task force executing search 
warrants.  The task force divided up and simultaneously executed search 
warrants on two houses located some distance from each other.  Plaintiffs 
argue that they were injured by unidentified task force members at one of the 
houses. The incident report fails to specify which task force members were at 
Plaintiff’s house and which task force members were simultaneously 
executing the search warrant at the other house.  The Troy police officer and 
other task force members were initially represented by an Assistant U.S. 
Attorney, who obtained a dismissal of the case.  Plaintiffs then successfully 
appealed to the Sixth Circuit Court of Appeals, which reinstated the case.  
The second trial is scheduled for February 2014.  Due to a retirement of the 
Assistant U.S. Attorney and the possibility of conflicts between the task force 
team members, our office has assumed a more active role in the litigation, 
and will defend the Troy police officer task force member.   The Court granted 
the request of one of the co-defendants to adjourn the trial, which is now 
scheduled to start on June 16, 2014.  The parties have been addressing 
procedural items and preparing for trial.  After picking a jury on June 10, 2014 
and intense preparation for trial to begin on June 16, 2014, one of the 
Plaintiffs was hospitalized four days before the scheduled trial date.  Trial has 
been rescheduled for October 6, 2014.  The parties are preparing for the jury 
trial to begin on October 6, 2014.  A week long jury trial was conducted from 
October 6, 2014 through October 15, 2014, in Federal District Court.  After 



 3 

deliberating for 30 minutes, the jury returned a verdict of no cause of action, 
dismissing the case against the task force officers.  The Judge also ordered 
payment of costs to all Defendants.  Plaintiffs subsequently filed an appeal 
with the Sixth Circuit- U.S. Court of Appeals.  Plaintiffs’ appellate brief is due 
in April 2015. The Court of Appeals issued a briefing schedule in this matter.  
Plaintiff-Appellant’s brief was filed on May 18, 2015, and the Troy Defendant-
Appellee’s brief is due on July 3, 2015. A timely brief on appeal was filed on 
behalf of the Troy police officer and the parties are waiting for the 6th Circuit 
Court of Appeals to schedule a date for oral argument.  Defendant-Appellant’s 
Reply Briefs were filed after numerous extensions, and the parties continue to 
wait for the Court of Appeals to schedule a date for oral argument. 

 
2. Hammond v. City of Troy, et al.  LeDell Hammond filed a lawsuit against the 

City of Troy, the Troy Police Department, 52-4 District Court, A&M Service 
Center & Towing, and Secretary of State in United States District Court, 
Eastern District/Southern Division. The case has been assigned to Judge 
Paul Borman. The lawsuit stems from the removal of Plaintiff’s vehicle by the 
Troy Police Department. Mr. Hammond’s 2005 Grand Prix was seized in 
August 2014, as part of an on-going armed robbery investigation. Plaintiff 
brings this lawsuit under 42 USC Section 1983, alleging Fourth, Fifth, and 
Fourteenth Amendment violations, as well as a violation of MCL 257.252, a 
RICO claim, and a negligence claim. In addition to Plaintiff’s Complaint, he 
also filed an emergency motion requesting the Court grant a temporary 
restraining order to prevent the Troy Police Department from auctioning his 
vehicle. The City filed a timely response in opposition of Plaintiff’s request for 
a temporary restraining order. The Court has not yet decided this issue. The 
City also intends to file a motion to dismiss as its first responsive pleading to 
Plaintiff’s Complaint. Plaintiff’s emergency motion for a temporary restraining 
order was denied by the District Court, and he filed an interlocutory appeal 
with the Sixth Circuit Court of Appeals. The City filed a timely motion to 
dismiss the case, and the District Court has not issued its ruling yet. Plaintiff 
filed a reply to the City’s Motion to dismiss, and the City filed a response. The 
Court’s ruling on the City’s motion to dismiss is pending. The magistrate 
issued a report and recommendation in favor of the City’s motion to 
dismiss, and Judge Borman subsequently signed an order dismissing 
the case with prejudice. The case against the City and its employees is 
now concluded. 

 
E. PERSONAL INJURY AND DAMAGE CASES 

 
These are cases in which the Plaintiff claims that the City or City employees were 

negligent in some manner that caused injuries and/or property damage.  The City 
enjoys governmental immunity from ordinary negligence, unless the case falls within 
one of four exceptions to governmental immunity:  a) defective highway exception, 
which includes sidewalks and road way claims; b) public building exception, which 
imposes liability only when injuries are caused by a defect in a public building; c) motor 



 4 

vehicle exception, which imposes liability when an employee is negligent when 
operating their vehicle; d) proprietary exception, where liability is imposed when an 
activity is conducted primarily to create a profit, and the activity somehow causes injury 
or damage to another; e)  trespass nuisance exception, which imposes liability for the 
flooding cases.     

  
1. Wierzbicki, et. al. v. City of Troy- This suit was filed in Oakland County Circuit 

Court, and assigned to Judge Denise Langford Morris. Plaintiffs are seeking an 
amount in excess of $600,000 for damages resulting from a sewage back up in 
the Somerset North subdivision. These Plaintiffs have previously filed and settled 
a lawsuit against the Somerset Collection and the Capital Grille in which the City 
provided significant discovery related to the sewage back-up that occurred on 
November 9, 2013. In response to the complaint, the City filed a response and a 
motion for summary disposition. The parties met in front of Judge Langford 
Morris on November 25, 2015, where the Judge gave Plaintiffs 90 days to 
respond to the City’s motion for summary disposition. Plaintiff filed his 
response to the City’s motion for summary disposition, and the City filed a 
timely reply. The motion has been adjourned to accommodate schedules, 
and is now scheduled to be argued on May 4, 2016.  

F. MISCELLANEOUS CASES 
 

1. Michigan Association of Home Builders; Associated Builders and Contractors of 
Michigan; and Michigan Plumbing and Mechanical Contractors Association v. 
City of Troy – The Plaintiffs filed a complaint for Declaratory and Injunctive Relief 
in the Oakland County Circuit.  On the date of filing the Plaintiffs also filed a 
Motion for Preliminary Injunction and Order to Show Cause.  The Plaintiffs allege 
that the City of Troy has violated Section 22 of Michigan’s Stille-DeRossett Hale 
Single State Construction Code Act by collecting fees for building department 
services that are not reasonably related to the cost of providing building 
department services.  They are alleging that the City of Troy has illegally entered 
into a contract with Safe Built of Michigan, Inc. for building services that provides 
that 20% of each building permit fee be returned to the City to cover services that 
are not “reasonably related to the cost of building department services,” as 
required by state statute.  The Plaintiffs also assert a violation of the Headlee 
Amendment, arguing that the 20% returned to the City is a disguised tax that was 
not approved by voters.  The Plaintiffs are asking for a declaratory judgment, as 
well as a return of any “surplus” building department service funds collected to 
date.  Plaintiffs also request an order requiring the City to reduce its building 
department fees.  The City of Troy was served with the Complaint and the Motion 
for Preliminary Injunction and Order for Show Cause on Wednesday, December 
15, 2010. The parties were required to appear at Court on Wednesday, 
December 22, 2010, but the Court did not take any action at that time.  Instead, 
the Court adjourned the matter to January 19, 2011.  In the interim, the parties 
may engage in preliminary discovery in an attempt to resolve this matter. The 
parties are conducting discovery.   The parties have completed discovery.  Trial 



 5 

in this matter is scheduled for January 30, 2012.  After being presented with 
motions for summary disposition, the Court ordered the parties to engage in 
mediation with a neutral municipal audit professional.  Financial documents 
concerning this case are now being reviewed by an independent CPA.  It is 
expected that the April 19, 2012 trial date will be postponed until after this review 
is complete.  Mediation was unsuccessful in resolving this case, and therefore 
the Court is expected to issue an order on the pending Summary Disposition 
Motions.  The trial date has been adjourned.   On November 13, 2012, Oakland 
County Circuit Court Judge Shalina Kumar issued her order in favor of the City, 
and dismissed this case.  Plaintiffs filed an appeal, which is now pending in the 
Michigan Court of Appeals.  Appellant’s brief is expected to be filed soon. The 
parties timely filed their appellate briefs, and are now waiting for the Court of 
Appeals to schedule a date for oral argument. The Court of Appeals has not yet 
scheduled oral argument for this case.  The parties are still waiting for a date for 
oral argument.  Oral argument was held on March 4, 2014.  On March 13, 2014, 
the Court of Appeals issued its opinion ruling in the City’s favor and affirming the 
Circuit Court’s decision dismissing the case.  On April 23, 2014, Plaintiff Home 
Builders filed an Application for Leave to Appeal with the Michigan Supreme 
Court.  Troy’s response was filed on May 19, 2014. The Michigan Supreme Court 
considered the application for leave to appeal and ordered that the matter be 
scheduled for oral argument.  The Court also permitted the parties to submit 
supplemental briefs, which are due October 29, 2014.  The City timely filed its 
supplemental brief with the Michigan Supreme Court.  The parties are now 
waiting for the Court to set a date for oral argument on the application.  The 
Michigan Supreme Court entertained oral arguments on the application for leave 
to appeal on March 11, 2015.  On June 4, 2015, the Michigan Supreme Court 
reversed the decisions of the Court of Appeals and the Circuit Court and ruled 
there was no requirement for Plaintiffs to exhaust their administrative remedies.  
The case was remanded to Circuit Court for further proceedings. A status 
conference was held on June 18, 2015 with Judge Kumar.  During the status 
conference, Judge Kumar scheduled a hearing for September 2, 2015, allowing 
the parties to address the issues that were previously raised in the motion for 
summary disposition but were not decided since the case was initially dismissed 
for failure to exhaust administrative remedies.  At the hearing on September 2, 
2015, Judge Kumar allowed Plaintiffs to request additional discovery within 30 
days.  Thereafter, both parties are allowed to file supplemental briefs.   
Supplemental briefs have been filed and we are awaiting a decision.  On 
February 5, 2016, Judge Kumar issued her opinion and order ruling in favor 
of the City and dismissing the case.  Plaintiffs filed a Claim of Appeal with 
the Michigan Court of Appeals on February 23, 2016.   

 
2. Todd Michael v. City of Troy et. al.   Todd Michael has filed this lawsuit against 

the City, the Troy Police Department and the Troy Police Chief.  Through this 
lawsuit, Plaintiff alleges that he was discriminated against in his employment with 
the City, in violation of the Americans With Disabilities Act. He also alleges that 
he suffered retaliation for his alleged disability.  He is asking to be reinstated as a 



 6 

Troy Police Officer.  He is also asking for additional compensation, punitive 
damages, costs and attorney fees.  The answer to the complaint and affirmative 
defenses were filed on September 27, 2012.  The Court has issued a scheduling 
order in this case, and discovery is on-going.   The parties are continuing in the 
discovery phase.  The Court has extended the discovery cut off in this matter, 
and the parties continue to take depositions in this case.  The City will be filing a 
Motion for Summary Judgment.  A Motion for Summary Judgment was filed on 
October 14, 2013.  Plaintiff filed its Response on November 21, 2013, and the 
City’s reply brief was filed on December 12, 2013.  The parties are still waiting for 
the Court to either issue an opinion or schedule a date for oral argument on the 
Motion.   The Court transferred the case to newly appointed U.S. District Court 
Judge Judith Levy, who has scheduled oral argument on the motion for summary 
judgment for July 10, 2014.  Subsequent to oral argument, the Court entered an 
order on July 23, 2014 dismissing Police Chief Gary Mayer and Count II as to all 
parties.  The Court is expected to issue an order as to the first Count of Plaintiff’s 
Complaint.  On October 21, 2014, the Court entered its order in favor of the City, 
dismissing the case.  Plaintiff subsequently filed an appeal with the Sixth Circuit 
Court of Appeals.  Plaintiff/ Appellant’s Corrected Brief was filed on March 6, 
2015.  The City’s brief was filed on April 7, 2015.  Oral argument is set for July 
29, 2015.  Since the July 29, 2015 oral argument, the parties have been waiting 
for the Sixth Circuit Court panel to issue its opinion. On December 14, 2015, the 
Sixth Circuit Court of Appeals issued a published opinion dismissing the 
complaint in favor of the City. On December 29, 2015, Plaintiff filed a request for 
an en banc review at the Sixth Circuit Court of Appeals.  On January 20, 2016, 
the Sixth Circuit Court of Appeals issued an order denying the request for 
en banc review.  This case is now concluded.      

 
3. Daniel E. Katayama v City of Troy. Plaintiff filed this lawsuit under the Freedom of 

Information Act (FOIA) claiming that the City did not fully comply with a FOIA request 
he submitted on March 26, 2013.  Plaintiff’s FOIA request sought particular 
documents related to his arrest on suspicion of driving while intoxicated.  The City 
filed an Answer to the Complaint, and the parties are conducting discovery.  
Discovery continues. The Court scheduled a mandatory settlement conference for 
March 10, 2014.  The City filed a Motion for Summary Disposition on February 14, 
2014.  The Court scheduled oral argument on this Motion for June 5, 2014.  The 
Court granted in part and denied in part the City’s Motion for Summary Disposition.  
Plaintiff filed a Claim of Appeal in the Michigan Court of Appeals on September 3, 
2014.  A briefing schedule has not been issued by the Court of Appeals.  A timely 
response brief will be filed once the date is set by the Court.  Plaintiff ordered the 
transcript of proceedings, and the date of the receipt of the transcript dictates the 
appellate briefing schedule. The parties are still waiting for the court transcript to be 
completed.    The final transcript was filed with the Court on May 1, 2015.  Plaintiff-
Appellant’s brief was due on May 19, 2015, but has not yet been filed.  Plaintiff-
Appellant’s Appeal was at first dismissed by the Court of Appeals for lack of 
progress, however, Plaintiff-Appellant’s subsequent Motion to Reinstate Appeal was 
granted.  Plaintiff-Appellant filed a brief on appeal on July 23, 2015. The City of Troy 



 7 

timely filed its brief on appeal on September 24, 2015.  The Michigan Court of 
Appeals scheduled Oral Argument for November 9, 2015.  On December 10, 2015, 
the Michigan Court of Appeals released its order, affirming the circuit court but 
remanding the case.   

  
4. DiMario v. City of Troy, et al.- Plaintiffs filed this case in Oakland County Circuit Court 

on November 5, 2014 to obtain a vacant piece of land next to Plaintiffs’ home.  
Plaintiffs listed the City of Troy as a Defendant in the case because the City has 
easements on the property. The Plaintiffs also listed D&T Construction, Emerald 
Lakes Pointe Association, and the Oakland County Treasurer as Defendants. The 
City has filed an Answer to the Complaint, and is now waiting for the Court to issue a 
scheduling order.  The Court issued its scheduling order. This case was removed 
from case evaluation through a stipulation of the parties.  Trial is now scheduled for 
September 10, 2015. There is a pending Motion for Summary Disposition, and the 
parties are waiting for the Court’s decision.  In the interim, there is a scheduled trial 
date of January 14, 2016, which will need to be rescheduled if the Court has not 
rendered her decision by that time. The Court denied Plaintiff’s Motion for 
Summary Disposition and rescheduled the trial date for April 25, 2016. In the 
meantime, the Court scheduled a settlement conference for February 4, 2016. 
At the settlement conference, the parties discussed possible resolutions of the 
case. The case was removed from the trial docket to allow the parties to 
continue to work towards a resolution.   

5. Robert and Audrey Taylor v City of Troy .  Plaintiffs filed this claim and delivery action in 
the 52-4 District Court seeking return of a six rifles and two handguns that were 
confiscated from Plaintiff Robert Taylor’s residence.  Troy police officers responded to 
Taylor’s home after receiving information that he was suicidal.  Inside the home, the 
officers located a loaded .22 rifle on the living room floor with loose ammunition 
laying on the couch and floor. The City filed an answer to the complaint and a response 
to Plaintiff’s interim motion for possession.  On November 25, 2015, Judge McGinnis 
denied Plaintiffs motion for possession.  At the pretrial on December 21, 2015, the 
parties discussed a possible resolution to the case.  The case has been scheduled for 
another pretrial conference on February 3, 2016.  On February 2, 2016, a consent 
judgment was entered allowing for return of the firearms to a third party.  This 
case is now concluded. 

6. International Outdoor, Inc. v City of Troy .  This is an appeal filed by International 
Outdoor, Inc. challenging the Building Code Board of Appeals (BCBA) denial of 
variances from the provisions of the Sign Ordinance.  The two signs were proposed to 
be located at 1705/1709 Austin and 1125 Naughton.  The applicant wanted to erect two 
70 foot, 1608 Square foot signs that would be visible from I-75.  The proposed signs 
exceeded the size, height, and setback provisions of the Sign Ordinance and could only 
be permitted if variances were granted by the BCBA.  International Outdoor argues in its 
appeal the BCBA abused its discretion when it denied the variances and that the 
decision denying the variances was not supported by competent, material, and 
substantial evidence on the whole record.  The case was assigned to Oakland County 
Circuit Court Judge Hala Jarbou, who will need to review all of the BCBA record to 



 8 

determine if there was an abuse of discretion.  The City must file the Record on Appeal 
with the Circuit Court within 28 days of the filing of the claim of appeal.  Thereafter, each 
party must file an appellate brief.  After the briefs are filed, the Court will schedule oral 
argument and will make its decision on the appeal after oral argument.  We stipulated 
to Plaintiff’s request for additional time to file the appellate brief.    

7. Michael Kornegay v City of Troy .  Plaintiff filed this claim and delivery action in 
the 52-4 District Court seeking return of a five semi-automatic handguns that were 
turned over to the police as a condition of Plaintiff’s bond in a criminal case.  The 
criminal charges against the Plaintiff have now been dismissed without prejudice. 
The City filed an answer to the complaint and a response to Plaintiff’s interim 
motion for possession.  On February 17, 2016, Judge Maureen M. McGinnis 
granted Plaintiff’s motion and entered an order for the return of firearms to 
Plaintiff.  This case is now concluded. 

8. Aveshah Williamson v City of Troy .  Plaintiff filed this claim and delivery action in 
the 52-4 District Court seeking return of two pistols that were confiscated from 
him when he was arrested for operating while intoxicated.  Under the law, guns 
must be confiscated when they are possessed by a person who is driving drunk.    
The City filed an answer to the complaint and a response to Plaintiff’s interim 
motion for possession.   On March 16, 2016, Judge McGinnis denied the Plaintiff’s 
motion for possession and dismissed the case. 

 
G.  CRIMINAL APPEALS/ DISTRICT COURT APPEALS  

These are cases involving an appeal from a decision of the 52-4 District 
Court in an ordinance prosecution case. 

 
1. City of Troy v. Wesley Smith. Wesley Smith was charged with possession of 

marijuana. At the jury trial, held on January 14 and 15, 2016, the jury found Mr. 
Smith guilty as charged.  Mr. Smith filed an application for leave to appeal in 
Oakland County Circuit Court, and also the Michigan Court of Appeals.  Mr. 
Smith’s appeal to the Court of Appeals was dismissed because he did not file 
all of the appropriate documents. Mr. Smith’s application for leave to appeal to 
the Circuit Court was denied.  
 

2. City of Troy v. Mark Morin. Mark Morin was charged with domestic assault and 
battery in March of 2014. He plead guilty as charged, and the Judge sentenced 
him to 12 months of probation under MCL 769.4a, where the offense would be 
dismissed off of Mr. Morin’s criminal record if he successfully completed 
probation. Shortly afterwards, Mr. Morin tested positive for having alcohol in 
his system, in violation of the terms of his probation. Mr. Morin requested a 
hearing, where he contested the reliability of the alcohol tests. After a lengthy 
hearing, the Judge found Defendant guilty of violating his probation. The Judge 
sentenced Mr. Morin to 6 days in jail, and revoked Mr. Morin’s deferral status, 



 9 

so that the conviction for domestic assault and battery would remain on Mr. 
Morin’s criminal record.  Mr. Morin filed an application for leave to appeal in 
Oakland County Circuit Court on December 30, 2015.  The City filed a timely 
response, requesting the Court to deny Mr. Morin’s Application on the basis 
that the Application was untimely. Prior to a ruling from the circuit court, Mr. 
Morin filed a motion in district court, asking Judge Hartig to reissue her order, 
and start the time for appeal over again.  
  

H.  ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEEDINGS 
  

1. In the matter of the Petitions on National Pollution Discharge Elimination 
Systems (NPDES Phase II General Permits).  The City has joined several other 
municipalities in challenging several of the mandates in the NPDES Phase II 
General Permit, which was recently issued by the MDEQ.  The new NPDES 
permit requires some storm water management techniques that exceed the 
federal mandates, and/or are not justified, based on the high cost of the 
mandate, in relation to the nominal environmental benefits. A status conference 
for the parties is set for October 1, 2008.  The municipalities are currently 
exploring the coordination of efforts with other parties.  Community 
representatives are meeting with representatives from the MDEQ to discuss 
possible resolutions of this matter without the necessity of a full blown 
administrative hearing.   The parties are continuing to negotiate with the MDEQ.  
The City of Riverview filed a class action complaint in the Ingham County Circuit 
Court, challenging the permit requirements as unfunded mandates.  The 
petitioners to the NPDES permit administrative proceeding are named as 
participants in the proposed class action lawsuit.  As a result, the class action 
determination may have an impact on the administrative proceeding. The motion 
for class certification is scheduled for October 15, 2009.  Class certification was 
granted.  Hearings regarding the procedure for the new class action are set for 
January 2010.   The Court granted class action status, and the administrative 
proceedings are now being delayed.  Status reports have been filed and 
reviewed, and we continue to monitor any new developments.  On October 14, 
2010, the Michigan Court of Appeals reversed the order granting a stay of the 
contested cases.  On November 19, 2010, the Ingham County Circuit Court (the 
class action lawsuit) entered an order granting in part the dismissal of some of 
the claims.  The remaining claims, including a Headlee claim, will be decided by 
the Court.  Subsequently, the Assistant Attorney General, on behalf of the 
Michigan Department of Natural Resources and Environment (MDNRE) 
attempted to withdraw all of the remaining NPDES permits, which would mean 
that the whole process would need to be started from scratch.  Since this action 
would likely result in a significant delay and a duplication of all efforts to date, 
several municipalities filed objections to this unilateral action.  The MDNRE was 
given until December 22, 2010 to file a formal motion seeking a dismissal of the 
remaining NPDES permits. On August 9, 2011, the Administrative Law Judge 
held the case in abeyance, due to pending case at the Michigan Court of 
Appeals.  The parties will continue to provide status reports in the interim.  The 



 10 

Court is continuing to receiving status reports, with the next one due on 
December 19, 2012.   Status reports were timely filed on January 6, 2013 and 
March 22, 2013. Additional status reports were submitted on June 24 and 25, 
2013.   The Court issued an order on September 10, 2013, continuing to hold the 
matter in abeyance pending resolution of the constitutional issues.  Status 
reports were timely filed on December 18, 2013. Administrative Law Judge 
Plummer issued an order on January 29, 2014, continuing the case in abeyance, 
and ordering quarterly status reports to be filed.  Status reports were filed as of 
the deadline of May 1, 2014.  The case continues to be held in abeyance.  The 
Court issued an order on August 27, 2014, continuing the case in abeyance.  The 
Court has continued to hold this case in abeyance, and has required status 
reports be filed on or before January 30, 2015.   Status reports were timely filed.  
The Administrative Law Judge ordered a status conference, which was held on 
June 24, 2015.  Since the parties could not reach an agreement, the Court 
scheduled an argument on motions for August 24. The Court dismissed the 
cases on the grounds of mootness, based on the fact that a new NPDES permit 
is required for the communities, and the parties are now seeking attorney fee 
reimbursement. The request seeking reimbursement of attorney fees was filed, 
and is currently pending.   

 
If you have any questions concerning these cases, please let us know.   



 

 

City of Troy 

Michigan 
 

 

2015/2016 

Fiscal Year 

Interim Financial 

Statements 

Nine Months Ended 

March 31, 2016 

stewartc
Text Box
P-02c



CITY OF TROY

NINE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

SNAP SHOT

Expended, 
$41.87 

Under 
Budget to 
Date,  $8.25 

Remaining 
Budget, 
$24.95 

General Fund
(millions)

Expended, 
$15.45 

Under 
Budget
$4.62 

Remaining 
Budget, 
$11.32 

Capital Projects
(millions)

Expended, 
$3.19 Under 

Budget to 
Date, 
$0.24 

Remaining 
Budget, 
$1.38 

Refuse Fund
(millions)

Expended, 
$2.41 

Under 
Budget to 
Date, 
$0.47 

Remaining 
Budget,  $1.43 

Library Fund
(millions)

Expended, 
$3.08 

Remaining 
Budget,  $0.01 

Debt Service Fund
(millions)

 $‐

 $5.00

 $10.00

 $15.00

 $20.00

Projected Amended
Budget

30% Range 20% Range

Unassigned Ending General Fund 
Balance (millions)



CITY OF TROY

NINE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

SNAP SHOT

Expended, 
$3.16 

Under 
Budget 
$0.23 

Remaining 
Budget, 
$1.36 

Major Streets Fund
(millions)

Expended, 
$1.81 

Under 
Budget to 
Date, 
$0.61 

Remaining 
Budget, 
$1.41 

Local Streets Fund
(millions)

Expended, 
$0.03 

Under 
Budget to 
Date, 
$0.09 

Remaining 
Budget, 
$0.13 

Drug Forfeiture Fund
(millions)

$0.45 

$0.47 

 $0.44

 $0.45

 $0.45

 $0.46

 $0.46

 $0.47

 $0.47

 $0.48

Operating Revenues Operating Expenses

Aquatic Center
(millions)

$1.09  $1.05 

 $0.10

 $0.30

 $0.50

 $0.70

 $0.90

 $1.10

 $1.30

 $1.50

Operating Revenues Operating Expenses

Sanctuary Lake G.C
(millions)

$0.82  $0.77 

 $0.10

 $0.30

 $0.50

 $0.70

 $0.90

 $1.10

 $1.30

 $1.50

Operating Revenues Operating Expenses

Sylvan Glen G.C
(millions)



CITY OF TROY

NINE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2016

SNAP SHOT

 $‐

 $1.00

 $2.00

 $3.00

 $4.00

 $5.00

 $6.00

 $7.00

Operating Revenues Operating Expenses

Sewer Fund
(millions)

 $‐

 $1.00

 $2.00

 $3.00

 $4.00

 $5.00

 $6.00

 $7.00

Operating Revenues Operating Expenses

Water Fund
(millions)



 
CITY OF TROY 

QUARTERLY REPORT 

NINE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2016 

HIGHLIGHTS 

 
General Fund 

 

Revenues 

Total revenues are $47.3 million to date and represents 83.38% of total budgeted 

revenues and other sources. This is an increase of $653 thousand or 1.4% compared 

to the same time period in the prior year and includes recognition of total annual 

tax  revenues  of  $30.7  million.  Gains  in  tax  revenues  of  approximately  $973 

thousand  or  3.3%  were  offset  by  reductions  in  licenses  and  permits  of  $207 

thousand or 10.1% and other financing sources (reimbursements from other funds) 

of $466 thousand or 14.8%. 

 

Expenditures  

Total General Fund expenditures to date are $41.9 million or 62.7% of the annual 

budget. All departments appear to be within budgetary parameters to date. The 

Historic  Village  and Nature  Center may  appear  slightly  high  at  first  glance  but 

should be noted that they receive 100% of the City subsidy at the beginning of the 

fiscal year. 

  

Capital Fund 

 

Expenditures 

Expenditures  for  capital  projects  of  $15.7 million  represent  57.1%  of  budgeted 

projects. This is up approximately $1.9 million from the prior year. The increase is 

primarily related to the Transit Center property. It should be noted that a significant 

amount of  this expenditure  is expected  to be  reimbursed back  to  the City. The 



corresponding  grant  revenue will  be  recognized  upon  approval  of  the  funding 

agencies. 

 

Local Streets 

 

Expenditures 

Transfers out to other sources of approximately $1.8 million represents 56.2% of 

annual budgeted appropriations. This  is an  increase of $466  thousand or 34.6% 

over the prior year due to transfers to the Capital Projects Fund for enhanced street 

projects. 

 

Aquatic Center 

 

Revenues 

Revenues  of  $453  thousand  represent  67.7%  of  the  fund’s  annual  budgeted 

financial resources. This is up $233 thousand compared to the prior year during the 

same time period. A significant part of the increase in revenue is due to concession 

stand revenues which is new for the 2016 fiscal year. The remaining amount is due 

to  increased activity  in July and August compared to the prior year.  It should be 

noted  that  the majority  of  the  revenue  for membership  passes  comes  in  the 

months of May and June and is expected to generate an additional $145 thousand 

depending on weather. 

 

Expenses 

Expenses  of  $509  thousand  represent  98.7%  of  the Aquatic  Center’s  budgeted 

annual  amount.  The  increase  is  primarily  in  food  costs.  However  food  costs 

compared to sales (COGS) is approximately 36% and well within expectations. 

 

Sanctuary Lake Golf Course 

 

Revenues 

Revenues of $1.1 million are up $318 thousand compared to the prior year for the 

same time period. Total year to date rounds are 27,164 representing an increase of 



approximately 8,221 rounds. Favorable weather conditions and special events are 

contributing factors.  

 

Expenses 

Expenditures for operations (“Billy Casper”) of $1.05 million are up $121 thousand 

or 12.9% from last year to date. This is primarily in the areas of personal services 

due to incorporation of general manager and increased maintenance efforts. 

 

As  in prior years,  it  is not anticipated that  income from operations will cover the 

entire debt service amount of $886 thousand. 

 

Sylvan Glen Golf Course 

 

Revenues 

Revenues of $819 thousand are up $120 thousand compared to the prior year for 

the  same  time  period.  Total  year  to  date  rounds  are  30,290  representing  an 

increase  of  approximately  4,907  rounds.  Favorable  weather  conditions  are 

contributing factors.  

 

Expenses 

Expenditures for operations (“Billy Casper”) of $772 thousand are up $13 thousand 

or 1.6% compared to the prior year for the same time period.  

 

Sewer Fund 

 

Revenues 

Sewer fund revenues of $10.1 million are up $474 thousand or 4.9% from the prior 

year  to  date  due  primarily  from  consumption  (up  11,794  mcf  or  3.4%).  This 

represents the first up‐turn in consumption over the past few years. 

  

Expenses 

Sewer fund expenses of $15.2 million is up $5.5 million compared to the prior year 

period to date. This is all due to the Evergreen/Farmington sewer capital project. 



Beginning with  the 2015  fiscal year, Oakland County  is charging a  fixed  rate  for 

sewer services. Accordingly,  increased and/or decreases  in consumption will not 

have  a direct effect on  sewer  costs. However,  consumption does have  a direct 

effect on the rates charged to consumers to meet these fixed cost obligations. 

 

Water Fund 

 

Revenues 

Water fund revenues of $13.4 million are up $1.7 million or 14.8% due primarily 

due  to  increased consumption  (up 11,794 mcf or 3.4%) and  from  rate  increases 

required to offset escalating costs due to the fixed fee component of charges from 

the Detroit Water and  Sewer Department  (DWSD), now  the Great  Lakes Water 

Authority (GLWA). This represents the first up‐turn in consumption over the past 

few years. 

  

Expenses 

Water fund expenses of $16.0 million are up $3.2 million or 25.4% due primarily to 

capital purchases increasing $1.5 million and water cost up $1.7 million. The water 

cost amount does have a significant  fixed cost aspect and accordingly, does not 

decrease (or increase) proportionately with sale volumes. However, consumption 

does have a direct effect on the rates charged to consumers to meet these fixed 

cost obligations. 

 



Description
Last Year

Total Actual
Last Year
Budget

Last Year
Year To Date

Last Year
Percent to 

Budget
Current Year 

Budget
Current Year
Year To Date

Current 
Year
% to 

Budget
General Fund Revenues
TAXES 29,844,975 29,840,500 29,681,426 99.47 30,835,600 30,654,705 99.41
LICENSES AND PERMITS 2,896,531 2,980,350 2,044,163 68.59 2,587,150 1,837,403 71.02
GRANTS 6,704,015 6,769,000 4,644,840 68.62 6,916,300 4,705,431 68.03
CONTRIBUTIONS FROM LOCAL UNITS 94,172 28,000 59,158 211.28 30,500 70,522 231.22
CHARGES FOR SERVICES 8,827,342 7,950,000 4,647,539 58.46 8,511,100 4,849,728 56.98
FINES AND FORFEITURES 1,015,803 756,300 696,733 92.12 844,000 838,711 99.37
INTEREST & RENT 1,067,617 1,019,000 901,194 88.44 1,162,600 833,331 71.68
OTHER REVENUE 1,072,792 1,030,900 787,293 76.37 1,063,400 791,017 74.39
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 4,049,372 4,503,300 3,146,779 69.88 4,732,260 2,681,270 56.66

55,572,619 54,877,350 46,609,125 84.93 56,682,910 47,262,118 83.38

General Fund Expenditures
General government 6,917,419 7,514,660 5,011,843 66.69 7,769,950 5,194,381 66.85
    Council and Executive Administration 3,696,693 3,903,420 2,640,725 67.65 4,029,320 2,713,628 67.35

    Finance 2,323,528 2,506,280 1,736,854 69.30 2,596,230 1,769,665 68.16

    Other General Government 897,199 1,104,960 634,264 57.40 1,144,400 711,088 62.14

Public Safety 31,021,169 33,879,038 23,074,226 68.11 31,781,830 20,523,921 64.58
    Police 22,045,814 24,573,943 16,050,919 65.32 24,237,560 15,799,803 65.19

    Fire 6,644,148 6,901,685 5,569,452 80.70 5,030,550 3,472,858 69.04

    Building Inspection 2,331,208 2,403,410 1,453,855 60.49 2,513,720 1,251,260 49.78

Public Works 5,638,912 6,573,600 4,397,960 66.90 6,544,050 3,858,159 58.96
    Streets 5,638,912 6,573,600 4,397,960 66.90 6,544,050 3,858,159 58.96

Community Development 3,150,294 3,161,030 2,224,628 70.38 3,223,050 2,236,308 69.38
    Engineering 2,319,942 2,307,060 1,615,279 70.01 2,341,890 1,668,717 71.26

    Planning 830,352 853,970 609,349 71.35 881,160 567,591 64.41

Recreation and Culture 6,523,871 6,921,990 4,583,547 66.22 7,138,550 4,829,449 67.65
    Parks 2,372,723 2,588,670 1,622,665 62.68 2,756,310 1,687,210 61.21

    Recreation 3,887,644 4,078,030 2,717,923 66.65 4,082,990 2,898,679 70.99

    Nature Center 103,015 105,290 96,853 91.99 119,540 108,602 90.85

    Historic Village 160,490 150,000 146,106 97.40 179,710 134,957 75.10

Transfers Out & Other Uses 5,300,000 5,300,000 3,225,000 60.85 10,360,000 5,223,125 50.42

58,551,666 63,350,318 42,517,203 67.11 66,817,430 41,865,343 62.66

Quarterly Financial Report

General Fund

For the Period Ending March 31, 2016

 April 27, 2016  16 / 35 



Description
Last Year

Total Actual
Last Year
Budget

Last Year
Year To Date

Last Year
Percent to 

Budget
Current Year 

Budget
Current Year
Year To Date

Current 
Year
% to 

Budget
Capital Fund Revenues
TAXES 6,574,245 6,546,000 6,588,091 100.64 6,782,100 6,794,144 100.18
GRANTS 3,552,895 2,311,000 1,548,509 67.01 1,333,000 590,343 44.29
CONTRIBUTIONS FROM LOCAL UNITS 7,590 400,000 0 0.00 200,000 42,937 21.47
CHARGES FOR SERVICES 393,804 454,000 229,377 50.52 342,000 290,664 84.99
INTEREST & RENT 80,211 67,200 97,326 144.83 105,000 71,071 67.69
OTHER REVENUE 658,700 0 320,166 0.00 315,000 175,845 55.82
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 8,034,840 7,947,000 5,026,895 63.26 14,293,900 7,715,345 53.98

19,302,285 17,725,200 13,810,363 77.91 23,371,000 15,680,351 67.09

Capital Fund Expenditures
Capital Outlay 19,900,520 20,972,900 12,557,029 59.87 26,770,600 15,454,650 57.73
    Council/Executive Administration 18,413 35,000 17,406 49.73 80,000 10,047 12.56

    Finance 11,616 17,000 9,843 57.90 17,000 15,863 93.31

    City Buildings 1,798,643 340,000 1,241,346 365.10 30,000 3,187,494 10624.98

    Police 149,682 235,000 26,275 11.18 406,000 115,409 28.43

    Fire 243,075 1,960,000 211,424 10.79 4,305,000 646,333 15.01

    Streets 15,638,161 15,302,400 9,776,179 63.89 17,462,200 10,890,413 62.37

    Public Works 800,108 963,000 506,714 52.62 567,640 243 0.04

    Parks 0 410,000 0 0.00 1,667,000 56,610 3.40

    Recreation 259,723 403,500 150,455 37.29 711,000 61,636 8.67

    Nature Center 0 50,000 0 0.00 50,000 0 0.00

    Library 776,218 788,000 483,066 61.30 1,162,760 467,145 40.18

    Historic Village 145,870 248,000 134,320 54.16 147,000 3,457 2.35

    Other 59,010 221,000 0 0.00 165,000 0 0.00

19,900,520 20,972,900 12,557,029 59.87 26,770,600 15,454,650 57.73

Quarterly Financial Report

Capital Fund

For the Period Ending March 31, 2016

 April 27, 2016  5 / 35 



Description
Last Year

Total Actual
Last Year
Budget

Last Year
Year To Date

Last Year
Percent to 

Budget
Current Year 

Budget
Current Year
Year To Date

Current 
Year
% to 

Budget
Refuse Fund Revenues
TAXES 4,595,925 4,576,000 4,607,358 100.69 4,741,500 4,749,711 100.17
GRANTS 139,142 0 0 0.00 0 0 0.00
CHARGES FOR SERVICES 6,590 6,000 4,380 73.00 6,500 5,846 89.94
INTEREST & RENT 14,940 14,000 14,524 103.75 20,000 16,527 82.63

4,756,597 4,596,000 4,626,262 100.66 4,768,000 4,772,083 100.09

Refuse Fund Expenditures
Sanitation 4,606,610 4,618,000 3,321,550 71.93 4,573,000 3,189,133 69.74

4,606,610 4,618,000 3,321,550 71.93 4,573,000 3,189,133 69.74

Quarterly Financial Report

Refuse Fund

For the Period Ending March 31, 2016

 April 27, 2016  26 / 35 



Description
Last Year

Total Actual
Last Year
Budget

Last Year
Year To Date

Last Year
Percent to 

Budget
Current Year 

Budget
Current Year
Year To Date

Current 
Year
% to 

Budget
Library Fund Revenues
TAXES 3,004,907 2,992,000 3,014,363 100.75 3,088,500 3,093,979 100.18
GRANTS 47,684 20,000 24,081 120.40 24,000 24,070 100.29
CONTRIBUTIONS FROM LOCAL UNITS 163,629 109,000 121,681 111.63 109,000 163,629 150.12
CHARGES FOR SERVICES 40,155 22,000 32,307 146.85 22,110 17,830 80.64
FINES AND FORFEITURES 122,042 100,000 88,977 88.98 115,000 81,411 70.79
INTEREST & RENT 12,166 17,800 9,721 54.61 13,700 25,973 189.58
OTHER REVENUE 51,313 5,000 1,212 24.25 202,000 4,205 2.08

3,441,896 3,265,800 3,292,341 100.81 3,574,310 3,411,097 95.43

Library Fund Expenditures
Recreation and culture-OLD 3,439,306 3,582,200 2,397,490 66.93 3,836,590 2,410,125 62.82

3,439,306 3,582,200 2,397,490 66.93 3,836,590 2,410,125 62.82

Quarterly Financial Report

Library Fund

For the Period Ending March 31, 2016

 April 27, 2016  18 / 35 



Description
Last Year

Total Actual
Last Year
Budget

Last Year
Year To Date

Last Year
Percent to 

Budget
Current Year 

Budget
Current Year
Year To Date

Current 
Year
% to 

Budget
General Debt Service Fund Revenues
TAXES 3,011,993 2,995,700 3,018,789 100.77 3,107,500 3,116,779 100.30
INTEREST & RENT 6,079 8,000 8,717 108.96 12,000 8,851 73.76

3,018,072 3,003,700 3,027,506 100.79 3,119,500 3,125,630 100.20

General Debt Service Fund Expenditures
Debt Service 3,103,486 3,105,600 3,086,951 99.40 3,097,000 3,082,045 99.52

3,103,486 3,105,600 3,086,951 99.40 3,097,000 3,082,045 99.52

Quarterly Financial Report

General Debt Service Fund

For the Period Ending March 31, 2016

 April 27, 2016  15 / 35 



Description
Last Year

Total Actual
Last Year
Budget

Last Year
Year To Date

Last Year
Percent to 

Budget
Current Year 

Budget
Current Year
Year To Date

Current 
Year
% to 

Budget
Major Street Fund Revenues
GRANTS 4,278,154 3,923,000 3,009,641 76.72 3,798,400 3,439,189 90.54
INTEREST & RENT 5,907 9,000 15,350 170.56 18,000 19,949 110.83

4,284,062 3,932,000 3,024,991 76.93 3,816,400 3,459,138 90.64

Major Street Fund Expenditures
Transfers Out & Other Uses 4,366,155 4,498,000 3,305,103 73.48 4,514,670 3,157,550 69.94

4,366,155 4,498,000 3,305,103 73.48 4,514,670 3,157,550 69.94

Quarterly Financial Report

Major Street Fund

For the Period Ending March 31, 2016

 April 27, 2016  21 / 35 



Description
Last Year

Total Actual
Last Year
Budget

Last Year
Year To Date

Last Year
Percent to 

Budget
Current Year 

Budget
Current Year
Year To Date

Current 
Year
% to 

Budget
Local Street Fund Revenues
GRANTS 1,499,530 1,542,000 1,091,663 70.80 1,495,220 1,142,903 76.44
INTEREST & RENT 6,597 8,000 13,687 171.09 16,000 19,581 122.38
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 500,000 500,000 375,000 75.00 500,000 375,000 75.00

2,006,127 2,050,000 1,480,349 72.21 2,011,220 1,537,484 76.45

Local Street Fund Expenditures
Transfers Out & Other Uses 1,702,573 2,032,000 1,347,498 66.31 3,228,210 1,813,660 56.18

1,702,573 2,032,000 1,347,498 66.31 3,228,210 1,813,660 56.18

Quarterly Financial Report

Local Street Fund

For the Period Ending March 31, 2016

 April 27, 2016  20 / 35 



Description
Last Year

Total Actual
Last Year
Budget

Last Year
Year To Date

Last Year
Percent to 

Budget
Current Year 

Budget
Current Year
Year To Date

Current 
Year
% to 

Budget
Forfeiture Fund Revenues
FINES AND FORFEITURES 280,508 130,000 160,562 123.51 130,000 64,036 49.26
INTEREST & RENT 0 0 0 0.00 0 4,167 0.00

280,508 130,000 160,562 123.51 130,000 68,203 52.46

Forfeiture Fund Expenditures
Public Safety 151,077 182,000 63,456 34.87 152,000 26,665 17.54
    Police 151,077 182,000 63,456 34.87 152,000 26,665 17.54

151,077 182,000 63,456 34.87 152,000 26,665 17.54

Quarterly Financial Report

Forfeiture Fund

For the Period Ending March 31, 2016

 April 27, 2016  1 / 1 



Description
Last Year

Total Actual
Last Year
Budget

Last Year
Year To Date

Last Year
Percent to 

Budget
Current Year 

Budget
Current Year
Year To Date

Current 
Year
% to 

Budget
Aquatic Center Fund Revenues
CHARGES FOR SERVICES 382,756 545,000 199,749 36.65 555,000 344,811 62.13
INTEREST & RENT 48,386 48,400 19,563 40.42 113,700 107,659 94.69
OTHER REVENUE 0 100 0 0.00 100 87 86.59

431,142 593,500 219,311 36.95 668,800 452,557 67.67

Aquatic Center Fund Expenditures
Aquatic Center 581,402 533,850 362,260 67.86 515,730 509,035 98.70
    Operations 581,402 388,500 362,260 93.25 440,730 470,860 106.84

    Capital 0 145,350 0 0.00 75,000 38,175 50.90

581,402 533,850 362,260 67.86 515,730 509,035 98.70

Quarterly Financial Report

Aquatic Center Fund

For the Period Ending March 31, 2016

 April 27, 2016  1 / 35 



Description
Last Year

Total Actual
Last Year
Budget

Last Year
Year To Date

Last Year
Percent to 

Budget
Current Year 

Budget
Current Year
Year To Date

Current 
Year
% to 

Budget
Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Revenues
CHARGES FOR SERVICES 1,375,137 1,500,500 775,798 51.70 1,399,810 1,093,851 78.14
INTEREST & RENT 0 0 0 0.00 0 403 0.00

1,375,137 1,500,500 775,798 51.70 1,399,810 1,094,254 78.17

Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Expenditures
Sanctuary Lake 1,733,842 1,841,151 1,038,368 56.40 2,160,570 1,184,496 54.82
    Billy Casper 1,437,510 1,125,676 932,528 82.84 1,109,680 1,053,271 94.92

    City Expenses 296,331 715,475 105,840 14.79 900,890 141,226 15.68

    Capital 0 0 0 0.00 150,000 -10,000 -6.67

1,733,842 1,841,151 1,038,368 56.40 2,160,570 1,184,496 54.82

Quarterly Financial Report

Sanctuary Lake Golf Course

For the Period Ending March 31, 2016

 April 27, 2016  28 / 35 



Description
Last Year

Total Actual
Last Year
Budget

Last Year
Year To Date

Last Year
Percent to 

Budget
Current Year 

Budget
Current Year
Year To Date

Current 
Year
% to 

Budget
Sylvan Glen Golf Course Revenues
CHARGES FOR SERVICES 980,168 1,115,003 564,846 50.66 1,060,300 676,216 63.78
INTEREST & RENT 150,192 163,400 134,234 82.15 163,400 132,570 81.13
OTHER REVENUE 0 0 0 0.00 0 10,451 0.00

1,130,360 1,278,403 699,080 54.68 1,223,700 819,237 66.95

Sylvan Glen Golf Course Expenditures
Sylvan Glen 1,130,077 1,106,219 757,465 68.47 1,117,950 778,172 69.61
    Billy Casper 1,104,850 1,062,219 759,540 71.51 1,005,850 772,099 76.76

    City Expenses 25,227 44,000 -2,075 -4.72 44,100 7,423 16.83

    Capital 0 0 0 0.00 68,000 -1,350 -1.99

1,130,077 1,106,219 757,465 68.47 1,117,950 778,172 69.61

Quarterly Financial Report

Sylvan Glen Golf Course

For the Period Ending March 31, 2016

 April 27, 2016  31 / 35 



Description
Last Year

Total Actual
Last Year
Budget

Last Year
Year To Date

Last Year
Percent to 

Budget
Current Year 

Budget
Current Year
Year To Date

Current 
Year
% to 

Budget
Sewer Fund Revenues
GRANTS 226,636 333,000 10,961 3.29 333,000 206,260 61.94
CHARGES FOR SERVICES 11,900,157 14,394,000 9,496,226 65.97 12,627,000 9,719,185 76.97
INTEREST & RENT 101,532 115,000 153,395 133.39 186,300 189,551 101.75
OTHER REVENUE 42,504 0 0 0.00 0 19,499 0.00

12,270,829 14,842,000 9,660,583 65.09 13,146,300 10,134,495 77.09

Sewer Fund Expenditures
Sewer 12,803,765 14,745,131 9,714,056 65.88 21,148,460 15,242,474 72.07
    Administration & Cost of Sales 12,017,139 11,411,001 9,007,311 78.94 11,493,580 8,867,837 77.15

    Maintenance 786,626 1,097,130 570,347 51.99 1,177,380 526,213 44.69

    Capital 0 2,237,000 136,398 6.10 8,477,500 5,848,424 68.99

12,803,765 14,745,131 9,714,056 65.88 21,148,460 15,242,474 72.07

Quarterly Financial Report

Sewer Fund

For the Period Ending March 31, 2016

 April 27, 2016  29 / 35 



Description
Last Year

Total Actual
Last Year
Budget

Last Year
Year To Date

Last Year
Percent to 

Budget
Current Year 

Budget
Current Year
Year To Date

Current 
Year
% to 

Budget
Water Fund Revenues
CHARGES FOR SERVICES 14,624,761 17,805,000 11,627,477 65.30 16,744,200 13,333,390 79.63
INTEREST & RENT 29,952 108,000 82,828 76.69 108,000 104,520 96.78
OTHER REVENUE 35,976 0 0 0.00 0 836 0.00

14,690,689 17,913,000 11,710,305 65.37 16,852,200 13,438,746 79.74

Water Fund Expenditures
Water 15,760,021 20,248,461 12,780,012 63.12 19,478,730 16,025,334 82.27
    Administration & Cost of Sales 13,111,817 11,931,261 9,823,327 82.33 12,908,280 11,667,559 90.39

    Transmission & Distribution 999,110 1,086,330 745,710 68.64 637,880 354,171 55.52

    Maintenance 1,417,157 1,956,460 1,077,966 55.10 2,278,820 1,347,238 59.12

    Reading & Accounting 224,072 274,410 182,049 66.34 253,750 182,895 72.08

    Capital 7,864 5,000,000 950,959 19.02 3,400,000 2,473,470 72.75

15,760,021 20,248,461 12,780,012 63.12 19,478,730 16,025,334 82.27

Quarterly Financial Report

Water Fund

For the Period Ending March 31, 2016

 April 27, 2016  34 / 35 



City of Troy
Schedule of Cash and Investments
3/31/16

Fund Financial Institution Type of Investment Rate
Maturity 

Date G/L Account Balance per Bank (cost)
Outstanding 

Checks
Deposits in 

Transit Transfers Other Items Balance per Books

Pooled Investment Fund Bank of Michigan Certificate of Deposit 0.0060        10/06/16 751.1003 209,075.26$                     209,075.26$                       

Pooled Investment Fund Comerica Money Market 0.0015 751.1120 1,204,569.42$                  1,204,569.42$                    

Pooled Investment Fund Comerica Checking Account -          751.1001.001 24,204,287.16$                (193,839.91)$          61,511.66$       5,377.76$           (42,188.50)$          24,035,148.17$                  

Pooled Investment Fund Comerica Cash & Cash Equivalents -          751.1001.230 2,889.16$                         2,889.16$                           

Pooled Investment Fund Comerica Government  & Municipal Bonds 0.0172        751.1120 10,451,946.53$                10,451,946.53$                  

Pooled Investment Fund Fifth Third Bank Cash & Cash Equivalents 0.0020        751.1001.230 9,052.63$                         9,052.63$                           

Pooled Investment Fund Fifth Third Bank Government  & Municipal Bonds 0.0256        751.1120 39,072,342.55$                39,072,342.55$                  

Pooled Investment Fund Flagstar Certificate of Deposit 0.0035        02/16/17 751.1003 3,759,630.12$                  3,759,630.12$                    

Pooled Investment Fund Huntington Bank Money Market 0.0149        751.1001.140 611,523.37$                     611,523.37$                       

Pooled Investment Fund Huntington Investment Co Cash & Cash Equivalents 0.0010        751.1001.230 122,308.15$                     122,308.15$                       

Pooled Investment Fund Huntington Investment Co Government  Bonds 0.0286        751.112 1,007,522.39$                  1,007,522.39$                    

Pooled Investment Fund Independent Bank Certificate of Deposit 0.0080 12/22/16 751.1003 5,575,718.85$                  5,575,718.85$                    

Pooled Investment Fund MBIA-Class Money Market 0.0045        751.1120 1,700,400.96$                  1,700,400.96$                    

Pooled Investment Fund Morgan Stanley Smith Barney Cash & Cash Equivalents 0.0034        751.1001.230 79,918.11$                       79,918.11$                         

Pooled Investment Fund Morgan Stanley Smith Barney Government  & Municipal Bonds 0.0044        751.1120 8,813,825.36$                  8,813,825.36$                    

Pooled Investment Fund Morgan Stanley Smith Barney Mutual Funds 0.0004        751.1120 2,037,214.32$                  2,037,214.32$                    

Pooled Investment Fund PNC Bank Money Market 0.0040 751.1120 5,020,724.92$                  5,020,724.92$                    

Pooled Investment Fund Private Bank, The Certificate of Deposit 0.0070        08/18/16 751.1003 1,099,871.08$                  1,099,871.08$                    

Pooled Investment Fund Private Bank, The Certificate of Deposit 0.0065        08/05/16 751.1003 1,771,793.49$                  1,771,793.49$                    

Pooled Investment Fund Private Bank, The Certificate of Deposit 0.0070        09/09/16 751.1003 2,179,280.30$                  2,179,280.30$                    

Pooled Investment Fund Talmer Bank Money Market 0.0050 751.1120 5,032,288.99$                  5,032,288.99$                    

Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Fifth Third Bank Checking Account -          583.1001.130 186,290.28$                     (9,733.30)$               4,453.45$         181,010.43$                       

Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Fifth Third Bank Checking Account -          583.1001.100 2,344.21$                         2,344.21$                           

Sewer Fund Huntington Bank Certificate of Deposit 0.0035        08/19/16 590.1003 714,228.43$                     714,228.43$                       

Sylvan Glen Golf Course Fifth Third Bank Checking Account -          584.1001.130 121,279.35$                     (12,518.38)$            3,527.52$         112,288.49$                       

Sylvan Glen Golf Course Fifth Third Bank Checking Account -          584.1001.100 1,094.79$                         1,094.79$                           

Trust & Agency Fund Comerica Checking Account -          701.1001.001  $                 1,543,425.61  $            (12,221.09)  $                    -   (5,377.76)$          -$                       1,525,826.76$                    

Water Fund Fifth Third Bank Cash & Cash Equivalents 0.0020        591.1001.100 178,821.57$                     178,821.57$                       

Water Fund Fifth Third Bank Government  & Municipal Bonds 0.0256        591.1120 4,062,817.86$                  4,062,817.86$                    

Water Fund Huntington Bank Certificate of Deposit 0.0055        01/06/17 591.1003 184,416.15$                     184,416.15$                       

Total 120,960,901.37$              (228,312.68)$          69,492.63$       -$                     (42,188.50)$          120,759,892.82$                

G:\CASH & INVESTMENTS\FY 2015-16\Qtrly Schedule of Cash & Inv - Qtr Ending 03-31-16 w no accts.xlsx



stewartc
Text Box
P-02d





stewartc
Text Box
P-02e





stewartc
Text Box
P-03a



stewartc
Text Box
P-03b


	May 9, 2016 Agenda
	Cover Letter
	Top 10 Strategies
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	INVOCATION:  Pastor Joe Crabb from Woodside Bible Church
	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Cub Scout Pack 1718 from Costello Elementary School
	A. CALL TO ORDER:
	B. ROLL CALL:
	C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
	C-1 Special Recognition to Cub Scout Pack 1718 From Costello Elementary School for Cleaning Up Jaycee Park (Presented by:  Mayor Dane Slater)
	C-2 Special Recognition to Members of the Troy Public Library Teen Poetry Team, Elements, (Raagini Chandra, Raul Dutta, Zamashenge Buthelezi, Sonia Kore, Rashika Rao, Vedika Aigalikar and Jenny Boudon) for Winning First Place at Louder Than a Bomb 201...
	C-3 Presentation of Certified Municipal Clerk Designation from the International Institute of Municipal Clerks Presented to Cheryl Stewart, Administrative Aide in the City Clerk’s Office (Presented by:  Mayor Dane Slater)
	C-4 REV-Up Troy (Presented by:  Saim Raza, Management Assistant, and Aileen Dickson, City Clerk)

	D. CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	D-1 No Carryover Items

	E. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	E-1 Public Hearing to Establish a Special Assessment District for Asphalt Paving of the Westerly 220 Feet of Cherry in Section 27 – Standard Resolution #4 (Introduced by:  Nino Licari, City Assessor)
	E-2 Adoption of the 2016-2017 Annual Budget and Three-Year Budget (2017-2018 and 2018-2019)  (Introduced by: Brian Kischnick, City Manager)

	F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES:
	G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT:
	H. POSTPONED ITEMS:
	H-1 Agreement With North Woodward Community Foundation for Use of Public Property for “Troy Family Daze” Festival

	I. REGULAR BUSINESS:
	I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City Council Appointments – Building Code Board of Appeals, Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees / Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan and Trust
	I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – Global Troy Advisory Committee, Volunteer Firefighter Incentive Board; b) City Council Nominations – Animal Control Appeal Board, Charter Revision Committee, Liquor Advisory Committee, Traf...
	I-3 No Closed Session Requested
	I-4 Contract Ratification – Troy Communication Supervisors Association (TCSA) 2016-2021 (Introduced by:  Jeanette Menig, Human Resources Director)
	I-5 Approval of the Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority (BRA) Proposed Fiscal Year 2016-17 and Three Year Budget (Introduced by:  Mark Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development)
	I-6 Approval of the Troy Joint Local Development Finance Authority Troy Subcommittee Proposed Fiscal Year 2016-17 and Three Year Budget (Introduced by:  Mark Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development)
	I-7 Approval of the Troy Downtown Development Authority Proposed Fiscal Year 2016-17 and Three Year Budget (Introduced by:  Mark Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development)
	I-8 Amendment to Chapter 20, Water and Sewer Rates, of the Troy City Code (Introduced by:  Tom Darling, Financial Services Director, and Paul Trosper, Superintendent of Water and Sewer)

	J. CONSENT AGENDA:
	J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council
	J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	a) Special Joint City Council and Planning Commission Minutes-Draft – April 18, 2016
	b) City Council Minutes-Draft – April 18, 2016
	c) Special City Council Budget Study Minutes-Draft – April 21, 2016
	d) Special City Council Budget Study Minutes-Draft – April 25, 2016

	J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:
	a) Cub Scout Pack 1718 Cleaning Up Jaycee Park
	b) Troy Public Library’s Teen Poetry Team, Elements

	J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low bidder Meeting Specifications – Printing Services for the Troy Today Quarterly Newsletter
	b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Award to Low Bidders - Home Chore Lawn and Yard Services
	c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Sole Bidder Meeting Specifications – Redwood Park Pickleball Courts
	d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Award to Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – Sidewalk Replacement and Installation Program, and Manhole Rehabilitation

	J-5 Private Agreement – Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements – Stonecrest Planned Unit Development – Project No. 15.925.3
	J-6 Agreement for Traffic Control Device – Fire Station #4 Sign and Flasher Removals (Co. #1018)
	J-7 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Highway Purposes from A.S. Investment Properties LLC – Sidwell #88-20-03-226-042
	J-8 Suggested Resolution to Reschedule the City Manager Evaluation to June 13, 2016
	J-9 Suggested Resolution to Reschedule the City Attorney Evaluation to June 27, 2016
	J-10 Suggested Resolution to Schedule a Joint Study Session on Tuesday, June 14, 2016, Between the Troy City Council, the Troy Planning Commission and the Troy Downtown Development Authority at 6:00 PM
	J-11 Student Representatives to the Global Troy Advisory Committee
	J-12 Cost Participation Agreement for Road Work on Dequindre Road, Burningbush to Utica Road – Project No. 02.202.5

	K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted
	K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  some future point in time):  None Submitted

	L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES:
	M. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT:
	N. COUNCIL REFERRALS:
	N-1  No Council Referrals Advanced

	O. COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	O-1  No Council Comments Advanced

	P. REPORTS:
	P-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	a) Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority-Final – October 20, 2015
	b) Joint Local Development Finance Authority-Final – October 26, 2015
	c) Downtown Development Authority-Final – January 20, 2016
	d) Zoning Board of Appeals-Final – March 15, 2016
	e) Traffic Committee-Final – March 16, 2016
	f) Planning Commission-Final – March 22, 2016
	g) Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority-Draft – April 19, 2016
	h) Zoning Board of Appeals-Draft – April 19, 2016
	i) Downtown Development Authority-Draft – April 20, 2016
	j) Joint Local Development Finance Authority-Draft – April 25, 2016

	P-2 Department Reports:
	a) Fire Station 4 Project Update
	b) 2016 First Quarter Litigation Report
	c) 2015-2016 Fiscal year Interim Financial Statements Nine Months Ended March 31, 2016
	d) Building Department Activity Report – April 2016
	e) Nationwide Increase in Opioid Overdose

	P-3 Letters of Appreciation:
	a) To Chief Roberts from Ryan Huffmaster Regarding Fire Department Response to a Fire in Their Offices
	b) To Mayor Slater from State Representative Martin Howrylak in Recognition of the City of Troy Being Named a Tree City USA by the Michigan Department of Natural Resources

	P-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted

	Q. COMMENTS ON ITEMS ON OR NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC OUTSIDE OF TROY (NOT RESIDENTS OF TROY AND NOT FROM TROY BUSINESSES):
	R. CLOSED SESSION:
	R-1 No Closed Session Requested

	S. ADJOURNMENT:
	Attachments.pdf
	20160509 Agenda - C-01  Cub Scout Pack 1718 from Costello Elementary Clean Up Jaycee Park.pdf
	20160509 Agenda - C-02  TPL Teen Poetry Team Receives First Place Prize for Louder Than a Bomb 2016 Youth Poetry Competition
	20160509 Agenda - E-01  Public Hearing to Establish a Special Assessment District for Asphalt Paving of the Westerly 220 Feet of Cherry in Section 27 - Standard Resolution 4
	20160509 Agenda - E-02  Adoption of the 2016-2017 Annual City Budget and Three-Year Budget
	20160509 Agenda - H-01  Agreement with North Woodward Community Foundation for Use of Public Property for Troy Family Daze Festival
	20160509 Agenda - I-04  Contract Ratification - Troy Communication Supervisors Association (TCSA) 2016-2021
	JM16.051 B. Kischnick - Agenda Item TCSA Contract Ratification 2016-05-08
	TA SUMMARY wChanges compared -TCSA 2016-2021
	Tentative Agreement 2016

	20160509 Agenda - I-05  Approval of the Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority (BRA) Proposed Fiscal Year 2016-17 and Three-Year Budget
	20160509 Agenda - I-06  Approval of the Troy Joint Local Development Finance Authority Troy Subcommittee Proposed Fiscal Year 2016-17 and Three-Year Budget
	20160509 Agenda - I-07  Approval of the Troy Downtown Development Authority's Proposed Fiscal Year 2016-17 and Three-Year Budget
	20160509 Agenda - I-08  Amendment to Chapter 20, Water and Sewer Rates, of the Troy City Code
	20160509 Agenda - J-02a  Special Joint City Council and Planning Commission Minutes-Draft - April 18, 2016
	20160509 Agenda - J-02b  City Council Minutes-Draft - April 18, 2016
	20160509 Agenda - J-02c  City Council Special Budget Minutes-Draft - April 21, 2016
	20160509 Agenda - J-02d  City Council Special Budget Minutes-Draft - April 25, 2016
	20160509 Agenda - J-04a  SPR2  Low Bidder Meeting Specifications - Printing Services for the Troy Today Quarterly Newsletter
	20160509 Agenda - J-04b  SPR2 Award to Low Bidders - Home Chore Lawn and Yard Services
	20160509 Agenda - J-04c  SPR2  Sole Bidder Meeting Specifications - Redwood Park Pickleball Courts
	20160509 Agenda - J-04d  SPR2 Award to Low Bidder Meeting Specifications - Sidewalk Replacement and Installation Program, and Manhole Rehabilitation
	20160509 Agenda - J-05  Private Agreement - Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements - Stonecrest Planned Unit Development and Dog Park - Project No 15.925.3
	20160509 Agenda - J-06  Agreement for Traffic Control Device - Fire Station 4 Sign and Flasher Removals (Co. No. 1018)
	ADP58A2.tmp
	Fire Station #4 Sign and Flasher Removals (Co. #1018)


	20160509 Agenda - J-07 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Highway Purposes from A.S. Investment Properties LLC – Sidwell 88-20-03-226-042
	20160509 Agenda - J-11 Student Representatives to the Global Troy Advisory Committee
	20160509 Agenda - J-12  Cost Participation Agreement for Road Work on Dequindre Road, Burningbush to Utica Road - Project No. 02.202.5
	RCOC Cost Participation Agreement_CON_Project No. 53071 - Dequindre Road, Troy.pdf
	TROY
	Troy exhibit A


	20160509 Agenda - P-01a  Brownfield Redevelopment Authority-Final - October 20, 2015
	20160509 Agenda - P-01b  Joint Local Development Finance Authority-Final - October 26, 2015
	20160509 Agenda - P-01c  Downtown Development Authority-Final - January 20, 2016
	20160509 Agenda - P-01d  Zoning Board of Appeals-Final - March 15, 2016
	20160509 Agenda - P-01e  Traffic Committee-Draft - March 16, 2016
	20160509 Agenda - P-01f  Planning Commission-Final - March 22, 2016
	20160509 Agenda - P-01g  Brownfield Redevelopment Authority-Draft - April 19, 2016
	20160509 Agenda - P-01h  Zoning Board of Appeal-Draft - April 19, 2016
	20160509 Agenda - P-01i  Downtown Development Authority-Draft - April 20, 2016
	20160509 Agenda - P-01j  Joint Local Development Finance Authority-Draft - April 25, 2016
	20160509 Agenda - P-02a  Fire Station 4 Update
	20160509 Agenda - P-02b  2016 First Quarter Litigation Report
	B. ZONING CASES
	C.  EMINENT DOMAIN CASES
	These are cases that are generally filed in the federal courts, under 42 U.S.C. Section 1983.  In these cases, the Plaintiffs argue that the City and/or police officers of the City of Troy somehow violated their civil rights.
	F. MISCELLANEOUS CASES


	20160509 Agenda - P-02c  2015-2016 Fiscal year Interim Financial Statements Nine Months Ended March 31, 2016
	20160509 Agenda - P-02d  Building Department Activity Report - April 2016
	20160509 Agenda - P-02e  Nationwide Increase in Opioid Overdose
	20160509 Agenda - P-03a LoA to Chief Roberts from Ryan Huffmaster Regarding Fire Department Response to a Fire in Their Offices
	20160509 Agenda - P-03b  LoA to Mayor Slater from State Rep Martin Howrylak in Recognition of the City of Troy Being Named a Tree City USA by the Michigan Dept of Natural Resources




